
City of Capitola Agenda  

 

   

Mayor: Michael Termini  

Vice Mayor: Jacques Bertrand  

Council Members: Ed Bottorff  

 Stephanie Harlan  

 Kristen Petersen  

 
Treasurer: 

 
Peter Wilk 

 

   

 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
THURSDAY, OCTOBER 25, 2018 

 
7:00 PM 

 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

420 CAPITOLA AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA  95010 
 

CLOSED SESSION – 6:15 PM 
CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE 

An announcement regarding the items to be discussed in Closed Session will be made in 
the City Hall Council Chambers prior to the Closed Session.  Members of the public may, at 
this time, address the City Council on closed session items only.  There will be a report of 
any final decisions in City Council Chambers during the Open Session Meeting. 

 

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR [Govt. Code §54957.6] 

Negotiator: Dania Torres Wong/Larry Laurent 
Employee Organizations: (1) Capitola Police Officers Association 
 
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL -  EXISTING LITIGATION 

[Govt. Code § 54956.9 (d)(1)] 

City of Capitola v. Linda Fridy & Gail Pellerin (Juan Escamilla Real Party in Interest) 
Santa Cruz Superior Court Case No. 18CV02200 
 

LIABILITY CLAIMS [Govt. Code § 54956.95] 

Claimant: Patricia Dawn 
Agency claimed against: City of Capitola 

 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
October 25, 2018 

City of Capitola Page 2 Updated 10/19/2018 11:47 AM 

 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – 7 PM 

All correspondences received prior to 5:00 p.m. on the Wednesday preceding a Council 
Meeting will be distributed to Councilmembers to review prior to the meeting.  Information 
submitted after 5 p.m. on that Wednesday may not have time to reach Councilmembers, nor 
be read by them prior to consideration of an item. 
 
All matters listed on the Regular Meeting of the Capitola City Council Agenda shall be 
considered as Public Hearings. 

 1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Council Members Kristen Petersen, Jacques Bertrand, Ed Bottorff, Stephanie Harlan, and 
Mayor Michael Termini 

 2. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 

 3. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS 

Additional information submitted to the City after distribution of the agenda packet. 

 4. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA 

 5. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Oral Communications allows time for members of the Public to address the City Council on 
any item not on the Agenda.  Presentations will be limited to three minutes per speaker.   
Individuals may not speak more than once during Oral Communications.  All speakers must 
address the entire legislative body and will not be permitted to engage in dialogue. All 
speakers are requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so 
that their name may be accurately recorded in the minutes.  A MAXIMUM of 30 MINUTES is 
set aside for Oral Communications at this time. 

 6. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS 

City Council Members/City Treasurer/Staff may comment on matters of a general nature or 
identify issues for staff response or future council consideration. 

 7. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All items listed in the “Consent Calendar” will be enacted by one motion in the form listed 
below.  There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Council 
votes on the action unless members of the public or the City Council request specific items 
to be discussed for separate review.  Items pulled for separate discussion will be considered 
following General Government. 
 
Note that all Ordinances which appear on the public agenda shall be determined to have 
been read by title and further reading waived. 

A. Consider the October 11, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve minutes. 

B. Approval of City Check Registers Dated September 7, September 14, September 21 
and September 28, 2018 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve check registers. 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
October 25, 2018 

City of Capitola Page 3 Updated 10/19/2018 11:47 AM 

 

C. Liability Claim of Patricia Dawn 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Reject liability claim. 

D. Consider a Budget Amendment Transferring $136,364 from the General Fund 
Restricted Fund Balance to the Undesignated General Fund Balance 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the budget amendment related to the Monterey 
Bay Community Power Shared Responsibility Agreement. 

E. Consider a Budget Amendment Transferring $33,000 from Public Works Contracted 
Services to Public Works Wages Temporary 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve budget amendment. 

F. Consider Approval of a Memorandum of Understanding with the Capitola Police 
Officers Association and Adopt the Amended Salary Schedule for Fiscal Year 
2018/19 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1.  Authorize the City Manager to execute the successor agreement to existing 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with negotiated changes from October 21, 
2018, through June 30, 2021, for the following: 

a. Capitola Police Officers Association 

2.  Adopt a Resolution approving the updated salary schedule. 

 8. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS 

All items listed in “General Government” are intended to provide an opportunity for public 
discussion of each item listed. The following procedure pertains to each General 
Government item:  1) Staff explanation; 2) Council questions; 3) Public comment; 4) Council 
deliberation; 5) Decision. 

A. Consider Appeal of the Planning Commission's Permit Denial for Application 17-019, 
4015 Capitola Road 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Continue the application to the January 24, 2019, 
meeting with the understanding the applicant will continue to work with staff to 
complete a draft memorandum of understanding to participate in a future Capitola 
Mall specific plan, and make a good faith effort to submit the following items to the 
City no later than December 15, 2018: 

1. Updated plans reflecting applicant’s proposed project; 
2. Updated stormwater plans; and 
3. Updated environmental site analysis for facility closure. 

B. Consider a Resolution in Support of the Citizens’ Climate Lobby Carbon Fee and 
Dividend Policy Proposal 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Council discretion. 

C. Report on the Wharf Project Structural Options 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept the Capitola Wharf Project Alternative Report 
and direct Public Works to develop plans to implement a phased approach to Wharf 
improvements. 
 

D. Consider Sister City Options with Bahia de Banderas, Nayarit, Mexico 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Provide direction.  



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
October 25, 2018 

City of Capitola Page 4 Updated 10/19/2018 11:47 AM 

  

 9. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Note: Any person seeking to challenge a City Council decision made as a result of a proceeding in 
which, by law, a hearing is required to be given, evidence is required to be taken, and the discretion in 
the determination of facts is vested in the City Council, shall be required to commence that court action 
within ninety (90) days following the date on which the decision becomes final as provided in Code of 
Civil Procedure §1094.6. Please refer to code of Civil Procedure §1094.6 to determine how to calculate 
when a decision becomes “final.” Please be advised that in most instances the decision become “final” 
upon the City Council’s announcement of its decision at the completion of the public hearing. Failure to 
comply with this 90-day rule will preclude any person from challenging the City Council decision in 
court. 
 
Notice regarding City Council: The City Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month 
at 7:00 p.m. (or in no event earlier than 6:00 p.m.), in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 
Capitola Avenue, Capitola. 
 
Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials: The City Council Agenda and the complete Agenda Packet 
are available for review on the City’s website: www.cityofcapitola.org and at Capitola City prior to the 
meeting. Agendas are also available at the Capitola Post Office located at 826 Bay Avenue, Capitola. 
Need more information? Contact the City Clerk’s office at 831-475-7300. 
 
Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet: Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957.5, materials related to an agenda item submitted after distribution of the agenda packet 
are available for public inspection at the Reception Office at City Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
California, during normal business hours. 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act: Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons 
with a disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act 
of 1990. Assisted listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting 
in the City Council Chambers. Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting 
due to a disability, please contact the City Clerk’s office at least 24-hours in advance of the meeting at 
831-475-7300. In an effort to accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are 
requested to refrain from wearing perfumes and other scented products. 
 
Televised Meetings: City Council meetings are cablecast “Live” on Charter Communications Cable TV 
Channel 8 and are recorded to be rebroadcasted at 8:00 a.m. on the Wednesday following the 
meetings and at 1:00 p.m. on Saturday following the first rebroadcast on Community Television of 
Santa Cruz County (Charter Channel 71 and Comcast Channel 25). Meetings are streamed “Live” on 
the City’s website at www.cityofcapitola.org by clicking on the Home Page link “Meeting Video.” 
Archived meetings can be viewed from the website at any time. 

 



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF OCTOBER 25, 2018 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Consider the October 11, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve minutes. 
 
DISCUSSION: Attached for City Council review and approval are the minutes of the regular 

meeting of October 11, 2018. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. 10-11 draft minutes 
 

Report Prepared By:   Linda Fridy 
 City Clerk 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

7.A

Packet Pg. 5



 

 

DRAFT 
CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
THURSDAY, OCTOBER 11, 2018  

 
CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Termini called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  

 
No members of the public had comments and the Council adjourned to the City Manager’s 
Office with the following items to be discussed in Closed Session: 

CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR [Govt. Code §54957.6] 

Negotiator: Dania Torres Wong/Larry Laurent 
Employee Organizations: (1) Capitola Police Officers Association 
 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – 7 PM 

 1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Council Member Stephanie Harlan: Present, Council Member Ed Bottorff: Present, Mayor 
Michael Termini: Present, Vice Mayor Jacques Bertrand: Present, Council Member Kristen 
Petersen: Present. 
Treasurer Peter Wilk was present. 

 2. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Junior Guards Recognition 
Mayor Termini presented proclamations to Capitola Junior Guards who qualified and 
represented the City at national competition. 

B. Proclamation Honoring St. John's Helpful Shop 
Mayor Termini presented a proclamation to Rector Tracy Wells Miller, who noted the 
shop will be reopening in Aptos near the church. 

 3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 

Attorney John Barisone reported that for labor negotiations the Council received information 
and gave instructions, but took no reportable action. 

 4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS 

A. Item 2.A – one public comment email 

B. Item 10.A – five public comment emails 

C.  Item 10.B – one public comment email 

D.  Item 10.C – two public comment emails 

 5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA - None 

 6. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Resident Linda Smith followed up on summer letter about Sgt. Sarah Ryan praising her and 
the Capitola Police Department.  

7.A.1

Packet Pg. 6

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

0-
11

 d
ra

ft
 m

in
u

te
s 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
October 11, 2018 

 

 

Gene Bernari asked for more notice to attend meetings. 

 7. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS 

Treasurer Wilk announced the Finance Advisory Committee meeting is being moved to 
October 23 to discuss how to maximize options for library funds and increasing the 
committee’s responsibilities should Measure K pass. 
 
Council Member Petersen thanked the volunteers who put on the successful Capitola 
Foundation golf tournament.  
 
Council Member Bertrand encouraged positive feedback regarding City efforts. 
 
Council Member Harlan attended the annual League of Cities convention in September, with 
sessions on diversity, harassment claims, coastal city issues, pension costs and more. 
 
Mayor Termini praised the success of the recent Beach Festival. He also thanked the Monte 
Foundation for the recent fireworks and noted this year’s proceeds go to the children's wing 
of the new library. He also thanked the Police and Public Works departments for managing 
these events. 

 8. BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES APPOINTMENTS 

A. Appoint Youth Member to Museum Board 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Appoint Joshua Henshaw as a youth member to the 
Board of Trustees of the Capitola Historical Museum, as recommended by the board. 

 
Museum Board Member Dave Peyton introduced Joshua Henshaw and said the board is 
looking forward to his perspective for increasing youth interest and participation in the 
Museum. Joshua expressed his thanks for the opportunity. 

 

MOTION: APPOINT JOSHUA HENSHAW AS A YOUTH MEMBER AS 
RECOMMENDED 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ed Bottorff, Council Member 

SECONDER: Kristen Petersen, Council Member 

AYES: Harlan, Bottorff, Termini, Bertrand, Petersen 

 9. CONSENT CALENDAR 

MOTION: APPROVE AS RECOMMENDED 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Stephanie Harlan, Council Member 

SECONDER: Jacques Bertrand, Vice Mayor 

AYES: Harlan, Bottorff, Termini, Bertrand, Petersen 

A. Consider the September 27, 2018, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve minutes. 

B. Annual Donations Report 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive the donations and contributions report. 
 
 

7.A.1

Packet Pg. 7

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

0-
11

 d
ra

ft
 m

in
u

te
s 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
October 11, 2018 

 

 

 10. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Report and Direction on Jewel Box Traffic Calming Options 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept a report on Jewel Box traffic calming and direct 
Public Works to develop plans for increased neighborhood signage and the 
installation of speed tables on Jade Street and 42nd Avenue. 

 
Public Works Director Steve Jesberg presented the staff report. He noted the highest 
polling solutions at the summer workshop were enforcement, neighborhood signage, 
and speed tables. He said speed bumps and tables deter as much as 20 percent of 
traffic and speed tables can be premade or built in place at the same cost.  
 
The option to close Jade Street eastbound received 60 percent approval but has 
significant impacts to levels of service at other intersections. He advocated for traffic 
studies to measure effectiveness of any implemented options. 

 
Council Member Bertrand confirmed that signage and speed tables do not require 
studies because they don't impact intersection levels of service. 
 
In public comment, most speakers praised the workshops and supported the staff 
recommendation. Some also advocated for including signs prohibiting turns into the 
neighborhood at designated times. 
 
Speakers were: 
Linda Smith  
Rose Filicetti  
Bill Gray  
Jim Hobbs  
Cindy Kus  
Alan Cable  
Cherry McDonald 
Todd Anderson 
Marcos Vascovi 
Karl Shubert 
Ron Burke  
 
Council Member Harlan said she  hopes the Council and community can learn from 
the process and said she supports the supports the short-term recommendation. 
 
Council Member Bertrand said he supports turn restrictions and speed tables. 
 
Council Member Petersen agrees that speed tables are needed, but she is hesitants 
to add options from the mid- and long-term lists.  
 
Council Member Bottorff asked for courtesy and not divisiveness, and said he has 
seen progress. He supports the recommendation with the addition of no-turn sign 
options.  
 
Mayor Termini said he does not favor traffic studies believing they do not give 
comprehensive information. 

7.A.1

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

0-
11

 d
ra

ft
 m

in
u

te
s 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
October 11, 2018 

 

 

MOTION: ADOPTED THE RECOMMENDED OPTIONS AND NO-TURN SIGNS FOR 
CERTAIN HOURS AT 47TH AND PORTOLA AND 45TH AND TOPAZ. 

RESULT: ADOPTED AS AMENDED [4 TO 1] 

MOVER: Ed Bottorff, Council Member 

SECONDER: Jacques Bertrand, Vice Mayor 

AYES: Ed Bottorff, Michael Termini, Jacques Bertrand, Kristen Petersen 

NAYS: Stephanie Harlan 

B. Receive Report from the Ad Hoc Depot Hill Bluff Group 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report. 

 
Director Jesberg provided background on the ad hoc committee formation. Council 
Member Petersen, who served as the City’s representative, said it has been meeting 
about 18 months. Efforts included hearing from geologists, and she thanked the 
members.  
 
John Hart presented the group's findings. The near-term concern is complete loss of the 

path, and whether the city wants to and can afford to keep path open. To have a 
chance at preserving the path, the first step the committee identified would be to fill 
cave sections under the bluff with frangible concrete and rock bolt. Longer term, 
groins could create beaches that help protect the bluff by forming beaches and/or a 
shotcrete wall similar to Pleasure Point could be constructed. 
 
Council Member Harlan fears that the Coastal Commission would not approve a 
groin due to sand movement. Council Member Petersen noted that an ad hoc 
committee could not do sand studies and opted to provide potential solutions. 
 
A member of the public said the shape of the coast provides a groin for New 
Brighton State Beach. 
 
Mayor Termini confirmed that all solutions would need Coastal Commission permits 
and approval. 
 
Council Members Harlan and Bertrand expressed concerns about costs and permits, 
which the City does not have funds to cover. 
 
Council Member Petersen said the committee did not feel that it is safe to simply 
move the path to property lines. 
 
In response to a question, Director Jesberg estimated based on current City projects 
that a required sand study and plans costing about $100,000 would be needed to 
submit an application for a groin. 
 
Mayor Termini said he believes the path likely cannot be saved and he encouraged 
residents to activate the previously formed Geological Hazard Abatement District to 
save their homes in the future. He praised the committee's work. 
 
RESULT: RECEIVED REPORT 

7.A.1

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

0-
11

 d
ra

ft
 m

in
u

te
s 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
October 11, 2018 

 

 

C. Consider Joining the Santa Clara/Santa Cruz Counties Airport/Community 
Roundtable 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Consider a Resolution to join the Santa Clara/Santa 
Cruz Community Roundtable for a period of one year, direct the City Manager to sign 
the Memorandum of Understanding with the one-year condition, and appoint a 
council member representative and alternate to serve on the Roundtable. 
 

City Manager Jamie Goldstein presented the staff report and background on jet noise 
issues and federal response to previous recommendations. He advocated for the one-
year trial recommendation to evaluate the benefits versus costs. 

 
In public comment, John Glina said he supports membership as the only chance at 
influencing federal officials. Brett Graessle, Cathlin Atchison, and Susanna Glina 
also spoke in support of joining the roundtable. 
 
Mayor Termini noted that within the roundtable structure, Capitola gets as much of a 
voice as larger jurisdictions. 
 
Council Member Harlan supported naming Council Member Bottorff as the 
representative and noted counties are naming staff against the bylaw directions. 
 
Council Member Petersen offered to serve as the alternate after working on the 
issue with former Congress Member Farr. 
 

MOTION: ADOPT THE RESOLUTION AS RECOMMENDED AND APPOINT 
COUNCIL MEMBER BOTTORFF AS REPRESENTATIVE AND COUNCIL 
MEMBER PETERSEN AS ALTERNATE. 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Stephanie Harlan, Council Member 

SECONDER: Jacques Bertrand, Vice Mayor 

AYES: Harlan, Bottorff, Termini, Bertrand, Petersen 

D. City Council Pension Discussion 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report and provide direction. 

 
City Manager Goldstein presented the staff report. Council clarified whether any action 
would take effect with the 2018 incoming council and was told it was unlikely. 
 
Council Member Bottorff said he requested to discussion as part of an effort to 
address rising costs.  
 
Council Member Harlan said she believes it is important for the Council to show it is 
willing to make cuts on its side. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7.A.1

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

0-
11

 d
ra

ft
 m

in
u

te
s 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
October 11, 2018 

 

 

MOTION: DIRECT STAFF TO BEGIN THE PROCESS TO REVISE THE CALPERS 
CONTRACT SO FUTURE COUNCIL MEMBERS CANNOT ENROLL IN 
THAT PENSION PROGRAM. 

RESULT: ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Ed Bottorff, Council Member 

SECONDER: Jacques Bertrand, Vice Mayor 

AYES: Harlan, Bottorff, Termini, Bertrand, Petersen 

 11. ADJOURNMENT 

 The meeting adjourned at 9:19 p.m.  
 

    ____________________________ 
     Michael Termini, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________ 
Linda Fridy, City Clerk 

7.A.1

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

0-
11

 d
ra

ft
 m

in
u

te
s 

 (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s)



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF OCTOBER 25, 2018 

 
FROM:  Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of City Check Registers Dated September 7, September 14, September 

21 and September 28, 2018  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve check registers. 
 

Account: City Main 

Date Starting Check # Ending Check # 
Check/EFT 

Count 
Amount 

9/07/2018 90511 90558 52 $190,364.22 

9/14/2018 90559 90602 46 $66,397.91 

9/21/2018 90603 90666 68 $344,780.22 

9/28/2018 90667 90722 57 $197,680.54 

The main account check register dated August 31, 2018, ended with check #90510. 
 

Account: Library 

Date Starting Check # Ending Check # 
Check/EFT 

Count 
Amount 

9/07/2018 77 77 1 $16,335 

9/14/2018 78 78 1 $455 

9/21/2018 79 79 1 $3,000 

The library account check register dated August 31, 2018, ended with check #76. 
 

Account: Payroll 

Date Starting Check # Ending Check # 
Check/EFT 

Count 
Amount 

9/14/2018 5434 5441 98 $154,631.28 

9/28/2018 5442 5445 90 $152,715.03 

The payroll account check register dated August 31, 2018, ended with check #5433. 
 
Following is a list of checks/EFTs issued for more than $10,000 and a brief description of the 
expenditure: 
 

Check Issued to Dept Description Amount 

EFT 

659 
CalPERS Member Services FN 

PERS contributions PPE 

8/25/18 
$47,448.98 

7.B

Packet Pg. 12



Approval of City Check Registers  
October 25, 2018 
 

EFT 

661 
IRS FN 

Federal taxes & Medicare 

PPE 8/25/18 
$24,233.69 

EFT 

663 
CalPERS Health FN September health insurance $58,192.01 

Library

77 
Noll and Tam Architects PW 

Public art and donor 

recognition 
$16,335 

90591 SCC Auditor Controller PD August citation processing $11,871.50 

90608 
Atchison Barisone Condotti 

& Kovacevich 
CM August legal services $39,890.02 

90624 Folsom Ford PD 2018 Ford Explorer $31,682.36 

90644 Santa Cruz Regional 911 PD Regional 911 services $119,848.75 

90647 Soquel Creek Water District PW Monthly water $18,729.87 

90658 Wells Fargo Bank FN August credit card purchases $10,214.59 

EFT 

666 
IRS FN 

Federal taxes & Medicare 

PPE 9/8/18 
$24,631.37 

EFT 

668 
CalPERS Member Services FN 

PERS contributions PPE 

9/8/18 
$47,879.73 

90699 Moffatt and Nichol PW 
Wharf, flume & jetty 

engineering, permitting 
$61,947.02 

90700 
Nichols Consulting 

Engineers 
PW 

Park Avenue storm damage 

slope repairs 
$16,295 

90704 PG&E PW Monthly utilities $15,931.43 

90709 SCC Animal Shelter CM County animal services $16,083.30 

90710 Santa Cruz Regional 911 PD Regional 911 debt service $32,561 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. City Check Register 9/7/18 
2. City Check Register 9/14/18 
3. City Check Register 9/21/18 
4. City Check Register 9/28/18 

 
Report Prepared By:   Maura Herlihy 
 Account Technician 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

7.B

Packet Pg. 13



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

7/
18

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

7/
18

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

7/
18

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

7/
18

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

7/
18

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

7/
18

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

7/
18

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

7/
18

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

7/
18

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.1

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

7/
18

  (
A

p
p

ro
va

l o
f 

C
it

y 
C

h
ec

k 
R

eg
is

te
rs

)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

14
/1

8 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

14
/1

8 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

14
/1

8 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

14
/1

8 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

14
/1

8 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

14
/1

8 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.2

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

14
/1

8 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

21
/1

8 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

21
/1

8 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

21
/1

8 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

21
/1

8 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

21
/1

8 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

21
/1

8 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

21
/1

8 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

21
/1

8 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

21
/1

8 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.3

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

21
/1

8 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

28
/1

8 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

28
/1

8 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

28
/1

8 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

28
/1

8 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

28
/1

8 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

28
/1

8 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

28
/1

8 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



7.B.4

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

r 
9/

28
/1

8 
 (

A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
h

ec
k 

R
eg

is
te

rs
)



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF OCTOBER 25, 2018 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Liability Claim of Patricia Dawn  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Reject liability claim. 
 
DISCUSSION:  Patricia Dawn has filed a liability claim against the City for an undetermined 

amount. 

 
 

Report Prepared By:   Liz Nichols 
 Executive Assistant to the City Manager 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

7.C

Packet Pg. 49



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF OCTOBER 25, 2018 

 
FROM:  Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: Consider a Budget Amendment Transferring $136,364 from the General Fund 

Restricted Fund Balance to the Undesignated General Fund Balance  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the budget amendment related to the Monterey Bay 
Community Power Shared Responsibility Agreement. 
 
BACKGROUND: On February 9, 2017, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 1010 

establishing the City as a founding member of Monterey Bay Community Power (MBCP). MBCP 

is a Joint Powers Authority comprised of jurisdictions within Monterey, Santa Cruz, and San 

Benito counties that began providing electrical service to customers during 2018. 

When the City joined MBCP, staff reported Capitola would be required to guarantee its portion 

of the anticipated $3 million initial start-up loan, then estimated to be approximately $140,000. 

Through a request for proposal process, MBCP selected River City Bank to provide the initial 

startup funding for MBCP. On July 27, 2017, the City Council approved the Shared 

Responsibility for Credit Support Agreement for Monterey Bay Community Power which, in part, 

required the establishment of a reserve account in the amount of $136,364.  

 

DISCUSSION: The Shared Responsibility for Credit Support Agreement states that the reserve 

fund shall be released after program launch and as soon as possible under the terms of the 

River City Bank Guaranty. The City has received the guarantee release letter from River City 

Bank that allows for the closing of the reserve account. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: The restricted cash reserve in the amount of $136,364 will be closed and the 

balance will be returned to the General Fund undesignated/unreserved fund balance. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. MBCP Budget Amendment 
 

Report Prepared By:   Jim Malberg 
 Finance Director 
 

7.D

Packet Pg. 50



Transfer of MBCP Restricted Funds  
October 25, 2018 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

7.D

Packet Pg. 51



7.D.1

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

B
C

P
 B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
 (

T
ra

n
sf

er
 o

f 
M

B
C

P
 R

es
tr

ic
te

d
 F

u
n

d
s)



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF OCTOBER 25, 2018 

 
FROM:  Finance Department 
 
SUBJECT: Consider a Budget Amendment Transferring $33,000 from Public Works 

Contracted Services to Public Works Wages Temporary  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve budget amendment. 
 
BACKGROUND: Since February 2012 the Public Works Department has contracted for project 

and tree inspection services. These services have been included in the annual budget each 

year under Contract Services--Inspections and have been performed by a City of Capitola 

retiree. The City and the retiree entered into a Professional Services Agreement and the retiree 

has obtained a business license each year. 

 

DISCUSSION: In August of 2017, CalPERS issued Publication 33 further defining the rules and 

regulations surrounding employment following retirement from a CalPERS employer. The 

publication provides information about working for a CalPERS employer as a retired annuitant, 

independent contractor, consultant, and contract employee. 

Publication 33 states if the work performed by the retiree is the same or similar to the work 

performed as an active employee, an employer-employee relationship exists, and the 

employment is subject to the retired annuitant restrictions (960 hours worked per fiscal year). 

Since the retiree previously worked for the Public Works Department performing similar duties, 

the City has begun reporting hours worked and earnings to CalPERS. 

The Finance Department began reporting to CalPERS the payments to the retiree as a retired 

annuitant beginning July 1, 2018; however, those expenses were not budgeted as wages. The 

Fiscal Year 2018-19 budget included $33,000 for Contract Services--Inspections, which needs 

to be moved to Wages Temporary (hourly and seasonal) to match how payments are now 

reported to CalPERS. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: No fiscal impact is associated with this action. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Public Works Budget Amendment 
 

Report Prepared By:   Jim Malberg 
 Finance Director 

7.E

Packet Pg. 53



Transfer Public Works Fund  
October 25, 2018 
 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

7.E

Packet Pg. 54



7.E.1

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 
B

u
d

g
et

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t 
 (

T
ra

n
sf

er
 P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s 
F

u
n

d
)



 
 
 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF OCTOBER 25, 2018 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Consider Approval of a Memorandum of Understanding with the Capitola Police 

Officers Association and Adopt the Amended Salary Schedule for Fiscal Year 
2018/19  

 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1.  Authorize the City Manager to execute the successor agreement to existing Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) with negotiated changes from October 21, 2018, through June 30, 
2021, for the following: 

a. Capitola Police Officers Association 

 2.  Adopt a Resolution approving the updated salary schedule. 

 
BACKGROUND: The Capitola Police Officers Association (CPOA) Memorandum of 

Understanding (MOU) expired on June 30, 2018. As required by state law the City has 

negotiated with the CPOA on working conditions, salary, and benefit changes.  

The City and the CPOA came to a tentative agreement on October 11, 2018.  

 

DISCUSSION: The City of Capitola and all the employee bargaining units began meeting in 

February 2018. The CPOA came to tentative agreement with the City based on the following 

major economic criteria: 

Term: Thee-year agreement 

Salary: All employees in the unit will receive a 2.25% cost of living adjustment (COLA) in 
upon ratification, a 2.25% COLA in July 2019, and a 2.25% COLA in July 2020. 

Safety Recruitment and Retention Adjustment: All members of the CPOA will receive a 
2.25% retention and recruitment salary adjustment in January 2021. 

Pension: Employee contribution towards retirement remains at 14.974% of salary for 
CalPERS Classic Safety Employees and 13.392% for CalPERS Classic Miscellaneous 
employees. 

Salary and Benefit Survey: A Total Compensation Study will be conducted prior to the 
end of the MOU term. 

Medical: CPOA and City negotiated changes to health contribution amounts.  

7.F

Packet Pg. 56



Approve  POA MOU  
October 25, 2018 
 
The CPOA agreed to the following changes to the health contribution from the City. The City’s 
maximum per month contribution towards medical, dental, and vision premiums inclusive of 
required minimum contribution are as follows: 

Date  Employee Only Employee plus one dependent Employee plus two 

Upon Ratification $800.00 $1,150.00 $1,400.00 

July 2019 $824.00 $1,300.00 $1,600.00 

July 2021 $850.00 $1,400.00 $1,800.00 

  

The City and the CPOA bargaining unit agreed to reduce the cash-in-lieu for those who have 
other group health insurance during this agreement. 

  Effective Dates Current Employee New Employee 

Upon Ratification $773.00 $250.00 

First full pay period in 

December 2018 

$700.00 $250.00 

First full pay period in 

December 2019 

$600.00 $250.00 

First full pay period in 

December 2020 

$500.00 $250.00 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: The estimated cost of for each year of the agreement is as follows: 

 

Fiscal Year 2018/19 $50,000.00 

Fiscal Year 2019/20 $90,000.00 

Fiscal Year 2020/21 $133,000.00 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. POA MOU 2018-2021 (PDF) 
 

Report Prepared By:   Larry Laurent 
 Assistant to the City Manager 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

7.F

Packet Pg. 57



Approve  POA MOU  
October 25, 2018 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA  
REPEALING RESOLUTION NO. 4120 AND 

AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE UPDATED FISCAL YEAR 2018/2019 
PAY RATES AND RANGES (SALARY SCHEDULE) 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council establishes the legal current salary range from the salary 
schedule for each class of position; and  

 
 WHEREAS, the California Public Employee’s Retirement Law, at Section 570.5 of the 
California Code of Regulations Title 2, requires the City to publish pay rates and ranges on the 
City’s internet site and the City Council to approve the pay rates and range in its entirety each 
time a modification is made; and  

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council Approved Resolution No. 4120 adopting the Fiscal Year 
2018/2019 Salary Schedule at the July 26, 2018, regular meeting that included include a Cost of 
Living Adjustment (COLA) beginning the first full pay period in July 2018 of 2.25 percent to the 
following employee groups: Association of Capitola Employees, Mid-management, and 
Confidential, and Police Captains as well as to Unrepresented Management and the City 
Manager; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and the Capitola Police Officers Association (CPOA) came to a 
tentative agreement on a 2.25 percent COLA on October 11, 2018; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the attached updated salary schedule for CPOA does not go into effect until the 
Memorandum of Understanding is ratified by both the City Council and the employee group; and 

 
 WHEREAS, a salary resolution is adopted annually by the City Council upon review and all 
changes need to be adopted by the City Council. 

  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Capitola does 
hereby:  

1. Repeal Resolution No. 4120; and 
2.  Authorize and approve City of Capitola pay rates and ranges (salary schedule, 

Exhibit A) for permanent employees from October 21, 2018, through June 30, 2019. 
 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing resolution was passed and adopted by 
the City Council of the City of Capitola on the 25th day of October 2018, by the following vote: 
 

AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN: 

        ___________________________ 
                     Michael Termini, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
Linda Fridy, City Clerk 

7.F

Packet Pg. 58



Approve  POA MOU  
October 25, 2018 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Updated Fiscal Year 2018/2019 Salary Schedule 

 
 

JULY 1, 2018 - JUNE 30, 2019

2.25% COLA
Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E Step F Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E Step F

Police Captain $9,133.08 $9,590.07 $10,069.29 $10,574.09 $11,103.35 $11,659.30 $52.69 $55.33 $58.09 $61.00 $64.06 $67.27

Monthly Hourly

 
 

7.F

Packet Pg. 59



Approve  POA MOU  
October 25, 2018 
 

ACE SALARY SCHEDULE

JULY 1, 2018 - JUNE 30, 2019 

2.25% COLA Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E

ACCOUNT TECHNICIAN $4,442.11 $4,663.21 $4,895.27 $5,140.13 $5,397.77 $25.63 $26.90 $28.24 $29.65 $31.14

ACCOUNTANT I $5,366.71 $5,635.32 $5,916.72 $6,212.74 $6,521.55 $30.96 $32.51 $34.13 $35.84 $37.62

ACCOUNTANT II $5,918.55 $6,214.56 $6,523.37 $6,850.46 $7,193.98 $34.15 $35.85 $37.63 $39.52 $41.50

ACCOUNTS CLERK $4,030.97 $4,231.97 $4,442.11 $4,665.03 $4,897.10 $23.26 $24.42 $25.63 $26.91 $28.25

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT $4,065.69 $4,270.34 $4,484.13 $4,708.89 $4,944.61 $23.46 $24.64 $25.87 $27.17 $28.53

ADMINISTRATIVE CLERK I $3,163.01 $3,320.16 $3,484.61 $3,660.03 $3,842.76 $18.25 $19.15 $20.10 $21.12 $22.17

ADMINISTRATIVE CLERK II $3,660.03 $3,842.76 $4,034.62 $4,237.45 $4,449.42 $21.12 $22.17 $23.28 $24.45 $25.67

ADMINISTRATIVE RECORDS ANALYST $4,800.25 $5,039.63 $5,289.96 $5,556.75 $5,832.66 $27.69 $29.07 $30.52 $32.06 $33.65

ASSISTANT PLANNER $5,182.15 $5,439.80 $5,712.06 $5,997.12 $6,296.79 $29.90 $31.38 $32.95 $34.60 $36.33

BUILDING INSPECTOR I $4,538.95 $4,767.36 $5,003.08 $5,255.24 $5,518.37 $26.19 $27.50 $28.86 $30.32 $31.84

BUILDING INSPECTOR II $5,295.44 $5,560.40 $5,839.97 $6,130.51 $6,437.49 $30.55 $32.08 $33.69 $35.37 $37.14

DATA ENTRY CLERK $3,173.98 $3,331.12 $3,499.23 $3,674.65 $3,859.21 $18.31 $19.22 $20.19 $21.20 $22.26

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES TECHNICIAN $4,270.34 $4,484.13 $4,708.89 $4,944.61 $5,191.29 $24.64 $25.87 $27.17 $28.53 $29.95

EQUIPMENT OPERATOR $4,253.90 $4,465.86 $4,686.96 $4,922.68 $5,169.36 $24.54 $25.76 $27.04 $28.40 $29.82

MAINTENANCE WORKER I $3,025.97 $3,177.63 $3,336.61 $3,504.71 $3,678.31 $17.46 $18.33 $19.25 $20.22 $21.22

MAINTENANCE WORKER II $4,051.07 $4,253.90 $4,465.86 $4,690.62 $4,924.51 $23.37 $24.54 $25.76 $27.06 $28.41

MAINTENANCE WORKER III $4,253.90 $4,465.86 $4,690.62 $4,924.51 $5,171.19 $24.54 $25.76 $27.06 $28.41 $29.83

MECHANIC $4,445.76 $4,668.69 $4,900.75 $5,145.61 $5,403.25 $25.65 $26.93 $28.27 $29.69 $31.17

MUSEUM CURATOR $4,030.97 $4,231.97 $4,445.76 $4,666.86 $4,898.93 $23.26 $24.42 $25.65 $26.92 $28.26

PARKING ENFORCEMENT OFFICER $3,669.17 $3,850.07 $4,043.76 $4,246.59 $4,458.55 $21.17 $22.21 $23.33 $24.50 $25.72

RECEPTIONIST $3,480.96 $3,654.55 $3,837.28 $4,030.97 $4,231.97 $20.08 $21.08 $22.14 $23.26 $24.42

RECORDS COORDINATOR $4,065.69 $4,270.34 $4,484.13 $4,708.89 $4,944.61 $23.46 $24.64 $25.87 $27.17 $28.53

RECORDS MNGNT CLERK $3,976.15 $4,175.32 $4,385.46 $4,604.73 $4,834.97 $22.94 $24.09 $25.30 $26.57 $27.89

RECORDS TECHNICIAN $3,919.51 $4,115.02 $4,321.51 $4,537.13 $4,763.71 $22.61 $23.74 $24.93 $26.18 $27.48

RECREATION ASSISTANT $2,976.63 $3,124.64 $3,283.61 $3,446.24 $3,618.01 $17.17 $18.03 $18.94 $19.88 $20.87

RECREATION COORDINATOR $3,850.07 $4,041.93 $4,244.76 $4,458.55 $4,679.65 $22.21 $23.32 $24.49 $25.72 $27.00

RECREATION FACILITY CUSTODIAN $2,876.13 $3,020.49 $3,172.15 $3,331.12 $3,499.23 $16.59 $17.43 $18.30 $19.22 $20.19

RECREATION RECEPTIONIST $3,226.97 $3,387.77 $3,557.71 $3,734.95 $3,923.16 $18.62 $19.54 $20.53 $21.55 $22.63

Monthly Hourly

 
 
 
 
 

CONFIDENTIAL SALARY SCHEDULE

JULY 1, 2018 - JUNE 30, 2019

2.25% COLA A B C D E A B C D E

ASSIST TO CITY MGR $7,145.02 $7,501.93 $7,876.64 $8,271.36 $8,684.99 $41.22 $43.28 $45.44 $47.72 $50.11

CITY CLERK $6,597.96 $6,928.20 $7,273.99 $7,637.58 $8,020.07 $38.07 $39.97 $41.97 $44.06 $46.27

EXEC ASSIST TO CITY MGR $5,163.62 $5,421.58 $5,694.00 $5,978.64 $6,277.74 $29.79 $31.28 $32.85 $34.49 $36.22

INFORMATION SYSTEMS SPECIALIST $5,096.91 $5,351.53 $5,618.39 $5,899.70 $6,194.35 $29.41 $30.87 $32.41 $34.04 $35.74

Monthly Hourly

 
 

7.F

Packet Pg. 60



Approve  POA MOU  
October 25, 2018 
 
MID-MANAGEMENT SALARY SCHEDULE

JULY 1 2018 - JUNE 30, 2019

2.25% COLA A B C D E A B C D E

ASSOCIATE PLANNER $6,042.02 $6,344.45 $6,661.34 $6,994.91 $7,345.16 $34.86 $36.60 $38.43 $40.36 $42.38

BUILDING OFFICIAL $7,989.16 $8,389.39 $8,808.79 $9,248.66 $9,711.54 $46.09 $48.40 $50.82 $53.36 $56.03

CIVIL ENGINEER/PROJECT MANAGER $6,947.10 $7,295.12 $7,659.82 $8,042.31 $8,444.82 $40.08 $42.09 $44.19 $46.40 $48.72

ENVIRONMENTAL PROJECTS MANAGER $6,042.02 $6,344.45 $6,661.34 $6,994.91 $7,345.16 $34.86 $36.60 $38.43 $40.36 $42.38

MAINTENANCE SUPERINTENDENT $5,944.13 $6,243.80 $6,554.44 $6,881.52 $7,225.05 $34.29 $36.02 $37.81 $39.70 $41.68

FIELD SUPERVISOR $5,538.47 $5,814.39 $6,106.76 $6,411.91 $6,729.86 $31.95 $33.54 $35.23 $36.99 $38.83

RECREATION SUPERVISOR $5,355.74 $5,624.35 $5,907.58 $6,203.60 $6,512.41 $30.90 $32.45 $34.08 $35.79 $37.57

SENIOR PLANNER $6,947.10 $7,295.12 $7,659.82 $8,042.31 $8,444.82 $40.08 $42.09 $44.19 $46.40 $48.72

SENIOR ACCOUNTANT $6,947.10 $7,295.12 $7,659.82 $8,042.31 $8,444.82 $40.08 $42.09 $44.19 $46.40 $48.72

SENIOR MECHANIC $5,145.61 $5,403.25 $5,673.69 $5,956.92 $6,254.76 $29.69 $31.17 $32.73 $34.37 $36.09

Monthly Hourly

 
 
 
MANAGEMENT SALARY SCHEDULE

JULY 1, 2018 - JUNE 30, 2019
2.25% COLA Annually Monthly Hourly

Admin. Services Director $101,484.58 $8,457.05 $48.79

City Manager $197,712.63 $16,476.05 $95.05

Chief of Police $163,341.58 $13,611.80 $78.53

Director of Public Works $149,931.92 $12,494.33 $72.08

Director of Finance $148,270.96 $12,355.91 $71.28

Community Development Director $131,902.50 $10,991.88 $63.41  

7.F

Packet Pg. 61



 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BETWEEN 

CAPITOLA POLICE OFFICERS’ ASSOCIATION 

AND CITY OF CAPITOLA 

PERIOD 10/21/2018 – 6/30/2021 

 

 

 

Contents 
ARTICLE 1.00 TERM ................................................................................................................ 4 

ARTICLE 2.00 DEFINITIONS ................................................................................................... 4 

2.01 EMPLOYER ................................................................................................................. 4 

2.02 ASSOCIATION ............................................................................................................ 4 

2.03 EMPLOYEE/REPRESENTATION UNIT ................................................................... 4 

2.04 PATROL VEHICLE ..................................................................................................... 4 

2.05 PEACE OFFICER/SWORN PERSONNEL ................................................................. 4 

ARTICLE 3.00 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS CLAUSE............................................................... 5 

ARTICLE 4.00 ASSOCIATION RECOGNITION, RIGHTS AND SECURITY ...................... 5 

4.01 ASSOCIATION RECOGNITION ................................................................................ 5 

4.02 NOTICE OF RECOGNIZED ASSOCIATION ............................................................ 5 

4.03 PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS AND PAYOVER ............................................................ 5 

4.04 HOLD HARMLESS ..................................................................................................... 5 

4.05 BULLETIN BOARDS .................................................................................................. 6 

4.06 USE OF EMPLOYER FACILITIES ............................................................................ 6 

4.07 BARGAINING ............................................................................................................. 6 

ARTICLE 5.00 HIRING PROVISIONS ..................................................................................... 6 

5.01 NON-DISCRIMINATION ........................................................................................... 6 

5.02 EMPLOYMENT........................................................................................................... 6 

5.03 SIGNING BONUS ....................................................................................................... 6 

ARTICLE 6.00 JOB CLASSIFICATION ................................................................................... 7 

6.01 NEW JOB CLASSIFICATIONS .................................................................................. 7 

ARTICLE 7.00 HOURS OF WORK, SHIFT, SCHEDULES, AND REST PERIODS ............. 7 

7.01 WORK SCHEDULE AND CHANGE OF SHIFT ....................................................... 7 

7.02 SHIFT ........................................................................................................................... 7 

7.03 ASSIGNING WORK SHIFTS ..................................................................................... 7 

7.03.1 SUCCESSIVE SHIFTS ................................................................................................... 7 

7.03.2 SPECIAL EVENT ASSIGNMENTS ........................................................................... 8 

7.04 MEAL AND REST PERIODS ..................................................................................... 8 

ARTICLE 8.00 OVERTIME ....................................................................................................... 8 

8.01 REGULAR/OVERTIME HOURS ............................................................................... 8 

8.02 COMPENSATION/OVERTIME AUTHORIZATION ................................................ 8 

8.03 COMPENSATION/OVERTIME ................................................................................. 8 

8.04 OVERTIME NOT CUMULATIVE ............................................................................. 8 

8.05 FRACTIONS OF LESS THAN FIFTEEN MINUTES ................................................ 9 

8.06 OTHER ......................................................................................................................... 9 

ARTICLE 9.00 HEALTH AND SAFETY .................................................................................. 9 

9.01 APPLICABLE LAWS .................................................................................................. 9 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



ii 
 

9.02 LABOR MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE .................................................................. 9 

ARTICLE 10.00 UNIFORMS ...................................................................................................... 9 

10.01 UNIFORMS .................................................................................................................. 9 

ARTICLE 11.00 HOLIDAYS .................................................................................................... 10 

ARTICLE 12.00 FLEXIBLE SPENDING ARRANGEMENT CONTRIBUTIONS ................ 10 

ARTICLE 13.00 INSURANCE ................................................................................................. 12 

ARTICLE 14.00 EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVE PROGRAM ................................................. 12 

14.01  EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVE PAY ........................................................................ 12 

14.02  SWORN EDUCATIONAL REIMBURSEMENT ..................................................... 13 

14.03  COMMUNITY SERVICE OFFICE EDUCATIONAL REIMBURSEMENT ......... 13 

14.04  P.O.S.T. CERTIFICATE PAY - POLICE OFFICERS ............................................. 13 

14.05  P.O.S.T. CERTIFICATE PAY - POLICE SERGEANTS ......................................... 13 

14.06  CAREER OFFICER PROGRAM - POLICE OFFICERS ONLY ............................. 13 

ARTICLE 15.00 CALLBACK PAY - POLICE OFFICERS, POLICE SERGEANTS AND 

RECORDS MANAGER ............................................................................................................... 14 

ARTICLE 16.00 NIGHT DIFFERENTIAL - POLICE OFFICERS, POLICE .......................... 14 

SERGEANTS & RECORDS MANAGER ................................................................................... 14 

ARTICLE 18.00 TRAINING OFFICER COMPENSATION ................................................... 15 

ARTICLE 19.00 SPECIALTY PAY .......................................................................................... 15 

19.01 DETECTIVE PAY ..................................................................................................... 15 

19.02 CANINE PAY ............................................................................................................ 15 

19.03 LONGEVITY PAY .................................................................................................... 15 

19.04   MOTORCYCLE PATROL PAY .................................................................................. 15 

ARTICLE 20.00 ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION ............................................................... 15 

20.01   FOR TEMPORARY ASSIGNMENT TO A HIGHER LEVEL VACANCY .......... 15 

20.02   POSITIONS DESIGNATED BILINGUAL ............................................................. 16 

ARTICLE 21.00 LEAVES OF ABSENCE ................................................................................ 16 

21.01   LEAVE MAY NOT EXCEED ONE YEAR ............................................................ 16 

21.02   NO LEAVE TO ACCEPT OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT ......................................... 16 

21.03   MILITARY LEAVE ................................................................................................. 16 

21.04   LEAVE FOR JURY DUTY ..................................................................................... 16 

ARTICLE 22.00 VACATION ................................................................................................... 16 

22.01 ACCRUAL ................................................................................................................. 16 

22.02 MAXIMUM VACATION ACCUMULATION ......................................................... 17 

22.02 VACATION CASH OUT ON TERMINATION ....................................................... 17 

22.03 VACATION – MANDATORY CASH OUT BEFORE TERMINATION ................ 17 

22.04 VACATION ACCRUAL AND USAGE BEGINNING DATES ............................... 17 

22.05 MAXIMUM/MINIMUM ANNUAL VACATION LEAVE ...................................... 18 

22.06 EFFECT ON LEAVE WITHOUT PAY ON VACATION CREDIT ......................... 18 

22.07.01 WHEN VACATION MAY BE TAKEN - ALL EMPLOYEES BUT SERGEANTS 

AND RECORDS SUPERVISOR ............................................................................................. 18 

22.07.02 WHEN VACATION MAY BE TAKEN - SERGEANTS AND RECORDS 

SUPERVISOR .......................................................................................................................... 18 

22.07.03 VACATION CONFLICTS ..................................................................................... 18 

22.08 RATE OF VACATION PAY ..................................................................................... 19 

ARTICLE 23.00 SICK LEAVE ................................................................................................. 19 

23.01 ACCRUAL ................................................................................................................. 19 

23.02 LABOR CODE SECTION 4850 ................................................................................ 19 

23.03 SICK LEAVE USAGE ............................................................................................... 19 

23.05 EMERGENCY LEAVE: SICKNESS IN IMMEDIATE FAMILY ........................... 19 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



iii 
 

23.06  BEREAVEMENT LEAVE ....................................................................................... 20 

ARTICLE 24.00 WAGES & EMPLOYMENT STATUS (SEE ATTACHMENT A) .............. 20 

24.01. WAGES SCHEDULES/HOURLY RATES ............................................................... 20 

ARTICLE 25.00  GRIEVANCES .............................................................................................. 23 

ARTICLE 26.00 DEPARTMENTAL VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT .................................. 25 

ARTICLE 27.00 RETIREMENT - PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM .......... 26 

27.05 PERS CREDIT ........................................................................................................... 27 

27.06 PEPRA EMPLOYEES ............................................................................................... 27 

ARTICLE 28.00 PHYSICAL EXAMINATIONS ..................................................................... 27 

ARTICLE 29.00 FAMILY & MEDICAL LEAVE ACT OF 1993 ............................................ 28 

ARTICLE 30.00 MISCELLANEOUS ....................................................................................... 28 

ARTICLE 31.00 DRUG POLICY.............................................................................................. 28 

ARTICLE 32.00 FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT (FLSA) ................................................. 29 

32.01 SECTION 207(K) AGREEMENT ............................................................................. 29 

ARTICLE 33.00 CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION STUDY................................... 29 

ARTICLE 34.00 PERSONNEL RULES ................................................................................... 30 

ARTICLE 35.00 LAYOFF PROCEDURES .............................................................................. 30 

ARTICLE 36.00 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT ................................................................... 30 

ARTICLE 37.00 SAVINGS CLAUSE ...................................................................................... 30 

ARTICLE 38.00 ENACTMENT ............................................................................................... 30 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  

A: Wage Schedule 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



4 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BETWEEN 

CAPITOLA POLICE OFFICERS’ ASSOCIATION 

AND CITY OF CAPITOLA 

 

This MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING is made and entered into by and between 
CAPITOLA POLICE OFFICERS’ ASSOCIATION and the CITY OF CAPITOLA for and on 
behalf of its members hereinafter identified. This MOU embodies all items agreed upon by and 
between the City of Capitola and the Capitola Police Officers’ Association. 

ARTICLE 1.00 TERM 

The term of this Memorandum of Understanding shall commence July 1, 2013 and shall expire 

on June 30, 2018. cover the period from ratification through June 30, 2021 and shall be effective 

upon ratification by the bargaining unit and approval by the Capitola City Council. 

 

ARTICLE 2.00 DEFINITIONS 

2.01 EMPLOYER 

The term “Employer” as used herein refers to the City of Capitola. The words 
“Management”, “Department Head”, “Police Chief”, may also be used to refer to 
“Employer” in appropriate contexts. 

2.02 ASSOCIATION 

The term “Association” as used herein shall refer to the Capitola Police Officers’ 

Association. 

2.03 EMPLOYEE/REPRESENTATION UNIT 

The term “Employee” or “Covered Employee”, as used herein, means all persons employed 

by the Employer in the Police Department who are classified as Community Services 

Officer, Community Services Officer-Lifeguard Captain, Police Officer, Police Officer 

Trainee, Records Manager and Sergeant. Those positions constitute the unit represented by 

Capitola Police Officers’ Association. 

2.04 PATROL VEHICLE 

The term “patrol vehicle” as used herein shall refer to any motor vehicle as defined under 

the provisions of Sections 415 and 165 of the California Vehicle Code. 

2.05 PEACE OFFICER/SWORN PERSONNEL 

The terms “peace officers” or “sworn personnel” means “police officers” as defined in 
Penal Code Sections 830 and 830.1. 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



5 
 

ARTICLE 3.00 MANAGEMENT RIGHTS CLAUSE 

 

Except as otherwise specifically set forth in this MOU, the CITY retains all management 
prerogatives. These include but are not limited to: determining the mission of its constituent 
departments; setting standards of service; determining the procedures and standards of 
selection for employment and promotion; directing its employees; taking disciplinary 
action; relieving its employees from duty because of lack of work or for other legitimate 
reasons; maintaining the efficiency of governmental operations; determining the methods, 
means, and personnel by which government operations are to be conducted; taking all 
necessary actions to carry out its mission in emergencies; and exercising control and 
discretion over its organization and the technology of performing its work. 

Nothing in this article shall be construed to limit, amend, decrease, revoke, or otherwise 
modify the rights vested in the CITY by state law, city ordinances, or resolutions or other 
laws regulating, authorizing, or empowering the CITY to act or refrain from acting. 

 

 

ARTICLE 4.00 ASSOCIATION RECOGNITION, RIGHTS AND SECURITY 

 

4.01 ASSOCIATION RECOGNITION 

Except as limited by Government Code Section 3502, the Employer hereby recognizes 
the Capitola Police Officers Association (P.O.A), as the exclusive collective bargaining 
agent of all covered Employees in this unit. 

4.02 NOTICE OF RECOGNIZED ASSOCIATION 

The Employer/Association shall post within the employee work or rest area a written 
notice which sets forth the classifications included and referred to in Section 2.03 hereof 
and the name and address of Association as the recognized employee organization for 
such units. The P.O.A. shall also give a written notice to persons newly employed in 
representation unit classifications, which notice shall contain the name and address of the 
employee organization recognized for such unit. 

4.03 PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS AND PAYOVER 

The unit defined in Section 2.03 shall be an “agency shop” as defined in Government 
Code Section 3512.5 (Chapter 901 of Stats. 2000). Consequently, Employer shall deduct 
Association dues from employee’s pay in conformity with State and local regulations. 
The Employer shall promptly pay over to the designated payee all sums so deducted on a 
monthly basis. 

4.04 HOLD HARMLESS 

Association shall indemnify and hold Employer harmless from any and all claims, 
demands, suits, or any other action arising from an employee claim relating to legality, or 
implementation, of Section 4.03. 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



6 
 

4.05 BULLETIN BOARDS 

Reasonable space shall be allowed on bulletin boards as specified by the Police Chief for 
use by the Association to communicate on relevant subjects with departmental 
employees. Material shall be posted upon the bulletin board space as designated, and not 
upon the walls, doors, filing cabinets or any other place. Posted material shall not be 
obscene, defamatory, or of a partisan political nature, nor shall it pertain to public issues 
which do not involve the Employer or its relations with City employees. All posted 
material shall bear the identity of the sponsor, shall be neatly displayed, and shall be 
removed when no longer timely. 

4.06 USE OF EMPLOYER FACILITIES 

Employer facilities such as the City Hall Community Room may be made available upon 
timely application for use by employees and the Association. Such use shall not occur 
during regular duty hours, other than the lunch period. Application for such use shall be 
made to the management person under whose control the facility is placed. 

4.07 BARGAINING 

Employee members of the Association’s bargaining committee shall be allowed time to 
absent themselves from duties for a reasonable period without loss of pay, for the purpose 
of participating in contract negotiations. Employee members of Association’s bargaining 
committee shall be extended the same privilege to participate in any meetings mutually 
called by the parties during the term of this agreement for review of grievances and 
contract compliance questions. 

ARTICLE 5.00 HIRING PROVISIONS 

 

5.01 NON-DISCRIMINATION 

No Employee covered by this Agreement shall be discriminated against by the Employer, 
or by the Association by reason of race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin, or sexual 
orientation or any other factors consistent with State and Federal Law. 

5.02 EMPLOYMENT 

The Employer shall not discharge or otherwise discriminate against any Employee by 
reason of any Association activity not interfering with the proper performance of his/her 
work. 

5.03 SIGNING BONUS 

Sworn employees hired as a Lateral Officer after August 5, 2012 may receive a one-time 

signing bonus of up to $2,000 upon the successful completion of probation and obtaining 

regular full-time employment status.  A Lateral Officer is defined as an applicant who is 

currently working for a recognized law enforcement agency, has successfully completed 

the probation period for that agency, and possesses a State of California Basic POST 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



7 
 

Certificate. The City Manager shall make the determination as to the amount.  The 

amount of the signing bonus shall be specified in the hire-letter.  

ARTICLE 6.00 JOB CLASSIFICATION 

 

6.01 NEW JOB CLASSIFICATIONS 

If an Employee covered by this Agreement is assigned work of a substantially new or 
different nature so as to constitute a new job classification, the Employer and the 
Association will negotiate regarding the wage rate applicable to such new job 
classification 

ARTICLE 7.00 HOURS OF WORK, SHIFT, SCHEDULES, AND REST PERIODS 

 

7.01 WORK SCHEDULE AND CHANGE OF SHIFT 

Prior to the applicable pay period, the Police Chief or his/her designated representative 
shall prepare a schedule showing the hours each employee of the department is, at the 
time of posting, to work. The Police Chief shall make every effort to assure that no 
employee shall have more than one change of shift in any calendar month. This paragraph 
does not limit the Police Chiefs authority to revise schedules as need permits. 

7.02 SHIFT 

For sworn personnel and Community Service Officers, hours of work in the normal 
workday shall be ten (10) hours for police officers and police sergeants, except for 
detective bureau personnel, which is (8) hours. While they are assigned to the detective 
bureau, the sick leave accrual provisions of this MOU that are applicable to 5/8 

employees will be applicable to such employees. 

 

7.03 ASSIGNING WORK SHIFTS 

In assigning work shifts, the department shall give due regard to assigning shifts which 
will not disrupt or interrupt any employee’s education or training programs and schedules. 
Undesirable work shifts shall not be used as punishment, intimidation, or harassment. 
Shift assignments shall be carried out in accordance with department policy. 

7.03.1 SUCCESSIVE SHIFTS 

It is understood that the assignment of shifts is a prerogative of management that has been 
delegated to the Chief of Police. It has been the practice to assign at an officer’s request, 
on the basis of seniority, the same shift for two successive shift changes. It is understood 
that this practice will be continued for the duration of this MOU. Although the 
assignment of successive shifts remains with the Chief of Police, should an officer allege 
that such assignment has been made in an arbitrary or discriminatory manner, the matter 
may be reviewed through the City Manager level of the Grievance Procedure. 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



8 
 

7.03.2 SPECIAL EVENT ASSIGNMENTS 

The parties agree that except as required in Departmental Order No. 2, “Manpower 
Deployment” dated December 15, 1987, Item III A, Holiday Staffing and III B Overtime 
Shifts, any special event outside of a member’s work schedule shall receive 30 days 
notice which will include the following: location, time and hours to be worked. If this 
condition is not met, the officer or sergeant will not be required to work the event (a 
special event is not an emergency).   

7.04 MEAL AND REST PERIODS 

A meal period of 30 minutes shall be provided to all other employees during each 
assigned shift no sooner than 3 hours after commencement of the shift and not later than 3 
hours prior to the end of the shift. Such meal period for sworn officers (including those on 
detective assignment) and community service officers shall be considered time worked. 

ARTICLE 8.00 OVERTIME 

 

8.01 REGULAR/OVERTIME HOURS 

The normal workweek for all bargaining unit employees shall consist of forty (40) hours. 
Except as provided in section 18.02 (regarding canine care), all work in excess of forty 
hours in a workweek shall be considered overtime and shall be compensated pursuant to 
the provisions of Sections 8.00-8.06 of this agreement. 

8.02 COMPENSATION/OVERTIME AUTHORIZATION 

No employee shall receive compensation for overtime, whether in cash, or in time off, or 
a combination, unless such overtime work has been approved by the Police Chief or his 
designated representative. 

 

8.03 COMPENSATION/OVERTIME 

All overtime work shall be compensated at the rate of one and one-half times the hourly 
rate in cash. Overtime compensation shall be paid in the paycheck covering the pay period 
in which the overtime was worked. Except as otherwise provided in Labor Code Section 
204.3, at the option of the employee, compensatory time off may be earned in lieu of cash. 
Up to 120 hours may be accumulated. Any time over that maximum shall be in cash at 
time and one-half. Compensatory time off will be scheduled by means of management 
responding to the requests of the employees. Such requests will not be arbitrarily or 
unreasonably denied. 

8.04 OVERTIME NOT CUMULATIVE 

Any hours worked which qualify as overtime under one measurement may not be used 

under another measurement. 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



9 
 

8.05 FRACTIONS OF LESS THAN FIFTEEN MINUTES 

No overtime payment shall be allowed for any period of less than fifteen minutes, and 
fractions of less than fifteen minutes of overtime worked may not be accumulated in order 
to total fifteen minutes or more, except where such fractions are part of a regularly 
scheduled shift. 

8.06 OTHER 

Court appearances and callbacks may also, at times, result in overtime. See Articles17.00 
and 15.00 respectively. Overtime may occur as a result of the last paragraph of section 
11.00. 

ARTICLE 9.00 HEALTH AND SAFETY 

 

9.01 APPLICABLE LAWS  

 Employer shall comply with all applicable state, federal, and local safety regulations and 
shall furnish to all employee’s safety equipment required by law or deemed necessary by 
the Police Chief. 

9.02 LABOR MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

 The City and the Association agree during the term of this agreement to establish a labor 

management committee that will seek to reduce the incidents and cost of industrial injury 

and provide opportunities to improve employee fitness. 

ARTICLE 10.00 UNIFORMS 

 

10.01 UNIFORMS 

 The employer will purchase initial uniforms for newly hired uniformed employees and 
will repair or replace uniforms including uniform boots, on an as-needed basis. 

The City will designate a police captain to whom the officer will submit the uniform 
request for authorization for repair or replacement. If the officer disagrees with the 
captain’s decision with regard to the necessity for repair or replacement, he or she may 
have the dispute reviewed by the Chief of Police through the grievance procedure 
included in this MOU. 

In addition, the employer will cover the cost of reasonable cleaning of departmentally 
authorized uniforms. Employees will be responsible for delivering uniforms to, and 
retrieving uniforms from, the employer-designated cleaning establishment. 

Police Officers and Sergeants assigned to the Detective unit shall be eligible to choose 
EITHER the repair, cleaning and replacement policy for their official uniforms as 
provided in Section 10.01 above OR a uniform allowance of $50.00 per month for the 
duration of their assignment to the Detective Division. (The latter choice will be shown as 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



10 
 

taxable income on an Employee’s W-2 form.) 

Compensation paid or the monetary value for the purchase, rental and/or maintenance of 
required uniforms will be reported to CalPERS, to the extent allowable by CalPERS. 

10.02 MOTOR DUTY UNIFORM 

 Employer agrees to provide the following items for Police Officers and Sergeants 
assigned to motorcycle duty: two pairs of motorcycle pants; one pair motorcycle boots 
and one pair of gloves. Police Officers shall also be entitled to an allowance for safety 
glasses not to exceed $20.00. 

ARTICLE 11.00 HOLIDAYS 

 

Holidays will be expressed as an annual (calendar year) bank of hours and taken as 
scheduling permits. Employees working 4/10 schedules shall receive 150 hours per 
calendar year and employees working 5/8 schedules shall receive 120 hours per calendar 
year. Upon termination, if an employee has not actually taken as much holiday time as a 
pro-rated amount, he/she will be entitled to compensation for the unused portion. For 
instance, if a 4/10 employee whose last day was June 30 had taken only 55 hours of 
holiday time, (s)he would be entitled to 20 hours of compensation. Personal Holidays are 
included in the foregoing 150/120 hourly figures, and not in addition to them. Employees 
working 4/10 schedules will be debited for 10 holiday hours when they take time off as a 
holiday; those working 5/8 schedules will be debited for 8 hours. 

For Sergeants and Records Manager, December 25th will be a paid holiday if not worked 

(and 10 hours and 8 hours, respectively, of holiday time will be consumed).  If worked, 

employee will be paid time and one half. 

ARTICLE 12.00 FLEXIBLE SPENDING ARRANGEMENT CONTRIBUTIONS 

A   The City makes a flexible spending arrangement (Flex Plan) contribution on behalf of 

each 

employee.  For those employees who have selected health coverage though PERS, from 

the monthly contribution set forth herein, $115 effective January 1, 2013 will be paid to 

PERS for what is sometimes referred to as “employer contribution”. This amount is the 

minimum amount required by PERS, recognizing that state law may increase this 

minimum from time to time requiring compliance by City. For all employees who receive 

a Flex Plan contribution, a $1.50 per paycheck plan fee is paid from the monthly 

contribution set forth herein. Effective 8/18/13, the contribution for full time regular 

employees in this unit is 

 

 

The City makes a flexible spending arrangement (“Flex Plan”) contribution on behalf of 

each qualified employee for medical, dental & vision coverage. For those employees who 

have selected health coverage through PERS, from the monthly contribution set forth 

herein, effective January 1, 2018 a $133.00 per month contribution will be paid to PERS 

for what is sometimes referred to as “employer contribution”. This amount is the 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



11 
 

minimum amount required by PERS, recognizing that state law may increase this 

minimum from time to time requiring compliance by City.  The City’s maximum 

contribution below is inclusive of the required PEMCHA minimum.   

 

 

Employee Only:            $700 per month 

Employee + 1:               $899 per month 

Employee + 2 or more: $1,099 per month 

Effective July 1, 2014 the City will increase its contribution by 2.5% to: 

 Employee Only  $718 

 Employee +1  $921 

 Employee+2 or more $1,126 

Effective July 1, 2015 the City will increase its contribution by 2.5% to: 

 Employee Only  $735 

 Employee +1  $945 

 Employee+2 or more $1,155 

Effective July 1, 2016 the City will increase its contribution by 2.5% to: 

 Employee Only  $754 

 Employee +1  $968 

 Employee+2 or more $1,184 

Effective July 1, 2017 the City will increase its contribution by 2.5% to: 

 Employee Only  $773 

 Employee +1  $992 

 Employee+2 or more $1,213 

 

Effective Dates Employee Only Employee +1 Employee +2 

First full pay period 

after ratification 

$800.00 $1,150.00 $1,400.00 

First full pay period in 

July 2019 

$825.00 $1,300.00 $1,600.00 

First Full pay period in 

July 2020 

$850.00 $1,400.00 $1,800.00 

 

 

Employees who can verify to the City’s satisfaction that: they have equivalent health 

coverage for medical (including dental & vision) provided through their spouse, which 

will remain in effect until the next enrollment date; or who purchase a Cal PERS Health 

Plan and dental and vision coverage, but do not use their entire monthly contribution, 

may use the remaining funds to purchase benefits other than medical (including dental & 

vision) coverage or take this amount in cash for the employee only contribution amount. 

(If a cash payment is taken, it is not included in the employee’s compensation for the Cal 

PERS retirement plan) 

 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



12 
 

B.   Employees who can verify to the City’s satisfaction that: they have equivalent group 

health coverage for medical (including dental & vision), which will remain in effect until 

the next enrollment date will be eligible for a cash payment of $250.00 per month.  

 

B.   Employees who can verify to the City’s satisfaction that: they have equivalent group 

health coverage for medical (including dental & vision), which will remain in effect until 

the next enrollment date will be eligible for a cash payment based on the following 

schedule.  A “Current Grandfathered Employee” is defined as an employee hired prior to 

the ratification of the successor MOU and receiving cash-in lieu of health coverage.  

Current Grandfathered Employees who choose health coverage after the ratification of the 

successor MOU will no longer be eligible for the Current Grandfathered Employee cash 

payment amount after making such choice of health coverage. 

 

Effective Dates Current 

Grandfathered 

Employees (as of 

effective date of the 

successor MOU)  

Non- Current 

Grandfathered 

Employees and New 

Employees 

First full pay period 

after ratification 

$773.00 $250.00 

First full pay period in 

December 2018 

$700.00 $250.00 

First full pay period in 

December 2019 

$600.00 $250.00 

First full pay period in 

December 2020 

$500.00 $250.00 

 

C.    The City reserves the option of adding additional programs to the cafeteria plan, as 

they may become available.  The City will enable interested employees to participate in 

union sponsored medical plans.  

 

ARTICLE 13.00 INSURANCE 

 

The City provides full time members of the Association term life insurance in the 
amount of $50,000 and long-term disability insurance. 

ARTICLE 14.00 EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVE PROGRAM 

 

14.01  EDUCATIONAL INCENTIVE PAY 

After successful completion of the probationary period, sworn police personnel and the 
Records Manager shall be eligible to have base pay increased by an additional two and 
one-half (2.5%) for completion of thirty (30) college units, five (5%) percent for 
completion of sixty (60) college units, and seven and a half (7.5%) percent for 
completion of a bachelor’s degree from an accredited institution. College units may 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



13 
 

include graduate level work. Courses and degrees must be work related as approved by 
the Department Head and City Manager. 

 To receive Educational Incentive, Pay, the Employee shall write a memo to his/her 
supervisor and include a copy of transcripts as evidence of the number of units required 
for the appropriate incentive pay. The supervisor will review the memo and send it to 
the Police Chief, who, in turn, will review it and send it to the City Manager for 
approval. 

14.02  SWORN EDUCATIONAL REIMBURSEMENT 

Beginning July 1, 2008, the education incentive is limited to a maximum of $500 per 
year per employee; beginning July 1, 2009 the limited maximum amount will increase 
to $1,000 per year per employee, with 100% textbook reimbursement. It is agreed by 
the City and the Association to negotiate in good faith on this provision upon the 
termination of the Memorandum of Understanding. 

14.03  COMMUNITY SERVICE OFFICE EDUCATIONAL REIMBURSEMENT 

Community Service Officer Education Reimbursement: Beginning July 1, 2008, the 

City  will reimburse employees for tuition upon the completion of courses with a grade 

C or better, approved in advance by the City Manager, up to a maximum of $500 per 

calendar year for classes completed in that same calendar year. Beginning July 1, 2009, 

the limited maximum amount will increase to $1,000 per year per employee, with 100% 

textbook reimbursement. 

14.04  P.O.S.T. CERTIFICATE PAY - POLICE OFFICERS 

P.O.S.T. Certificate Pay was eliminated effective 7/1/90, however, all police officers 
receiving P.O.S.T. Certificate Pay at that time will continue to receive it. This 
Certificate Pay may not be collected in addition to education incentive pay or career 
officer program pay. 

14.05  P.O.S.T. CERTIFICATE PAY - POLICE SERGEANTS 

Sergeants shall be eligible to receive 2.5% increase in base pay for completion of the 
intermediate P.O.S.T. Certificate; 5% for completion of the Advanced P.O.S.T. 
Certificate; and 7.5% for completion of the P.O.S.T. Supervisory Certificate provided 
the employee has an A.A., A.S. or equivalent Degree. This Certificate Pay may not be 
collected in addition to education incentive pay. This program became effective 7-1-85. 

To receive P.O.S.T. pay, the Sergeant shall write a memo to his/her supervisor 
including a copy of the appropriate P.O.S.T. Certificate. The Supervisor shall review 
the memo and send it to the Police Chief, who, in turn, shall review it and send it to the 
City Manager for review, and, if approved, it will be effective the first of the month 
after approval. 

14.06  CAREER OFFICER PROGRAM - POLICE OFFICERS ONLY 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



14 
 

In accordance with standards set by Personnel Directive #4 dated November 15, 1988 the 
City agrees to compensate police officers qualifying under the career officer program by 
increasing base pay rates in the following percentages: 

Senior Officer I  2.5% 

Senior Officer II Additional 2.5% more than Senior Officer I 

Master Officer Additional 2.5% more than Senior Officer II 

An officer is eligible for either the Educational Incentive Program or for the Career Officer 

Program but may not receive payment under both programs. 

ARTICLE 15.00 CALLBACK PAY - POLICE OFFICERS, POLICE SERGEANTS AND 

RECORDS MANAGER 

 

Any Police Officer, Police Sergeant or Records Manager who has departed from his/her 
work location and is called back to work shall be guaranteed a minimum of four hours 
compensation at the overtime rate for each call-back. If the employee is no longer needed 
and at the employee’s request, he/she can leave the work location and be paid at overtime 
rates for time actually worked. When called back, the canine officer and Detectives will 
receive a minimum of two hours pay at the overtime rate regardless of the number of hours 
actually worked. All hours worked in excess of the minimum call back shall be paid at 
overtime rates. 

 

ARTICLE 16.00 NIGHT DIFFERENTIAL - POLICE OFFICERS, POLICE 

SERGEANTS & RECORDS MANAGER 

 

The Employer shall compensate Police Officers, Police Sergeants and Records Manager 
who on a regularly scheduled basis work fifty percent (50%) or more per month of their 
time on swing or graveyard shift, a night differential pay of $.50 per hour for hours 
worked on swing shift, and $.75 per hour for hours worked on graveyard shift. Temporary 
assignments or emergency assignments for a short period of time and not on a regularly 
scheduled basis shall not be eligible for night differential pay. 

 

ARTICLE 17.00 COURT APPEARANCES 

Any employee who is required to testify in court in connection with an employee’s usual, 
official duties, or in connection with a case in which the City is a party, during his normal 
working hours shall be allowed to do so without any loss of pay. For hours in court 
outside of normal assigned duty hours, employees shall be compensated for a minimum 
of four (4) hours pay at time and a half pay. If notice of cancellation is made to employee 
either through the recorded telephone message from the court or from the officer’s 
personal voice mailbox by 6:00 p.m. the day prior to scheduled appearance, no payment 
will be made. 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



15 
 

ARTICLE 18.00 TRAINING OFFICER COMPENSATION 

Those positions designated by the Police Chief as Field Training Officer or Patrol 
Training Officer shall receive an additional five percent (5%) of salary, or pro-rated 
portion thereof, per month for the period actually engaged in training. 

ARTICLE 19.00 SPECIALTY PAY 

 

19.01 DETECTIVE PAY  

 Individuals assigned to the Detective Bureau shall be additionally compensated at the rate 
of five (5%) percent of base pay for performing detective duties. It is understood that this 
assignment is a rotational one and movement from the Detective Bureau shall not be 
considered a disciplinary action unless done for disciplinary reasons. 

19.02 CANINE PAY  

 Police Officers assigned as Canine Officers will receive additional compensation at the 
rate of five (5%) percent of base pay for the care and maintenance of their dog, whether 
the actual time is slightly more or less than that. The parties mutually agree that this is 
adequate for care and maintenance. 

19.03 LONGEVITY PAY  

  Upon completion of ten (10) continuous years of service with the City, all employees 
covered by this MOU will receive additional compensation of five (5) percent of base 
pay. Effective the first full pay period after Union ratification and Council adoption of 
this MOU, upon completion of  twenty (20)  continuous years of service with the City of 
Capitola, all employees covered by this MOU will receive additional compensation of 
and additional five (5%) percent of base pay.  

19.04   MOTORCYCLE PATROL PAY 

  Effective the first full pay period after Union ratification and Council adoption of this 
MOU,  Police Officers assigned by the Department to Motor Cycle Patrol will receive 
additional compensation at the rate of two and one half (2.5%) percent of base pay while 
in that assignment in full time status.  

ARTICLE 20.00 ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION 

20.01   FOR TEMPORARY ASSIGNMENT TO A HIGHER LEVEL VACANCY 

An employee specifically assigned on a temporary basis to a higher level position shall be 
compensated at the pay rate for the higher level position if the service in such position 
exceeds a total of twenty days at any one time in any twelve-month period, which 
payment shall be retroactive to the first day of such services; provided, however, that the 
employee meets the minimum qualifications for the higher level position and the full 
range of duties of the higher level position is assigned. The out-of-title pay level shall be 
the lowest step of the salary schedule of the temporarily assigned position that will 
provide a salary increase of at least 5%. 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



16 
 

20.02   POSITIONS DESIGNATED BILINGUAL 

Upon the recommendation of the Police Chief or his designated representative and the 
approval of the City Manager, no more than two persons occupying a position designated 
as requiring fluency in a language other than English shall receive an additional five 
percent (5%) of salary. 

ARTICLE 21.00 LEAVES OF ABSENCE 

 

21.01   LEAVE MAY NOT EXCEED ONE YEAR 

A leave of absence without pay may be granted by the City Manager upon the request of 
the employee seeking such leave. Each request will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis. 

21.02   NO LEAVE TO ACCEPT OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT 

A leave of absence without pay may not be granted to a person accepting either private or 
public employment outside the service of the City of Capitola. 

21.03   MILITARY LEAVE 

The Employer agrees to provide employees all military leave benefits guaranteed under 
federal, state and case law. 

21.04   LEAVE FOR JURY DUTY 

Leave of absence with pay shall be granted to a person while serving on jury duty, 
including time spent going to and from court and serving on jury duty.  Any jury fee 
awarded to such person shall be deposited with the City Treasurer.  Any person assigned 
to an afternoon or evening shift shall be entitled to equal time off leave with pay from his 
or her next regularly scheduled shift for all time spent while going to and from court and 
serving jury duty. 

 

 

 

 

ARTICLE 22.00 VACATION 

 

22.01 ACCRUAL 

Effective 12/1/00, all employees in this unit shall accrue vacation as set forth in the following 
chart. The rates shown are for full time employees. On the effective date of this plan, all 
employees in the unit are full time. If a position hereafter is occupied on less than a full 
time basis, the rates of accrual will be adjusted as set forth in Section 4 (b) of the attached 
standard provisions. The rate at which vacation accrues is not affected by whether or not 
overtime is worked in a pay period. Vacation accrues while on sick leave, except that it 
does not accrue after the date of separation. Employees working 4/10 schedules and those 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



17 
 

working 5/8 schedules will both be debited for 40 hours of vacation for each complete 
week (Sunday through Saturday) of vacation taken. For partial weeks, a 4/10 employee 
will be debited 10 hours for each day of vacation taken that the employee would have 
been scheduled to work if vacation had not been taken; 8 hours for 5/8 employees. 

 Year of Service  Number of Hours/Years 
1 80 
2 80 
3 100 
4 100 
5 120 
6 130 
7 140 
8-9 150 
10-14 160 
15-17 170 
18-19 180 
20+ 200   

An employee is in the first ‘year of service” from the first through the 365th day of 
employment and (except leap years) on the 366th day is in the second year of service. 

22.02 MAXIMUM VACATION ACCUMULATION 

(1) An employee may generally not accumulate more than, but instead each year must 

cash out pursuant to Section 22.04, below, all accumulated vacation in excess of 

504 hours; except that 

(2) An employee who had accumulated more than 504 hours as of 6/30/94 may 

maintain that level: provided, however, that if accumulated vacation falls below 

504 hours, the provisions of (1), above, shall thereafter apply. 

22.02 VACATION CASH OUT ON TERMINATION 

Upon termination, an employee shall be paid for all accumulated vacation to the 
separation date, at a rate equal to 100% of his/her current hourly pay rate. 

 

22.03 VACATION – MANDATORY CASH OUT BEFORE TERMINATION 

An employee who has accumulated more than 504 hours as of the last pay period in April 
of any year shall be paid in cash at a rate equal to 100% of his/her current hourly pay rate 
for all hours in excess of 504 except that such payment shall not exceed the employees 
annual vacation accrual amount These cash out payments will be included with the 
paycheck for the first full pay period in May. 

22.04 VACATION ACCRUAL AND USAGE BEGINNING DATES 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



18 
 

Vacation will begin to accrue as of the date of employment. An employee may take 
vacation upon the completion of one year of service. 

22.05 MAXIMUM/MINIMUM ANNUAL VACATION LEAVE 

In all instances, the Employee shall have the right to take the earned equivalent of one 
year’s vacation accumulation at one time. In the event the Employee wishes to take more 
than one year’s accumulation, approval of the supervisor is required. 

22.06 EFFECT ON LEAVE WITHOUT PAY ON VACATION CREDIT 

No vacation credit shall be earned during the period when an employee is absent on leave 
without pay. 

22.07.01 WHEN VACATION MAY BE TAKEN - ALL EMPLOYEES BUT 

SERGEANTS AND RECORDS SUPERVISOR 

On December 1st of each year, the Patrol Captain and POA President will post a vacation 
schedule calendar. All such employees will pick one “major” block of vacation in order of 
seniority. All vacation picks will be made with regard to Section 21.07.03 of this 
Memorandum and current Department policy. The calendar will be submitted to the Patrol 
Captain no later than January 15th. 

Other vacation requests will be submitted in accordance with current practice and seniority 
will prevail in the event of conflicts between employees. The POA President and the 
Association will handle all conflicts. 

22.07.02 WHEN VACATION MAY BE TAKEN - SERGEANTS AND RECORDS 

SUPERVISOR 

The Police Chief or his designated representative shall in each case determine when 
vacation leave may be taken. Sergeants and records supervisors shall be allowed to divide 
their vacation leave in any calendar year into segments. 

 

22.07.03 VACATION CONFLICTS 

 Seniority in the City service among employees in a classification and working unit, 
consistent with department operating requirements, shall be the basis on which 
vacation schedule conflicts are resolved. In any calendar year, the first such conflict’ 
shall be resolved in favor of the most senior employee. Subsequent vacation schedule 
conflicts shall be resolved in favor of the most senior employee who has not, by virtue 
of his senior position, previously had such a conflict resolved in his favor during the 
calendar year. In the event of vacation schedule conflicts among such employees, all 
of whom have, by virtue of their senior positions, had such conflicts resolved in their 
favor during the calendar year, the senior employee who has had the least number of 
such conflicts resolved in his favor shall prevail. Vacation leave can be started on any 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



19 
 

day of the week. 

22.08 RATE OF VACATION PAY 

Compensation during vacation shall be at the rate of compensation that such person 
would have been entitled to receive if working at the time vacation occurs. 

ARTICLE 23.00 SICK LEAVE 

 

23.01 ACCRUAL 

Sick leave accrues at rate of 120 hours per year for sworn officers and Community 
Service Officers, and all unit employees working a 5/8 shift including Detectives and the 
Records Manager shall accrue ninety-six (96) hours of sick leave per year. The rate at 
which ‘sick leave accrues is not affected by whether or not overtime is worked in a pay 
period. Sick leave accrues on a prorated basis, based upon a 30-day month. Accrued but 
unused sick leave has no cash value and shall not be cashed out. 

23.02 LABOR CODE SECTION 4850 

Nothing in this article will be deemed to supersede Labor Code Section 4850. 

23.03 SICK LEAVE USAGE 

A 4/10 employee will be debited 10 hours for each day of sick leave taken that the 
employee would have been scheduled to work if sick leave had not been taken; 8 hours 
for a 5/8 employee. 

23.04 MEDICAL REPORT 

To the maximum extent allowable under the Family and Medical leave Act and the 
Family Rights Act, the Police Chief, as a condition, of granting sick leave with pay, may 
require medical evidence of sickness or injury acceptable to the Police Chief, which may 
include a statement of diagnosis and treatment from a licensed physician or a medical 
clearance to return to work. Absent exceptional circumstances, no medical evidence will 
be requested for absences of three or less consecutive days. 

23.05 EMERGENCY LEAVE: SICKNESS IN IMMEDIATE FAMILY 

Leave of absence with pay because of sickness or injury or disability in the immediate 

family of an employee may be granted by the Police Chief during the time reasonably 

necessary to care for the sick person or arrange for care of the sick person by others, but 

not to exceed the amount of accrued sick leave of such person.  Time taken for leave of 

absence under the provisions of this subsection shall be deducted from the accrued sick 

leave of such person.  For the purposes of this subsection “immediate family” means 

mother, step-mother, father, step-father, husband, wife, son, step-son, daughter, step-

daughter, foster parent, foster child, or any person sharing the relationship of in loco 

parentis; and when living in the household of the employee, a brother, sister, brother-in-

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



20 
 

law, sister-in-law, mother-in-law, father-in-law and grandparents. The chief’s 

discretionary authority under this section does not lessen any employee rights under the 

FMLA or CFRA. 

23.06  BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 

Leave of absence with pay because of death in the immediate family of an employee shall 

be granted for a period not to exceed three days. Entitlement to leave of absence under 

this section shall be in addition to any other entitlement for sick leave, or any other leave. 

For purposes of this section, “immediate family” means mother, step-mother, father, step 

father, husband, wife, son, step-son, daughter, step-daughter, brother, sister, foster parent, 

foster child, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, mother-in-law, father-in-law and grandparents. 

ARTICLE 24.00 WAGES & EMPLOYMENT STATUS (SEE ATTACHMENT A) 

 

All wages for employees covered by this Agreement shall be paid in accordance with the 

provisions of the attached wage schedule and progression through the steps will be in 

accordance with Article 24.05. 

24.01. WAGES SCHEDULES/HOURLY RATES 

 The wage schedules contained in, or attached to, this Memorandum of Understanding set 

forth the base pay, subject to such adjustments (such as longevity pay) as are specifically 

set forth in this MOU. Letters, such as “A” to “F”, designate the respective pay steps for 

each position. The rates contained in the wage schedule do not include overtime or 

benefits. 

  Whenever it is necessary to compute an hourly pay rate in order to apply any provision of 
this MOU, that will be done by multiplying any monthly rate by 12 in order to derive an 
annual rate, and dividing the annual rate by 2080 (or proportionate number of hours for 
part time positions, e.g., 1040 for a half-time position). 

24.02. SERVICE 

The word “service” as used in this Memorandum of Understanding means continuous 

full-time service in the position in which the employee is being considered for salary 

advancement, service in a higher position, or service in a position allocated to the same 

salary schedule and having generally similar duties and requirements. A lapse of service 

of any employee for a period of time longer than thirty days by reason of resignation or 

discharge shall serve to eliminate the accumulated length of service time of such 

employee, and any such employee re-entering the service of the City shall be considered 

as a new employee. 

24.03. TYPES OF APPOINTMENT 

a. Probationary Appointment 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



21 
 

A probationary appointment is for a specified period of time, during which job 

performance is evaluated as a basis for subsequent regular appointment 

b. Regular Appointments 

A regular appointment ordinarily follows successful completion of a probationary 

period. “Regular” means a position that is, regardless of the number of hours worked 

per week, intended to be continuous and uninterrupted (except for authorized paid or 

unpaid leave). Positions intended to be seasonal, of a limited term, on call only, 

emergency, intermittent, substitute, or on any other irregular basis are not “regular.” 

The positions set forth in the wage schedule are all regular positions, and unless 

specifically stated, the pay rate is applicable to a full-time position. All positions 

covered by this section are half time or more. 

c. Acting appointments 

An acting appointment occurs when an employee is temporarily assigned to, and 
performs all the duties of, a position other than the position he/she normally occupies, 
or when an employee is assigned an acting appointment pending evaluation of the 
employee’s ability to perform the duties of the position. 

d. Accruals for part time positions 

When a position is less than full time it will be classified by a fraction. For example, 
“half-time” regular employment is expected to average 20 hours per week, “three-
quarters” employment is expected to average 30 hours per week. Vacation accrual, 
sick leave accrual, Flex Plan contributions, holidays, personal holidays are paid or 
accrued according to these classifications. Thus, compared to a full-time employee, a 
half-time employee, even if actual time occasionally exceeds or falls below 20 hours 
in a week, when compared to a full time employee: receives one-half the Flex Plan 
contribution; accrues one-half the number of hours of vacation or sick leave; and is 
paid for four hours on a holiday or personal holiday. 

24.04. BEGINNING SALARY RATES 

A new employee’s base pay shall be computed by using the rate shown as step “A” in 
the schedule allocated to the class of employment for which the employee has been 
hired, except that upon recommendation of the department head under whom the 
employee will serve and with the approval of the City Manager, such new employee 
may be employed at a higher step, depending upon the employee’s qualifications. 

24.05. ADVANCEMENT WITHIN THE SCHEDULE  

The following provisions govern salary advancement within the schedule: 

a. Probationary advancement 

Upon successful completion of probation, an employee (except an employee that was 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



22 
 

hired at the top step) will advance one step. 

b. Regular Merit advancement 

An employee may be considered for advancement upon completion of the minimum 
length of service specified for step increases. Unless specifically otherwise stated, this 
will be 12 months for full-time appointments and proportionately adjusted for other 
appointments. For instance, half-time appointments will be evaluated for regular merit 
adjustments every 24 months. Advancement to higher steps shall be granted only for 
continued meritorious and efficient service and continued improvement by the 
employee in the effective performance of the duties of the position held. 

c. Special Merit advancement 

When an employee consistently demonstrates exceptional ability and proficiency in 
the performance of assigned duties, the supervising department head may recommend 
to the City Manager that said employee be advanced to a higher pay step without 
regard to the minimum length of service provisions contained in this MOU. The City 
Manager may approve and effect such advancement. 

d. Denial of advancement 

When an employee has not been approved for advancement to the next higher wage 
step, such employee may be reconsidered for such advancement after the completion 
of three months of additional service. 

24.06. PROMOTION TO A NEW POSITION 

When an employee is promoted to a position in a higher classification, such employee 

shall be assigned to step “A” in the appropriate schedule for the higher classification. 

However, if such employee is already being paid at a rate equal to or higher than step 

“A”, he/she shall be placed in the step in the appropriate salary schedule which will grant 

such employee a salary increases of not less than 5%. 

24.07. EFFECTIVE DATE OF A PAY INCREASE  

A merit pay advancement for an employee shall become effective on the first day of the 

pay period in which the minimum length of service has been satisfactorily completed. All 

other pay rate changes, except those given a specific calendar date herein, shall become 

effective at the beginning of a two week pay period as approved by the City Manager. 

24.08 PAY INCREASE SCHEDULE 

• There shall be no salary increases during the 2013 – 2014 fiscal year 

• Effective the first full pay period in July 2014, the salary range for each 

classification in this Unit shall be adjusted based on the U.S. Department of 

Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose Consumer 

Price Index, All Items 1982-84 = 100 for All Urban Consumers, Annual 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



23 
 

Average January - December changes for calendar year 2013 up to a 

maximum of 3%.  

• Effective the first full pay period in July 2015, the salary range for each 

classification in this Unit shall be adjusted based on the U.S. Department of 

Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose Consumer 

Price Index, All Items 1982-84 = 100 for All Urban Consumers, Annual 

Average January - December changes for calendar year 2014) up to a 

maximum of 3.5%.  

• Effective the first full pay period in July 2016, the salary range for each 

classification in this Unit shall be adjusted based on the U.S. Department of 

Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose Consumer 

Price Index, All Items 1982-84 = 100 for All Urban Consumers, Annual 

Average January - December changes for calendar year 2015) up to a 

maximum of 3.5%.  

• Effective the first full pay period in July 2017, the salary range for each 

classification in this Unit shall be adjusted based on the U.S. Department of 

Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose Consumer 

Price Index, All Items 1982-84 = 100 for All Urban Consumers, Annual 

Average January - December changes for calendar year 2016) up to a 

maximum of 3.5%.  

• Effective the first pay period after union ratification of the MOU and Council 

approval of the successor MOU in accordance with the Brown Act, the salary 

ranges for all classifications in this Unit shall be readjusted by 2.25%. 

 

• Effective the first full pay period of July 2019, the salary ranges for all 

classifications in this Unit shall be readjusted by 2.25%. 

 

• Effective the first full pay period of July 2020, the salary ranges for all 

classifications in this Unit shall be readjusted by 2.25%. 

 

• Effective the first full pay period of January 2021, the salary ranges for all 

classifications in this Unit shall receive a recruitment and retention salary 

adjustment of 2.25%. 
 

 

ARTICLE 25.00  GRIEVANCES 

 

25.01 DEFINITION 

A grievance is defined as an allegation by an employee or group of employees that the 

Employer has failed to provide a condition of employment, which is established by law, 

Memorandum of Understanding, by written City or departmental rules, provided that the 

enjoyment of such right is not made subject to the discretion of the Police Chief or the 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



24 
 

Employer by the terms of this Memorandum of Understanding and, provided further, that 

the conditions of employment which is the subject matter within the scope of 

representation as defined in California Government Code Section 3504. 

25.02 DEPARTMENT REVIEW AND ADJUSTMENT OF GRIEVANCES 

The following is the procedure to be followed in the resolution of grievances. 

25.02.01 An employee ‘having a grievance shall have the right to consult with and be 

assisted by a representative of his own choice in this and all succeeding steps 

of this subparagraph 23.02 and may thereafter file a grievance in writing with 

his immediate supervisor. Within five actual working days after receipt of any 

written grievance, the immediate supervisor shall return a copy of the written 

grievance to the employee with his answer thereto, in writing. 

If the grievance is not resolved at the first level, the employee shall have five 
actual working days after receipt of the answer within which to file an appeal 
with the Captain. The Captain shall have five actual working days in which to 
review and answer the grievance in writing. If the grievance is not resolved at 
this second level, the employee shall have five actual working days after 
receipt of the answer within which to file an appeal with the Police Chief. The 
Police Chief shall have five actual working days in which to review and 
answer the grievance in writing. If the grievance is not resolved at this third 
level, the employee shall have five actual working days from receipt of the 
answer within which to file an appeal with the City Manager. 

25.02.02 The City Manager shall have five actual working days in which to review, and 
if necessary, hold hearings, and answer the grievance in writing. Unless 
waived by the mutual agreement of the employee or his representative and the 
City Manager, a hearing is required at this step, and the employee, and his 
representative, shall have the right to be present at, and participate in such 
hearing. The time limit at this step may be extended by mutual agreement 
between the City Manager and the employee or his representative. The Union 
may, in its own name, file a grievance alleging that the Employer has failed to 
provide it some organizational right which is established by law, provided that 
such right is not made subject to the discretion of the Police Chief or 
Employer. Such Union grievances shall be filed with the City Manager and 
heard and determined pursuant to the provisions of this step of the grievance 
procedure. 

25.02.03 In the event that the grievance is not resolved at the City Manager’s level, the 
Employee may, within ten (10) working days, request that the grievance be 
heard by the City Council. 

25.03 EFFECT OF FAILURE OF TIMELY ACTION 

Failure of the employee to file an appeal within the required time limit at any step shall 
constitute an abandonment of the grievance. Failure of the Employer to respond within 
the time limit at any step shall result in an automatic advancement of the grievance to the 
next step. 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



25 
 

25.04 LIMITATION ON STALE GRIEVANCES 

A grievance shall be void unless presented within twenty-one (21) calendar days from the 
day upon which the Employer has allegedly failed to provide a condition of employment, 
or within twenty-one (21) calendar days from the time at which an employee might 
reasonably have been expected to have learned of such alleged failure to provide. In no 
event shall any grievance include a claim for money relief for more than the twenty-one-
day period plus such reasonable discovery period. 

25.05 EXCLUSION OF NON-RECOGNIZED ORGANIZATIONS 

For the purpose of this section, the provisions of Article 4.00 of this agreement shall not 
be construed to limit the employee’s right of selection of a representative to the extent 
that the agents of any other employee organization which is not party to this agreement, 
are specifically excluded from so acting. In those cases in which an employee elects to 
represent himself or arranges for other representation, Association shall have the right to 
participate in the resolution procedure for the purpose of protecting the interest of its 
members in negotiated conditions of employment. 

ARTICLE 26.00 DEPARTMENTAL VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT 

 

26.01 Patrol Vehicles (Defined). Any motor vehicle as defined under the provisions of Sections 

415 and 165 of the California Vehicle Code. 

26.02 All necessary repairs and maintenance of vehicles (as defined ‘in Section 25.01) shall be 
performed as necessary to insure the safety of the operator of the vehicle. 

26.03 Under no circumstances will a Supervisor or the Department require an employee to 
operate an unsafe patrol vehicle or other equipment. 

26.04 An employee may refuse to operate a vehicle that is unsafe. The watch commander shall 
determine the vehicle’s condition upon an employee complaining of safety hazards. The 
patrol vehicle shall not be used until repaired if a determination is made of safety 
problems. 

26.05 Routine maintenance of a patrol vehicle shall be no less than required by the 
manufacturer. Only high-quality parts and tires will be used on the vehicles. 

26.06 Capitola Police Officers’ Association may review and make recommendations on any 
new patrol or emergency vehicle purchased or leased by the City for use by its members 
prior to putting out bids for purchase purposes. 

26.07 Any equipment necessary for the safety of any operator shall be provided for the 
departmental vehicles. 

26.08 All patrol vehicles will be fitted as nearly as practical with identical controls for activating 
emergency lighting, siren and communication equipment. As new equipment is 
purchased, every effort will be made to locate the controls in the same general area in the 
patrol vehicle. 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



26 
 

ARTICLE 27.00 RETIREMENT - PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

 

27.01 CLASSIC MISCELLANEOUS 

The City participates in the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) 

operated by the State of California. Benefits provided are detailed in separate 

publications, depending upon the plan. City agrees to provide 2.5% at 55 Retirement Plan 

for Classic Miscellaneous employees in the Unit and the single-highest-year option. Each 

member of the bargaining unit agrees to a cap on the amount that the City will pay to 

PERS.  The cap for existing employees is 16.488%.  For all eligible employees hired on 

or after August 5, 2012 the City’s PERS contribution rate shall be capped at no more than 

11.488% of reportable salary.  Once an employee hired on or after August 5, 2012 accrues 

five (5) years of total service, s/he shall be entitled to the same terms that apply to all 

other current employees.   Employer Paid Member Contribution (EPMC), if any and the 

Value of EPMC, if any will be the same for employees hired after August 5, 2012 as 

employees hired prior to that date unless otherwise determined by CalPERS. 

Upon ratification, all Classic Miscellaneous employees shall contribute 13.392% of 

their reportable salary to CalPERS.  This contribution shall not be reduced or 

increased unless negotiated by the parties in future negotiations. 

All employees hired prior to August 5, 2012 the City’s contribution cap shall remain as 

stated above at 16.488%. 

27.02 CLASSIC SWORN 

The City participates in the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) 

operated by the State of California. Benefits provided are detailed in separate 

publications, depending upon the plan. City agrees to provide 3% at 50 Retirement Plan 

for Classic Safety employees in the Unit. and the single-highest-year option. The parties 

understand that when the City’s PERS Excess Assets have significantly decreased, the 

City’s Total Employer Rate will increase:  Each member of the bargaining unit agrees to a 

cap on the amount that the City will pay to PERS. The cap for existing employees is 

28.291%.  For all eligible employees hired on or after August 5, 2012 the City’s PERS 

contribution rate shall be capped at no more than 23.291% of reportable salary. Once an 

employee hired on or after August 5, 2012 accrues five (5) years of total service, s/he 

shall be entitled to the same terms that apply to all other current employees. Employer 

Paid Members Contribution (EPMC), if any and the Value of EPMC, if any will be the 

same for employees hired after August 5, 2012 as employees hired prior to that date 

unless otherwise determined by CalPERS. 

Upon ratification, all Classic Sworn employees shall contribute 14.974% of their 

reportable salary to CalPERS.  This contribution shall not be reduced or increased 

unless negotiated by the parties in future negotiations. 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



27 
 

All employees hired prior to August 5, 2012 the City’s contribution cap shall remain as 

stated above at 28.291%. 

27.03 Should at any time the PERS costs to the City exceed the percentages defined above, the 

employees agree that the portion of the employer paid employee costs or employer paid 

contributions will be reduced and assumed by the employee in an equal percent or any 

part of a percent that actual PERS costs exceed the above caps.  If at any time the 

employer paid employee costs or employer paid member contributions are wholly paid by 

the employee and PERS costs continue to increase the employee will also assume those 

increases.  It is agreed by the City and the Association that this provision expires with the 

termination of this Memorandum of Understanding and is open for negotiation for 

renewal of the next Memorandum of Understanding. 

27.04 With regard to the “Amortization of Side Fund” portion of the employer rate, i.e. the 

portion of the employer rate attributable to the City’s unfunded liability, if PERS should 

in the future decrease that rate as a direct result of a City payment to reduce the Side 

Fund, the City’s cap would reduce by the percentage decrease that PERS identifies as 

resulting from the City payment. This also applies to the 2007 Capitola Pension 

Obligation Bond. 

 

 

27.05 PERS CREDIT 

The City shall expeditiously implement the PERS Credit for Unused Sick Leave and 

employee paid Military Service Credit options. 

27.06 PEPRA EMPLOYEES 

Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act for Safety Employees hired by the City on or 

after January 1, 2013 and who do not qualify as Classic members as determined by 

CalPERS, are considered PEPRA Employees. CalPERS has by statute implement a 2.7% 

@ 55 pension formula, based on a three-year average compensation. Employees in this 

category shall pay minimum of 50% of the normal cost rate as determined by CalPERS. 

Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) for Miscellaneous Employees hired by 

the City on or after January 1, 2013 and who do not qualify as Classic members as 

determined by CalPERS, are considered PEPRA Employees.   CalPERS has by statute 

implemented a 2.0% @ 62 pension formula, based on a three-year average compensation. 

Employees in this category shall pay 50% of the normal cost rate as determined by 

CalPERS. 

ARTICLE 28.00 PHYSICAL EXAMINATIONS 

 

City agrees to pay up to $100 over the amount covered by the health insurance for an 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



28 
 

annual physical exam. 

ARTICLE 29.00 FAMILY & MEDICAL LEAVE ACT OF 1993 

 

The City shall follow the provisions provided for family leave as specified in the federal 

Family & Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA), and the California Family Rights Act 

(CFRA) as they apply to public employers. 

ARTICLE 30.00 MISCELLANEOUS 

 

30.01 POA agrees to waive the Police Department’s past practice of giving a 30-day notice for 
the current shift change. 

30.02 During the term of this agreement, each sworn employee that, in response to the Chief’s 
directive, purchased a tape recorder before 2/15/01 will be reimbursed up to forty ($40) of 
the recorder’s cost. After that date the City will choose between either supplying such 
recorders, or reimbursing the employee up to $40 for such recorders. 

ARTICLE 31.00 DRUG POLICY 

 

 The City has adopted Administrative Policy Number II-6 “USE OF ALCOHOL/DRUGS 

DURING HOURS OF EMPLOYMENT; POSSESSION OF ALCOHOL/DRUGS IN/ON 

PROPERTY; ADVERSE EFFECTS OF USE OF ALCOHOL/DRUGS OUTSIDE 

HOURS OF EMPLOYMENT ON JOB PERFORMANCE”.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



29 
 

ARTICLE 32.00 FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT (FLSA) 

 

 All positions included in this Memorandum of Understanding are covered by appropriate 

sections of the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1935, as amended. 

32.01 SECTION 207(K) AGREEMENT 

A. The City shall exercise its rights under 29 USC section 207(k) to use a 14-day work 

period and 86-hour threshold for FLSA overtime purposes.  Accordingly, FLSA overtime 

shall only be paid when an employee actually works more than 86 hours in 14 days. 

B. Investigators will not receive overtime simply for working their regular schedule (4x9-hr, 

1x8-hr + 4x9hr) each 14 days. 

C. Contractual overtime shall be paid for all hours worked beyond any employee’s regularly 

scheduled hours on a daily or bi-weekly basis.  So any additional hours worked in excess 

of 80 hours biweekly for investigators and 40 hours per week for other employees shall be 

paid as contractual overtime until the requirement to pay FLSA overtime applies.  For 

example, if an employee works 80 hours of regularly–scheduled work in 14 days and 20 

hours of overtime, the first 6 hours of overtime would be contractual overtime with the 

remaining 14 being FLSA overtime.   

D. Approved leave hours shall be treated as “hours worked” for purposes of contractual 

overtime as stated in memo dated September 25, 2002 and referenced by memo date May 

3, 2017. 

E. For eligible employees, FLSA overtime shall include the cash-in-lieu and other required 

premiums in the ”regular rate of pay”.  Contractual overtime will include all premiums 

used in the regular rate of pay except cash-in-lieu of medical contribution. 

 

 

ARTICLE 33.00 CLASSIFICATION AND COMPENSATION STUDY 

 

The parties agree to hold up to five meetings within the period of 180 to 270 calendar 

days prior to the expiration of the contract to reach agreement on the comparable 

agencies, bench mark classes and survey elements of a total compensation study in 

preparation for successor contract negotiation post June 30, 2021.  If the parties are 

unable to reach agreement on the comparable agencies, benchmark classes and survey 

elements of a total compensation study by 180 calendar days of the expiration of the 

contract, the parties are free to conduct their own respective total compensation studies.  

Implementation of any results of any total compensation studies is subject to the 

bargaining process for successor contract negotiations post June 30, 2021. 

 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



30 
 

ARTICLE 34.00 PERSONNEL RULES 

 

The City retains the right to amend and create personnel rules, provided they are not in 

conflict with specific provisions of this MOU. Where appropriate, City will meet and 

confer with applicable employee group or groups consistent with the MMBA requirement 

(Government Code Section 3500 and following), before amending or creating new 

personnel rules. 

ARTICLE 35.00 LAYOFF PROCEDURES  

 

Layoffs shall be governed by Personnel Rule 12, in addition, all sworn members of this 

unit, if being reinstated after a layoff, must be certified by a physician as able to fully 

perform the duties of the sworn position.  The member may choose their own physician, or 

at the member’s request the City will pay for its choice of physician.  The sworn member 

must have a current basic POST certificate prior to reinstatement. 

ARTICLE 36.00 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT  

 

Employees required to use their personal vehicles while on City business will be 
reimbursed at the rate set by the Internal Revenue Service. 

ARTICLE 37.00 SAVINGS CLAUSE 

 

If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid by operation of law or by any 

court of competent jurisdiction, or if compliance with enforcement of any provision shall 

be restrained by any tribunal the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected 

thereby, and the parties shall enter into negotiations for the sole purpose of arriving at a 

mutually satisfactory replacement for such provision. 

ARTICLE 38.00 ENACTMENT 

This Memorandum will be effective on upon ratification.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



31 
 

CITY OF CAPITOLA     CAPITOLA POLICE OFFICERS’ ASSOC. 

 

       ________________________________ 

 

_______________________________  ________________________________ 

Jamie Goldstein 

City Manager       ________________________________  

 

       ________________________________ 

 

________________________________  _________________________________ 

Date        Date 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

SALARY SCHEDULE AS OF OCTOBER 21, 2018 

 
POA SALARY SCHEDULE

OCTOBER 21, 2018 - JUNE 30, 2019

2.25% COLA
Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E Step F Step A Step B Step C Step D Step E Step F

Community Service Officer $4,928.16 $5,176.67 $5,434.32 $5,706.58 $5,993.46 $6,293.14 $28.43 $29.87 $31.35 $32.92 $34.58 $36.31

Police Officer Trainee $5,929.51 $34.21

Police Officer $6,225.53 $6,537.99 $6,863.25 $7,206.78 $7,568.58 $7,946.82 $35.92 $37.72 $39.60 $41.58 $43.66 $45.85

Records Manager $5,679.17 $5,964.23 $6,262.07 $6,574.54 $6,905.27 $7,250.63 $32.76 $34.41 $36.13 $37.93 $39.84 $41.83

Sergeant $7,625.22 $8,007.12 $8,409.12 $8,827.57 $9,271.60 $9,733.90 $43.99 $46.19 $48.51 $50.93 $53.49 $56.16

Monthly Hourly

 

7.F.1

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

O
A

 M
O

U
 2

01
8-

20
21

  (
A

p
p

ro
ve

  P
O

A
 M

O
U

)



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF OCTOBER 25, 2018 

 
FROM:  Community Development 
 
SUBJECT: Consider Appeal of the Planning Commission's Permit Denial for Application 17-

019, 4015 Capitola Road  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Continue application to the January 24, 2019, City Council meeting 
with the understanding the applicant will continue to work with staff to complete a draft 
memorandum of understanding to participate in a future Capitola Mall specific plan, and make a 
good faith effort to submit the following items to the City no later than December 15, 2018: 

1. Updated plans reflecting applicant’s proposed project; 
2. Updated stormwater plans; and 

3. Updated environmental site analysis for facility closure.  
 
Project Overview and Request for Continuance: On February 10, 2017, the applicant submitted 
an application for a design permit to remodel the Sears building and convert the space into 
three separate tenant spaces with updated exterior facades. The west side of the existing Sears 
space would be converted into three tenant spaces to accommodate TJ Maxx/Homegoods 
(40,772 square feet), Petco (11,478 square feet), and Sears (58,741 square feet). The proposal 
included two new 4,000-square-foot building pads, one on 41st Avenue frontage and one on 
Capitola Road frontage, and a Master Sign Program for the three tenants. (Attachment 6: plans; 
Attachment 7: Master Sign Program).  
 
On January 9, 2018, the applicant provided an updated application submittal. Staff determined 
that application was incomplete on February 28, 2018. However, on May 9, 2018, the applicant 
asserted the application was “deemed complete” under the Permit Streamlining Act. On June 7, 
2018, the Planning Commission reviewed the application and denied the application with 
prejudice making findings that the project does not comply with Capitola Municipal Code 13.16 
Stormwater Pollution Prevention and Protection, Resolution No. R3-2013-0032 of the California 
Regional Water Quality Control Board for the Central Coast Region, the Capitola Zoning Code, 
the Capitola General Plan, and Santa Cruz County Code 7.100.060 (Attachment 4).  
 
At that same hearing, the Planning Commission also instructed staff to develop a strategy to 
initiate a specific plan for the Capitola Mall site to guide future development that aligns with the 
General Plan. A denial with prejudice prohibits the City from accepting an application for the 
same or substantially similar permit for the same site within 12 months following the denial.  
 
On June 15, 2018, the City Clerk received an appeal of the Planning Commission’s decision 
from the applicants’ attorney (Attachment 1). At the applicant’s request, the City Council set the 
appeal date for October 25, 2018.  

8.A

Packet Pg. 93



Appeal of Application 17-019, 4015 Capitola Road  
October 25, 2018 
 
 
On August 22, 2018, Sears announced the Capitola retail store would close in November. In 
early October, the applicant contacted staff and requested a continuance of the appeal due to 
the change in circumstance for Sears. Staff explained that with four months preparation time for 
the appeal, incomplete environmental analysis and stormwater plans, and no new submittals to 
show the applicant has been working to resolve the outstanding issues identified by the 
Planning Commission, staff would not be able to recommend a continuance.  
 
On October 16, 2018, the applicant submitted a draft outline of a potential memorandum of 
understanding (MOU) to partner with the City to prepare a future specific plan for the Capitola 
Mall. The draft outline includes:  

1. Financial contribution by Seritage to a future specific plan for the Capitola Mall;  
2. Seritage participation as a stakeholder in the development of the specific plan, phasing, 

and environmental review; 
3. Updated project description; and 
4. Discretion/intent to implement the specific plan including site improvements, fair share 

obligations, development called for in the specific plan, and a phase-out strategy for any 
existing non-conforming uses. 

 
On October 10, 2018, the County of Santa Cruz verified the applicant has applied for a facility 
closure permit for the automotive repair portion of the site and is in the process of testing soils 
(Attachment 2). California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) analysis of the project cannot be 
determined prior to understanding the existing site conditions, including levels of contamination 
and if further clean-up is required. 
 
On October 18, 2018, the City received a letter from the applicant committing to continued work 
on the MOU toward a specific plan and confirmation that they will make a good faith effort to 
provide the City with the updated plans, stormwater plans, and environmental site analysis no 
later than December 15, 2018 (Attachment 19). With the latest updates to the project, staff 
recommends the City Council continue the application to January 24, 2019, with the 
requirements listed in the recommendation above. 
  
The remainder of this report outlines the background on the project, the basis of the appeal, and 
staff’s response to the appeal.     
 
BACKGROUND: On December 1, 2016, the Planning Commission provided direction on a 
Conceptual Review application for the Sears building. The Planning Commission advised the 
applicant to improve the Sears façade, provide phased buildout information, and coordinate with 
the mall owner to show how the project fits within the mall redevelopment and future circulation 
plans.  
 
On February 10, 2017, the City received an application for a Design Permit and Master Sign 
Permit for the property at 4015 Capitola Road.  
 
On March 9, 2017, the City provided the applicant with an incomplete letter that outlined 
outstanding items (Attachment 7). On April 19, 2018, the City provided an updated incomplete 
letter that separated required incomplete items from advisory items, as a follow-up from a 
discussion with the applicant (Attachment 8). 
 

8.A

Packet Pg. 94



Appeal of Application 17-019, 4015 Capitola Road  
October 25, 2018 
 
On December 14, 2017, the City received copies of a Phase 1 and 2 environmental site analysis 
(ESA) from the project architect for the partial removal of joists. The ESA with attachments is 
voluminous. In an effort to save paper, the ESA Phase 1 and 2 are available at City Hall for the 
public to review and on the City’s website on the Community Development webpage at 
http://www.cityofcapitola.org/communitydevelopment. 
 
On January 9, 2018, the applicant provided an updated application submittal (Attachment 5). 
 
On February 7, 2018, city staff emailed the applicant explaining that comments were not ready. 
Also, staff informed the applicant that a new zoning code and zoning map had been adopted on 
January 25, 2018. The property zoning changed from Community Commercial to Regional 
Commercial. Staff explained that the new zoning and development standards would apply to the 
project on February 25, 2018 (Attachment 9).    
 
On February 15, 2018, City staff informed the applicant’s architect that the Phase 1 and 2 ESA 
had been reviewed by a third party who found that facility closure work was incomplete 
(Attachment 10). 
 
On February 28, 2018, City staff provided the applicant with a second incomplete letter relative 
to the project under the new zoning district and new development standards (Attachment 11).  
 
On May 9, 2018, the applicant’s attorney submitted a letter suggesting the application was 
“deemed complete” under the Permit Streamlining Act (PSA) and requested the application be 
set for public hearing at the earliest opportunity, and within 30 days at the latest (Attachment 
12).  
 
The PSA sets forth a time limit of 30 days after an application is submitted in which to inform the 
applicant of whether the application is complete. If the agency does not inform the applicant 
within the 30-day period, the application will be “deemed complete” even when the application is 
deficient. Upon deeming the application complete, the application must be noticed for public 
hearing and placed on the Planning Commission agenda. The first attachment to the letter is 
included in Attachment 13, a letter from Merlone Geier providing approval of the plans including 
one 2,656-square-foot pad along Capitola Road. The entire May 9 letter, with attachments, is 
voluminous at over 600 pages. In an effort to save paper, the full letter with attachments is 
available at City Hall for the public to review and on the City’s Website on the Community 
Development webpage. 
 
On May 17, 2018, Santa Cruz County Environmental Health Division (SCCEHD) provided the 
applicant with a Notice of Violation (NOV) for the unpermitted removal of 10 underground 
hydraulic lifts.  The NOV noted that the lifts removed in 2017 were in violation of Santa Cruz 
County Code 7.100.060. SCCEHD directed the property owner to apply for and obtain a permit 
retroactively for the closure of the underground storage lifts that were removed and to do so by 
June 29, 2018 (Attachment 14). 
 
On May 18, 2018, the City Attorney confirmed the “deemed complete” determination 
(Attachment 15). 
 
On May 23, 2018, the City informed the applicant the application would be reviewed by the 
Planning Commission on June 7, 2018 (Attachment 16). 
 

8.A

Packet Pg. 95

http://www.cityofcapitola.org/communitydevelopment


Appeal of Application 17-019, 4015 Capitola Road  
October 25, 2018 
 
On June 7, 2018, the Planning Commission reviewed the application for a Design Permit and 
Master Sign Program and denied the application with prejudice (Attachment 4). The Planning 
Commission findings for denial are in the Final Local Action Notice (Attachment 3).  
 
On June 15, 2018, the City Clerk received an appeal of the Planning Commission’s decision. 
Despite being offered hearing dates in July, August, and September the applicant requested, 
and the City Council set, an appeal hearing for October 25, 2018. 
 
On August 22, 2018, Sears announced the Capitola retail store would close in November.  
 
In early October, the applicant contacted staff and requested a continuance of the appeal due to 
the change in circumstance for Sears.  
 
On October 16, 2018, the applicant submitted a draft outline of a potential memorandum of 
understanding (MOU) to participate in a future specific plan for the Capitola Mall. The document 
is still in draft form under review by the City Attorney.  
 
On October 10, 2018, the County of Santa Cruz verified that the applicant has applied for a 
facility closure permit and is in the process of testing soils (Attachment 2).  
 
DISCUSSION: The appeal (Attachment 1) presents the project as a simple re-tenanting of the 
Sears building.  However, the project is not a straightforward re-tenanting because a portion of 
the space was used for decades as an automotive repair facility. This change of use triggers 
review by County Environmental Health, which is still in process. Also, the modifications in the 
site plan to permeable and impermeable surface areas require stormwater review and 
compliance prior to review and approval of a project.  With the information provided by the 
applicant, the Planning Commission could not make the required findings to approve the 
application. In addition, the Planning Commission had concerns with the design and consistency 
with the Capitola General Plan. 
 
The appeal lists the six findings made by the Planning Commission to deny to the project, 
followed by the appellant’s argument against each finding. This section of the staff report is set 
up in a similar style, with each Planning Commission finding listed and underlined and the 
Planning Commission’s bullet points supporting the finding, followed by staff’s analysis.  
 
Finding A: The proposed project is inconsistent with the General Plan, and any applicable 
specific plan, area plan, or other design policies and regulations adopted by the City Council. 
 
The Planning Commission found that the project is inconsistent with the General Plan and the 
41st Avenue/Capitola Mall re-visioning plan. Specifically: 

• The project does not support the long-term transformation of the Capitola Mall into a more 
pedestrian-friendly commercial district with high quality architecture and outdoor amenities 
attractive to shoppers and families (Land Use Goal 8);  

• The project is in conflict with the ultimate vision for the property, as represented in the 41st 
Avenue/Capitola Mall Re-visioning Plan (Land Use Goal 8.1);  

• The project does not encourage the establishment of gathering places on the Mall property 
such as outdoor dining and courtyards that provide space for people to informally meet 
and gather (Policy LU 8.4);  

• The project does not support the long-term vision for the Capitola Mall of a new interior 
street within the Mall property lined with sidewalk-oriented retail, outdoor dining, and 

8.A

Packet Pg. 96



Appeal of Application 17-019, 4015 Capitola Road  
October 25, 2018 
 

pedestrian amenities in which the new street is connected with the existing street network 
surrounding the mall property to enhance mall access for all modes of transportation 
(Policy LU 8.5);  

• The project does not encourage high quality development within the 41st Avenue corridor 
that creates an active and inviting public realm (Goal LU-9);  

• The project does not provide amenities that enhance the vitality of the corridor, such as 
outdoor dining and courtyards, pubic art, publicly accessible or semi-public gathering 
places, and bicycle and pedestrian facilities (LU 9.1 );  

• The project does not contribute toward establishing 41st Avenue as an attractive 
destination with activities for families and people of all ages that occur throughout the day 
and night and does not incorporate public art into public spaces (Policy LU 9.3); 

• The project does not provide adequate bicycle and pedestrian facilities (Policy LU 9.9);  

• The project does not minimize, avoid, or eliminate non-point source pollution by controlling 
stormwater runoff, polluted dry weather runoff, and other pollution, in compliance with 
Capitola's National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit and 
Stormwater Management Plan (Policy OSC 8.2);  

• The project does not meet or exceed State stormwater requirements and incorporate best 
management practices to treat, infiltrate, or filter stormwater runoff and reduce pollutants 
discharged into the storm drain system and surrounding coastal waters during construction 
and post-construction, to the maximum extent practicable (Policy OSC 8.3); and  

• The project does not provide "complete streets" that serve all modes of transportation, 
including vehicles, public transit, bicyclists, and pedestrians (Goal M0-2). 

 
The Capitola General Plan outlines the vision for future development in Capitola through 
establishing guiding principles, goals, policies and actions. As the mall evolves it is important to 
ensure the incremental changes within each parcel incorporate site improvements that fit within 
the greater vision for mall redevelopment, otherwise the General Plan goals may be missed 
entirely. As proposed, the project has been designed to function independently from the mall, 
with no pedestrian connectivity between the two new tenant spaces and the mall. It is unclear 
how the proposed project would fit into a larger mall redevelopment effort.  
 
The current proposal disregards the relationship of the property to the regional mall with a lack 
of internal connectivity. Furthermore, the only suggestion of cooperation with the mall owner, 
Merlone-Geier, was within a letter of support. The applicant did not submit a schematic build out 
or circulation plans for the mall site to understand how the proposal fits within the larger vision, 
as suggested by the Planning Commission during the conceptual review. 
 
Finding B: The proposed project does not comply with all applicable provisions of the Zoning 
Code and Municipal Code.  
The Planning Commission found: 

• The project does not comply with environmental health regulations (CMC Chapter 2.20 
and Santa Cruz County Code Chapter 7.1 00);  

• The project does not comply with stormwater regulations (CMC 13.16); and  

• The project does not comply with the zoning code chapters 17.24 Regional Commercial 
Zoning District, 17.76 Parking and Loading, 17.80 Signs, and 17.120 Design Permits. C.  

 
Environmental Health: Per Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 2.20, the Santa Cruz County 
Health Services Agency (SCCHSA) serves as the City’s Health Department and its Department 
Head is the designated County Health Officer. To this end, the Health Officer enforces County 
Health Department ordinances within the City including Santa Cruz County Code Chapter 7.100 

8.A

Packet Pg. 97



Appeal of Application 17-019, 4015 Capitola Road  
October 25, 2018 
 
governing hazardous materials and underground storage tanks. See Finding D regarding 
impacts to environmental health.  
 
Per Santa Cruz County Code Section 7.100.060, no person or business may close a hazardous 
material storage facility or underground storage tank without first obtaining a permit from the 
County Health Services Agency. A portion of the Sears facility was utilized as automotive center 
from 1971 to 2016. To close the automotive facility, the owner is required to obtain a facility 
closure permit through Santa Cruz County Environmental Health Division (SCCEHD). 
 
On December 14, 2017, the City received copies of a Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment 
(ESA) and Phase 2 ESA, for partial removal of joists, dated December 19, 2014 and April 6, 
2016 respectively. The City contracted Weber-Hayes and Associates to review the submitted 
ESA documents. Weber-Hayes found that the environmental work was for the partial removal of 
onsite joists, not a full facility closure as required with the proposed change of use. On February 
15, 2018, City staff informed the applicant of Weber-Hayes’ finding that the facility closure work 
had not been completed.  
 
As noted above, on May 17, 2018, Santa Cruz County Environmental Health Division 
(SCCEHD) provided the applicant with a Notice of Violation (NOV) for the unpermitted removal 
of 10 underground hydraulic lifts. (Attachment 14).  The letter states SCCEHD has found 
underground lifts can leak oil and pose potential long term environmental and possible human 
health problems. There is evidence that some of the oil in the lift systems contain 
Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs), which are probable human carcinogens.  
 
On July 31, 2018, SCCEHD reported receipt of permit documents and in August, SCCEHD 
reported it reviewed the permit packet for all required elements. 
 
On September 5, 2018, SCCEHD reported all appropriate fees for the Underground Storage 
Tank Closure Permit were received and SCCEHD approved the closure permit, including the 
soil sampling work plan. Work began later that month. 
 
At the time of writing this staff report, the SCCEHD had not received any soil analytical data or a 
report detailing the subsurface investigation work conducted on September 27, 2018. SCCEHD 
estimated the results would be received in December. 
   
Stormwater Regulations: A third-party technical review of the stormwater plans was completed 
by HydroScience (Attachment 18). HydroScience made findings that based on the documents 
submitted, the project is not in compliance with the Capitola Municipal Code Section 13.16 
Stormwater Pollution Prevention and Protection and the Post Construction Requirements 
(PCRs) as specified in Resolution No. R3-2013-0032 issued by the California Regional Water 
Quality Control Board for the Central Coast Region in July 2013.  The PCRs emphasize 
protecting and restoring key watershed processes on-site to create and sustain linkages 
between hydrology, channel geomorphology, and biological health necessary for healthy 
watersheds. The performance requirements for this project require the project to minimize 
impervious surfaces, minimize stormwater runoff, treat all on-site generated runoff by 
constructing biofiltration systems or other similar devices, retain runoff on-site, and manage 
peak stormwater discharges.  
 
At the time of writing this report, no additional information regarding stormwater was received by 
the City since the June 7, 2018, denial by Planning Commission.  
 

8.A

Packet Pg. 98



Appeal of Application 17-019, 4015 Capitola Road  
October 25, 2018 
 
Finding C: The proposed project qualifies for a CEQA exemption 15270.  

• Section 15270 of the CEQA guidelines exempts projects which a public agency 
disapproves.  

 
In response to the appellants claim that the project could be approved under a CEQA 
exemption, the City disagrees. At this time, the City does not have enough information to make 
a CEQA determination other than denial. The project site was previously an auto repair center 
with known soil contamination issues. The applicant has failed to provide the City with the 
necessary documentation of existing conditions. Documentation is necessary for the lead 
agency (the City) under CEQA to identify the correct CEQA review path (exemption, negative 
declaration, mitigated negative declaration, or EIR). The City would have to make a finding that 
there is no potential significant effect on the environment to utilize an exemption for approval. 
That finding cannot be made due to the history of the site and lack of conclusive evidence 
supporting proper facility closure.  
 
Finding D: The proposed development would be detrimental to the public health, safety, or 
welfare or materially injurious to the properties or improvements in the vicinity.  
 
As mentioned under Finding B, the project continues to have outstanding issues regarding 
potential environmental effects associated with the previous automotive center and stormwater 
plans have not been found in compliance with Municipal Code Chapter 13.16. 
 
E. The proposed project does not comply with all applicable design review criteria in Section 
17.120.070 (Design Review Criteria).  

• The proposed project does not comply with all applicable design review criteria in Section 
17.120.070 including D (Sustainability), N (Drainage), E (Pedestrian Environment), I 
(Architectural Style), J (Articulation and Visual Interest), K (Materials), P (Signs), L (Parking 
and Access); and 0 (Open Space and Public Space) as outlined within the staff report and 
incorporated within. 

 
Design Permit: When considering Design Permit applications under appeal, the City Council is 
required to evaluate applications to ensure they comply with the development standards of the 
zoning district, conform to policies of the General Plan and other design policies and regulations 
adopted by the City Council. To obtain Design Permit approval, projects must satisfy the criteria 
of §17.120.070(A-S). The following list includes the italicized criteria with which the project is not 
in compliance:  
 
D. Sustainability. The project supports natural resource protection and environmental 
sustainability through features such as on-site renewable energy generation, passive solar 
design, enhanced energy efficiency, water conservation measures, and other green building 
techniques. 
 
N.  Drainage. The site plan is designed to maximize efficiency of on-site drainage with runoff 
directed towards permeable surface areas and engineered retention.  
 
Staff Analysis: See aforementioned analysis in finding B and finding D. 
 
E.  Pedestrian Environment. The primary entrances are oriented towards and visible from the 
street to support an active public realm and an inviting pedestrian environment. 
 

8.A

Packet Pg. 99



Appeal of Application 17-019, 4015 Capitola Road  
October 25, 2018 
 
Staff Analysis: The two proposed tenant spaces do not include an internal connection to the 
mall. The proposed lack of internal connectivity is counter to the established circulation pattern 
of a mall. The proposed lack of connectivity will negatively impact the synergistic pedestrian 
relationship between the property and the established regional mall.   
 
I.  Architectural Style. Buildings feature an architectural style that is compatible with the 
surrounding built and natural environment, is an authentic implementation of appropriate 
established architectural styles, and reflects Capitola’s unique coastal village character.  
 
J.  Articulation and Visual Interest. Building facades are well articulated to add visual interest, 
distinctiveness, and human scale. Building elements such as roofs, doors, windows, and 
porches are part of an integrated design and relate to the human scale. Architectural details 
such as trim, eaves, window boxes, and brackets contribute to the visual interest of the building. 
 
K.  Materials. Building facades include a mix of natural, high-quality, and durable materials that 
are appropriate to the architectural style, enhance building articulation, and are compatible with 
surrounding development. 
 
P. Signs. The number, location, size, and design of signs complement the project design and 
are compatible with the surrounding context. 
 
Staff Analysis: The proposed façade improvements of Sears create a modern look for the tenant 
that has an authentic design as a stand-alone retail establishment. The architectural style has a 
California modern look with a mix of high quality finishes including metal panels, metal louvers, 
brick veneer in a charcoal color, horizontal wood siding, stone veneer, and a mix of walkway 
finishes.   
 
The proposed design for Petco and TJ Maxx/Homegoods is generic in style with large billboard 
like entryway design features added to the existing exterior finishes of the building. Other than 
the new entryways, the wall plane between Petco and TJ Maxx will remain straight, with minor 
articulation through repeated exterior finishes and landscaping. There is no defined architectural 
style and limited differentiation for the proposed new tenant facades. The architectural 
improvements for Petco and TJ Maxx/Homegoods appear to have been designed for the signs, 
rather than sign fitting within the context of the architecture.  
 
L. Parking and Access. Parking areas are located and designed to minimize visual impacts and 
maintain Capitola’s distinctive neighborhoods and pedestrian-friendly environment. Safe and 
convenient connections are provided for pedestrians and bicyclists.  
 
Staff Analysis: There is a lack of pedestrian and bicycle connectivity through the property. The 
Public Works Director recommends that bike lanes should be added in both directions on 38th 
Avenue, 40th Avenue, the entrance off of 41st Avenue, and along the internal drive around the 
structure from Target to northern connecting to 40th Avenue. The 2040 Regional Transportation 
Plan project list includes separated bicycle facility through Capitola Mall parking lot to connect 
38th Avenue bike lanes and 40th Avenue.  
 
In terms of pedestrian safety, many pedestrians walk between Target and the Sears building. 
Staff recommended requiring a new sidewalk between Target and Sears.  
 

8.A

Packet Pg. 100



Appeal of Application 17-019, 4015 Capitola Road  
October 25, 2018 
 
Also, the project does not comply with the bicycle rack regulations of zoning code §17.76.080(A-
H), for short and long-term bicycle parking. Bicycle parking standards are included in the zoning 
code to promote sustainable transportation alternative. 
 
The new building pads along 41st Avenue and Capitola Road will create additional trips and new 
circulation patterns. Traffic and circulation impacts associated with the future phases have not 
be evaluated and therefore the impacts are unknown.   
 
O. Open Space and Public Places. Non-residential development provides semi-public outdoor 
spaces, such as plazas and courtyards, which help support pedestrian activity within an active 
and engaging public realm.  
 
Staff Analysis: Minimal improvements are incorporated into the semi-public outdoor space 
around the exterior of the building. Two typical wooden benches with black iron railing are 
proposed along the south elevation between Petco and TJ Maxx. The design incorporates 
reutilizing existing planters, as well as introducing trellises on the building wall for plant growth. 
The plan lacks efforts toward an engaging public realm. Opportunities exist to create an 
active/engaging public realm in the corner where the building steps back along the south 
elevation. The Planning Commission had identified this area as an area of opportunity to 
engage the public.  
 
F. The proposed Master Sign Program unreasonably exceeds the sign regulations of the zoning 
code.  

• The proposed Master Sign Program includes allowances of up to 251 square feet of sign 
area for an individual tenant sign on one façade, more than four times the maximum 
permissible by code. 

 
The proposed project includes a master sign program (MSP) application (Attachment 7). A MSP 
establishes unified and coordinated approach to materials, size, type, placement, and general 
design for signs within a multi-tenant project. The Planning Commission may approve a MSP 
that deviates from the standards of the sign regulations relating to height, number of signs, sign 
area, and type of signs.  
 
The proposed MSP includes: 

• Maximum letter height - 5 feet.  

• Maximum sign area - 1 square foot per linear foot of building frontage  
o Petco 75.6 square feet,  
o TJ Maxx/Homegoods 200 square feet, and  
o Sears 180 square feet east elevation and 251 square feet south elevation.  

• “The signage location and configuration are conceptual in nature, subject to change 
based on the final signage permit submission.”  

 
When a MSP is approved by the Planning Commission, all subsequent signs proposed for a 
development must comply with the standards and specification included in the MSP. Signs 
consistent with an approved MSP are allowed with an administrative sign permit approved by 
staff. The proposed MSP would administratively allow signs between 75 and 251 square feet.   
 
The new zoning code establishes a maximum cumulative sign area in the Regional Commercial 
zone of one square foot of sign area per one square foot of linear building frontage, up to a 
maximum of 50 square feet. An additional 25 percent increase in sign area can be approved by 

8.A

Packet Pg. 101



Appeal of Application 17-019, 4015 Capitola Road  
October 25, 2018 
 
Planning Commission. This would allow up to 62.5 square feet of sign area per commercial 
establishment. The proposed MSP includes allowances of up to 251 square feet, more than four 
times the amount allowed by code.  
 
CEQA: Section 15270 of the CEQA guidelines exempts projects which a public agency 
disapproves. More specifically, (a) CEQA does not apply to projects which a public agency 
rejects or disapproves; (b) This section is intended to allow an initial screening of projects on the 
merits for quick disapprovals prior to the initiation of the CEQA process where the agency can 
determine that the project cannot be approved; and (c) This section shall not relieve an 
applicant from paying the costs for an environmental impact report or negative declaration 
prepared for his project prior to the lead agency’s disapproval of the project after normal 
evaluation and processing.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The 4015 Capitola Road property is located within a regional mall and 

historically has been a major contributor towards the City’s sales tax. Continuing the application 

to allow updated required submittals and a draft MOU for participation in a future specific plan 

will allow the retail spaces to be occupied in the near term while providing assurance that future 

redevelopment at the mall will be coordinated to implement the vision of the General Plan. 

Cooperative planning of the regional mall will ultimately lead to a positive fiscal impact for mall 

property owners and the City.   

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Appeal (06.15.2018) 
2. Santa Cruz County Env. Health Division Email (10.10.2018) 
3. Final Local Action Notice of Denial (06.15.2018) 
4. 4015 Capitola Road Planning Commission Staff Report (06.07.2018) 
5. 4015 Capitola Road Plan Set (01.09.2018) 
6. 4015 Capitola Road Master Sign Program 
7. First completeness letter (03.09.2017) 
8. Revised completeness letter incomplete and advisory (04.19.2017) 
9. 2018.02.07 KH email to Craig Chinn 
10. KH email to Craig Chinn regarding ESA inadequacies (02.15.2018) 
11. Second Completeness Letter 2.28.2018 
12. CC&N Letter to City (05.09.2018) 
13. Merlone Geier Letter 02.10.2017 
14. County of Santa Cruz Notice of Violation 05.17.2018 
15. City Attorney Letter to Applicant (05.18.2018) 
16. City Attorney letter to CC&N (05.23.2018) 
17. Design Permit Criteria of 17.120.010(A-S) 
18. HydroScience Memo re Stormwater 05.24.2018 
19. Request for Continuance 10.18.2018 

 
Report Prepared By:   Katie Herlihy 
 Community Development Director 
 

8.A

Packet Pg. 102



Appeal of Application 17-019, 4015 Capitola Road  
October 25, 2018 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

8.A

Packet Pg. 103



8.A.1

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

ea
l (

06
.1

5.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.1

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

ea
l (

06
.1

5.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



 1  

 
 

STATEMENT OF REASONS FOR APPEAL OF PLANNING COMMISSION DECISION 

ON APPLICATION#17-019 
 

Appellant: Seritage SRC Finance LLC  

Property Address: 4015 Capitola Road, Capitola, CA 95062-2049 

APN: 034-261-40 

 

Seritage SRC Finance LLC (“Seritage”) hereby appeals to the Capitola City Council the findings 

and decision regarding Application #17-019 (the “Application”) for a Design Permit and Master 

Sign Permit to split the existing Sears building at 4015 Capitola Road (the “Property”) into three 

renovated tenant spaces and approve a Master Sign Program for associated signage (the 

“Project”).  The proposed tenant uses are permitted by right at the Property. 

 

This appeal is timely submitted within 10 business days of the Planning Commission’s decision 

on the Application.  The City has notified Seritage that, in addition to the required $500 filing fee 

for this appeal, Seritage must pay an alleged $7,000.21 balance on its developer’s deposit 

account with the City prior to proceeding with the appeal.  Payment of these funds is not a 

condition to proceeding with the appeal under either the pre-February Zoning Code or the 

updated Zoning Code.  See CMC 17.63.160; Updated CMC 17.152.030.C.  Under the Zoning 

Code, to process an appeal, the appellant must only submit the official City application along 

with the $500 fee as established by Capitola City Council Resolution No. 4077.  Seritage has not 

received an accounting of the fees for staff time, which Seritage respectfully requests to verify 

the amount of the fee.  At this time, as no accounting has yet been received, Seritage is paying 

the $7,000.21 balance under protest, along with the $500 appeal fee, and both payments are 

being submitted concurrently with this appeal application. 

 

A summary of background and description of the basis for appeal of each of the findings follows. 

 

I. BACKGROUND 

 

The Application represents a straightforward, uncomplicated project plan to renovate the interior 

of an existing retail building and improve the building façade to accommodate uses that are 

permitted by right at the Property, all in accordance with the Capitola Municipal Code, General 

Plan, and other applicable laws and regulations.  The Project was first submitted for conceptual 

review by the City in September 2016.  In its initial conceptual review application to the City, 

Seritage sought Design Review and Sign Permit approvals related to limited façade and exterior 

improvements, to accommodate leases it had entered into with TJ Maxx and Petco for portions of 

the Property, which is located in the Capitola Mall.   

 

From the very beginning, City staff expressed reluctance to process Seritage’s basic permit 

request because of “uncertainties regarding redevelopment of the mall” and instructed Seritage to 

coordinate with the majority owner of the Capitola Mall, Merlone Geier, “to ensure the 

redevelopment of Sears will fit within the vision of mall redevelopment.”  City Planning 

Commission Staff Report (Dec. 1, 2016).  This instruction was given even though the plans for 

future redevelopment of the mall are nebulous and wholly uncertain at best, it is unclear how a 

minor façade improvement would in any way impact a redevelopment concept that is likely years 

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

ea
l (

06
.1

5.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



 2  

 
 

away from being realized, and the City had not at the time—and still has not—approved any 

Master Plan for the mall redevelopment.         

 

Nonetheless, Seritage made a good faith effort to cooperatively engage with Merlone Geier and 

to incorporate City staff’s other notes regarding the proposed façade modifications.  On February 

8, 2017, Seritage submitted a formal Design Review and Master Sign Permit application, 

including updated drawings that reflected City staff’s suggestions.  Two days later, on February 

10, 2017, Seritage executed an agreement with Merlone Geier in which Merlone Geier agreed to 

“all reasonable and necessary changes to the Common Area” at the Seritage property, as well as 

all of the modifications described in the February 8, 2017 application and even the design plans 

themselves.  While waiting for the City’s response on the application, on March 2, 2017, 

Seritage was informed that it could not even receive permits from the City for interior demising 

walls at the Property until the Design Review and Master Sign Permit application had been 

processed and approved, completely stalling work to accommodate new tenants at the Property, 

even though leases were already signed.   

 

Despite Seritage’s good faith efforts to present a project consistent with the City’s requests, on 

March 9, 2017, the City issued an “incomplete” letter for the application, reiterating the City’s 

demand that Seritage “closely coordinate with Merlone Geier” and requiring Seritage to “submit 

additional information demonstrating that the proposal has been coordinated with other mall 

property owners and explain how the redeveloped Sears would complement and enhance a 

comprehensive mall redevelopment project.”  City Letter to Charles Fisher (Mar. 9, 2017).  This 

instruction was illegal.  See Munns v. Stenman (1957) 152 Cal.App.2d 543, 552-553; Washington 

ex rel. Seattle Title trust Co. v. Roberge (1928) 278 U.S. 116, 123 (requiring the consent of 

neighbors be obtained to move forward with an otherwise allowable land use was “arbitrary and 

repugnant to the due process clause”).  It also completely disregarded the fact that Seritage had 

already entered into a letter agreement with Merlone Geier on February 10, 2017.  Staff Report 

re Application #17-019, Attachment 8.a (June 7, 2018).  Nonetheless, Seritage continued to 

engage with both the City and Merlone Geier in an attempt to move the permit process forward. 

 

Despite Seritage’s good faith efforts to cooperate with the City, on April 6, 2017, the City 

Planning Commission heard a staff proposal to declare a moratorium over all or part of the 

Capitola Mall.  The moratorium was not ultimately approved by the Planning Commission, but 

the City’s intentional delay in addressing the permit application continued to stall the Project.  In 

the hopes of moving the process along, after a May 2017 meeting with City staff in which the 

requirement to work with Merlone Geier was again reiterated and an agreement between Seritage 

and Merlone Geier to that end was requested by the City Manager, a Cooperation Agreement 

with Merlone Geier was drafted to promote communication and facilitate the permit approval.  

The recitals of that agreement, which were reviewed and acknowledged by the City Attorney in 

correspondence of June 2, 2017, expressly memorialize cooperation between Seritage and 

Merlone Geier on future redevelopment plans for the Mall, despite the fact that no such 

redevelopment was implicated by Seritage’s permit application. 

 

In meetings during the summer of 2017, City staff once again improperly conditioned processing 

of Project approvals on uncertain redevelopment plans for the Capitola Mall, mandating that any 

future resubmission of the Design Review and Master Sign Permit application must include 

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

ea
l (

06
.1

5.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



 3  

 
 

potential plans for any redevelopment on the Property.  Seritage was told that the City would be 

unable to process its permit application without the inclusion of such plans, and was assured that 

including the plans would expedite the permit’s processing and would not lead to delays due to 

California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) review or otherwise.  Accordingly, on January 

8, 2018, Seritage submitted the Application, which responded not only to the comments in the 

City’s “incomplete” letter, but also included, at the City’s behest, a Phase 2 unrelated to the 

Project, showing two potential future buildings and a parking reconfiguration. 

 

Reneging on its word, the City used submission of the Application as an opportunity for still 

further foot-dragging.  Only one day after the Application was submitted, the City considered 

amendments to a proposed zoning code update that were specifically intended to stall the 

Application and the Project further.  The amended language was subsequently approved by the 

City Council in late January.  And, after missing its 30-day deadline to issue a completeness 

determination to Seritage on February 7, 2018, the City nonetheless sent correspondence on 

February 15, 2018 raising additional issues with the Application, including questions about an 

environmental site assessment and remediation process that has been complete for over a year.  

In that same correspondence, the City improperly asserted that the Application would have to be 

considered in light of the newly amended zoning code update language. 

 

On May 9, 2018, Seritage sent correspondence to the City Attorney and Planning Department 

staff asserting that the Application had been deemed complete by operation of law on February 

7, 2018, and demanding that the Application be set for hearing.  By correspondence of May 23, 

2018, the City Attorney informed counsel for Seritage that the Application would be heard by the 

Planning Commission on June 7, 2018.  In advance of the Planning Commission hearing, on 

June 1, 2018, Planning Department staff released the agenda for the hearing, including a staff 

report recommending denial of the Application and adoption of a number of findings asserting 

various deficiencies of the Application.  On June 7, 2018, Seritage sent correspondence to the 

Planning Commissioners, City Attorney, and Community Development Director explaining the 

adequacy of the Application and the ability of the Planning Commissioners to make all requisite 

findings for approval, and urging the Planning Commissioners to approve the Application.  At 

the hearing on June 7, 2018, the Planning Commission voted 3-2 to deny the Application and 

adopted the findings as set forth in the staff report. 

 

II. BASIS FOR APPEAL OF FINDINGS 

 

Decisions of the Planning Commission are reviewed de novo by the City Council.  CMC 2.5.050; 

Updated CMC 17.152.030.F.1.  Accordingly, the City Council has the discretion to review the 

proposed Project and Application with fresh eyes, and is not bound to defer to the findings 

adopted by the Planning Commission below.  That being said, as elaborated below, the Planning 

Commission’s findings were not based upon substantial evidence in the record—indeed, the 

Commission’s findings are generally conclusory and unsupported by any record evidence—and 

their determination to deny the Application on the basis of those findings was arbitrary and 

capricious. See, e.g., Stewart Enterprises, Inc. v. City of Oakland, 248 Cal.App.4th 410, 424 

(affirming judgment overturning planning commission’s determination as unsupported by 

substantial evidence). 

 

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

ea
l (

06
.1

5.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



 4  

 
 

A. Finding A: The proposed project is inconsistent with the General Plan, and any 

applicable specific plan, area plan, or other design policies and regulations adopted 

by the City Council. 

 

The Planning Commission erred in finding that the Project is inconsistent with the General Plan 

and other design policies and regulations.  Approval of the Application is consistent with the 

City’s planning goals for the Capitola Mall.  The City’s own planning documents specifically 

support and encourage the phased redevelopment of the Mall: the City’s General Plan includes 

Policy LU-8.1 to encourage “a phased approach to redevelopment of the Mall,” and specifically 

notes that “[e]arly phases may include improvements to the Mall façade”; the City’s 41st 

Avenue/Capitola Mall Vision Plan states that it is “necessary to envision and permit short-term 

improvements that do not fully achieve the ultimate vision” for the Mall, and accordingly 

includes Policy 1.9 to “[a]llow property owners to make modest improvements that will not 

conflict with the long-term vision for the property” and Policy 2.3 supporting “a phased 

approach to redevelopment of the Mall” with early phases to include “improvements to the Mall 

façade”; and even the City’s updated Zoning Code recognizes that “major redevelopment of the 

mall property may require a Rezone, Planned Development, Specific Plan, Development 

Agreement, or similar process,” which could take years to finalize.  The proposed Project, which 

requests a phased update to make beneficial use of the Property without impacting future as yet 

undefined redevelopment plans for the Mall, is wholly consistent with these goals. 

 

The Planning Commission’s findings improperly conclude that the Project is not consistent with 

the following goals and policies: General Plan Goal LU-8, General Plan Goal LU-8.1, General 

Plan Policy LU-8.4, General Plan Policy LU-8.5, General Plan Goal LU-9, General Plan Policy 

LU-9.1, General Plan Policy LU-9.3, General Plan Policy LU-9.9, General Plan Policy OSC-8.2, 

General Plan Policy OSC-8.3, and General Plan Goal MO-2.  The findings, and the Planning 

Department staff report, contain mere conclusory statements that the Project fails to comport 

with these goals and policies, but are both completely devoid of any explanation with respect to 

the alleged inconsistency.  In fact, the Project comports with each of these goals and policies: 

 

 Goal LU-8:  Goal LU-8 is to “[s]upport the long-term transformation of Capitola Mall 

into a more pedestrian-friendly commercial district with high quality architecture and 

outdoor amenities attractive to shoppers and families.”  The Project is consistent with this 

goal; indeed, the Planning Commission findings offer no explanation as to why the 

Project purportedly fails to meet this goal.  The Project design builds upon existing 

connectivity to other Mall properties—even though such connectivity is not a required 

element for approval of the Project plans—by adding an additional entrance that will 

facilitate access to the Mall from the Property.  Furthermore, by promoting phased 

redevelopment and proposing a plan that would result in significant improvements to the 

Property, including the addition of bicycle parking, outdoor spaces friendly to 

pedestrians, pedestrian and bicycle pathways, and attractive architectural features, the 

proposed Project is a stepping stone to effectuating just the sort of incremental 

transformation of the Mall contemplated by both the General Plan and the Vision Plan. 

 

 Policy LU-8.1: As discussed above, Policy 8.1 is to “[e]ncourage a phased approach to 

redevelopment of the Mall property.  Early phases may include improvements to the Mall 

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

ea
l (

06
.1

5.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



 5  

 
 

façade and front entrance, and new retail pads fronting 41
st
 Avenue.  These early 

improvements shall not conflict with the ultimate vision for the property, as represented 

in the 41
st
 Avenue/Capitola Mall Vision Plan.”  Far from conflicting with this policy, the 

proposed Project is exactly the type of phased redevelopment that the policy, and the 

General Plan and Vision Plan more generally, contemplate.  As discussed in the 

background section above, Seritage diligently coordinated with Merlone Geier, which 

approved of the proposed improvements to the Property, and those proposed 

improvements in no way interfere with later redevelopment of the Mall.  Further, 

Merlone Geier’s (or any other property owner’s) potential plans cannot serve as a basis 

for denying the Project.  See Munns, 152 Cal.App.2d at 552-553; Roberge, 278 U.S. at 

123.  Despite protestations that the Project does not comport with Policy LU-8.1, neither 

Planning Department staff nor the Planning Commission findings ever explain why the 

proposed Project would not be consistent with the “ultimate vision” for the Capitola 

Mall—a vision that remains nebulous as there are no concrete plans for redevelopment of 

the rest of the Mall.  Simply put, the proposed Project is self-contained, modest, 

represents a significant improvement to the existing Property, and would in no way 

interfere with future redevelopment plans for the Mall, whatever shape those plans 

eventually take.   

 

 Policy LU-8.4: Policy LU-8.4 is to “[e]ncourage the establishment of public gathering 

places on the Mall property—such as outdoor dining and courtyards—that provide space 

for people to informally meet and gather.”  Within the context of the proposed uses at the 

Property (for example, no restaurant uses are proposed), the Project provides just such 

spaces.  The Project design includes numerous pedestrian areas and zones along the entire 

public-facing building frontages, with new seating areas, planting, pavers, and bike racks, 

all of which are designed to engage the public and create small gathering spaces.  The 

Planning Commission’s findings and the staff report both completely fail to explain why 

these added public spaces, designed to be pedestrian-friendly, are inconsistent with 

Policy LU-8.4; indeed, they are consistent with the policy. 

 

 Policy LU-8.5: Policy LU-8.5 is to “support the addition of a new interior street within 

the Mall property” as part of the “long-term vision” for the Mall.  As an initial matter, 

this policy is unrelated to the proposed Project, which implicates only the Property and 

does not involve any of the other parcels that comprise the Mall development, which 

involvement would be needed to add a new street.  The Planning Commission findings 

offer no explanation for why a simple façade improvement and renovation to an existing 

building would implicate this policy at all.  Furthermore, nothing in the proposed Project 

plan would in any way interfere with this “long-term” plan.  The Project would not 

preclude addition of a new interior street at a later date, and would only represent an 

“early phase” of redevelopment as encouraged by both the General Plan and the Vision 

Plan.  

 

 Goal LU-9: Goal LU-9 is to “[e]ncourage high quality development within the 41
st
 

Avenue corridor that creates an active and inviting public realm.”  The Project would do 

just that.  The proposed plans represent a vast improvement over the vacant building on 

the Property, adding new tenant spaces that will draw community members to the Mall 

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

ea
l (

06
.1

5.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



 6  

 
 

and renovating the building with high quality materials and design features.  As discussed 

above, the Project design also incorporates features to make the improved storefronts 

inviting to pedestrians and bicyclists. 

 

 Policy LU-9.1: Policy LU-9.1 is to “[e]ncourage new development to provide amenities 

that enhance the vitality of the corridor, such as outdoor dining and courtyards, public art, 

publically accessible or semi-public gathering places, and bicycle and pedestrian 

facilities.”  As discussed above, consistent with this policy, the Project design has 

incorporated several pedestrian- and bicycle-friendly outdoor areas, including the 

addition of new seating, planting, bicycle racks, and pavers to make the Property more 

accessible and enjoyable for pedestrian and bicyclist use.  Nowhere do the Planning 

Commission or the staff report explain why these features are inadequate or inconsistent 

with the policy. 

 

 Policy LU-9.3: Policy LU-9.3 is to “[e]stablish 41
st
 Avenue as an attractive destination 

with activities for families and people of all ages that occur throughout the day and night.  

Where feasible, incorporate public art into public spaces.”  This policy is largely 

inapplicable to the Project, which simply proposes façade improvements and renovation 

to an existing building. However, the Project certainly does serve the object of 

establishing 41
st
 Avenue as an attractive destination by replacing a now-vacant and 

languishing building with significantly improved, attractively-designed tenant spaces that 

will draw in the community and become a regional destination as well.   

 

 Policy LU-9.9: Policy 9.9 is to “[i]mprove the physical appearance of 41
st
 Avenue 

through the installation of additional landscaping in the public right-of-way, enhanced 

Highway 1 interchange features, and improved bicycle and pedestrian facilities.”  As 

discussed above, the Project satisfies this policy by incorporating a design that will not 

only improve the physical appearance of the building, but which also includes new 

landscaping and improved bicycle and pedestrian facilities such as seating, bicycle racks, 

and access paths. 

 

 Policy OSC-8.2:  Policy OSC-8.2 is to “[m]inimize, avoid, or eliminate non-point source 

pollution by controlling stormwater runoff, polluted dry weather runoff, and other 

pollution, in compliance with Capitola’s National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 

System (NPDES) Permit and Stormwater Management Plan.”  Both the Planning 

Commission findings and the staff report offer no evidence supporting a determination 

that the Project does not comply with this finding, and instead only contain mere 

conclusory allegations about the Project’s stormwater management plans.  There has not 

been any explanation of why the Project’s existing stormwater management plan is 

inadequate.   The current plan is designed to adhere to all NPDES and other Municipal 

Code requirements for the Property.  The proposed improvements will not result in any 

change to the impervious surface footprint at the Property and do not necessitate any 

changes to the existing stormwater management plan, which already contains adequate 

best management practices to effectively manage any stormwater discharges from the 

Project.  Simply put, the existing stormwater management plans for the Property meet all 

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

ea
l (

06
.1

5.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



 7  

 
 

requirements—including Policy OSC-8.2—and a finding to the contrary was 

unwarranted, arbitrary, and capricious. 

 

 Policy OSC-8.3: Policy OSC-8.3 is to “[r]equire all new development, public and private 

to meet or exceed State stormwater requirements and incorporate best management 

practices to treat, infiltrate, or filter stormwater runoff and reduce pollutants discharged 

into the storm drain system and surrounding coastal waters during construction and post-

construction, to the maximum extent practicable.”  As discussed above, the Project is 

already subject to the stormwater management plan for the Property, which incorporates 

compliant best management practices for managing stormwater runoff.  There is no 

evidence in the record explaining why this plan is insufficient, and indeed, the plan is 

compliant with all State and local requirements and was designed for the existing 

building at the Property, the footprint of which will remain unchanged.  The stormwater 

management practices, including best management practices, in effect for the Property 

and the Project are consistent with this policy. 

 

 Goal MO-2: Goal MO-2 is to “[p]rovide for ‘Complete Streets’ that serve all modes of 

transportation, including vehicles, public transit, bicyclists, and pedestrians.”  This goal is 

wholly inapplicable to the Project because the Project involves only modest façade 

improvements and renovation of tenant spaces within an existing building, not 

construction of any streets or alteration to parking or right-of-ways.  Beyond that, as 

discussed above and below, the Project does incorporate bicycle- and pedestrian-friendly 

features designed to make the improved building more accessible both on foot and by 

bicycle. 

 

The Project comports with each of the above-referenced policies and goals, and there is no 

evidence in the record to support the Planning Commission’s finding that the Project is 

inconsistent with them.  The Planning Commission erred in arbitrarily and capriciously adopting 

this finding.  

 

B. Finding B: The proposed project does not comply with all applicable provisions of 

the Zoning Code and Municipal Code. 

 

First, as a general matter, the Application was improperly reviewed by the Planning Department 

staff and Planning Commission pursuant to the updated Zoning Code1, as opposed to the pre-

February 25 Zoning Code in effect at the time that the Application was deemed complete by 

operation of law on February 7, 2018.2  The Application is subject to the law in effect at the time 

                                                 

1 The amended Zoning Code was not adopted until the City Council meeting on January 25, 2018, nearly three 

weeks after the Application was submitted, and took effect over two weeks after the Application was deemed 

complete by operation of law. 

2 Under the Permit Streamlining Act, Cal. Gov. Code § 65920 et seq., a public agency has 30 calendar days after it 

receives an application for a development project to determine in writing whether the application is complete.  Cal. 

Gov. Code § 65943(a).  If the public agency does not make a completeness determination within 30 days, the 

application is deemed complete by operation of law.  Cal. Gov. Code § 65943(b).  

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

ea
l (

06
.1

5.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



 8  

 
 

of the completeness determination, and must be reviewed for consistency with the pre-February 

25 Zoning Code.  San Francisco Planning and Urban Renewal Association v. Central Permit 

Bureau (1973) 30 Cal.App.3d 920. 

Furthermore, the City is equitably estopped from applying the post-February 25 Zoning Code to 

the permit application.  See Anderson v. City of La Mesa, 118 Cal.App.3d 657, 661.  Seritage’s 

initial application for Design Review and a Master Sign Permit was submitted nearly year and a 

half ago, on February 8, 2017.  After the City issued an incompleteness determination on March 

9, 2017, in which it instructed Seritage to engage in “[c]ollaborative efforts with owners 

throughout the mall property,” the City further directed Seritage to assess how the proposed site 

improvements would interact with Merlone Geier’s future plans for redevelopment in the 

Capitola Mall, and to engage with Merlone Geier to that end.  Following this direction, Seritage 

worked with Merlone Geier and the City, and ultimately submitted the revised Application.  

Without this delay, the Application would have been processed months before the Zoning Code 

update was approved.  Accordingly, the City cannot apply the new Zoning Code to the 

Application.  See Madain v. City of Stanton (2010) 185 Cal.App.4th 1277. 

 

Finally, as discussed in greater detail below in sections D, E, and F, there is no evidence to 

suggest that the Project does not comply with environmental health regulation, stormwater 

regulations, or is at all inconsistent with either the pre-February 25 Zoning Code that properly 

applies to it or the updated Zoning Code that the Planning Commission improperly relied upon to 

review the Application.  Inconsistency with the Municipal Code and Zoning Code therefore was 

not a proper basis for the Planning Commission’s denial of the Application. 

 

C. Finding C: The proposed project qualifies for a CEQA exemption 15270. 

 

While Seritage disagrees that the Project is exempt from CEQA pursuant to 14 Cal. Code Regs. § 

15270 on the basis of the Planning Commission’s denial, the Project is otherwise exempt from 

CEQA.  The minor improvements to the building’s façade and adjustments to signage simply do 

not warrant CEQA review and are categorically exempt from CEQA.    

 

The Application requests Design Review for its proposal to “split the existing Sears building into 

3 separate tenant spaces and provide exterior improvements to the building…”  The proposed 

partitioning of the existing building is covered by the “Existing Facilities” categorical 

exemption, which exempts from CEQA the negligible modification of an existing use such as 

“interior or exterior alteration involving such things as interior partitions” and additions to 

existing structures of less than 10,000 square feet.  14 Cal. Code Regs., § 15301.  Also applicable 

is the “Replacement or Reconstruction” categorical exemption, which covers activities including 

the “replacement of a commercial structure with a new structure of substantially the same size, 

purpose, and capacity.”  14 Cal. Code Regs., § 15302. 

 

Although the Planning Commission’s finding of exemption was incorrectly based on section 

15270 of the CEQA Guidelines, the Project should be exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA 

Guidelines sections 15301 and 15302. 

 

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

ea
l (

06
.1

5.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



 9  

 
 

D. Finding D: The proposed development would be detrimental to the public health, 

safety, or welfare or materially injurious to the properties or improvements in the 

vicinity. 

 

The Planning Commission’s finding that the proposed development would be detrimental to the 

public health, safety, or welfare or materially injurious to the properties or improvements in the 

vicinity has no basis in fact.  The Planning Department staff report and Planning Commission 

pointed to three improper rationales for this finding: (1) an alleged County permitting issue 

associated with the proper removal of several hydraulic lifts at the Property over a year ago and 

(2) a purported need for updates to stormwater management plans for the Property.  Neither 

justifies the Planning Commission’s finding. 

 

First, the hydraulic lifts at issue were all properly removed according to standard removal 

procedures, and testing of the area in question did not identify any leaks associated with the lifts 

that were removed in 2017.  Nor is there any indication that there was a spill, leak, or other 

release of polychlorinated biphenyls (“PCBs”) associated with any of these lifts or appurtenant 

systems.  Indeed, the County issued a closure letter on June 29, 2016 for the removal work 

associated with the only documented leak from the hydraulic lift system, certifying that 

appropriate remediation had occurred.  The evidence in the administrative record, which includes 

both a Phase I and Phase II report that do not identify any impacts associated with the lifts 

removed in 2017, clearly shows that the removal of the remaining hydraulic lifts posed no threat 

to public health or to other properties.  What remains is an outstanding permitting issue that 

Seritage has committed to promptly resolving with the County of Santa Cruz, the appropriate 

lead agency for such environmental compliance issues.  The outstanding permit documentation 

cannot properly serve as a basis for outright denial of the Application, particularly when Seritage 

suggested that the Planning Commission condition approval of the Application on receipt of the 

County’s rubber stamp on the properly-completed removal activities. 

 

Second, the stormwater plans for the Property are in compliance with the Municipal Code and 

the Application does not create any circumstances that would require an update to the plans. The 

Application does not request any alteration to the building’s footprint, the existing site 

configuration, or to drainage infrastructure or improvements.   Adjustments to the building’s 

façade do not implicate any increased stormwater concerns.  The Planning Department staff 

report and Planning Commission took the position that updates to the Property’s stormwater 

plans are required because of modifications to the hardscape area outside of the building.  In 

deference to Planning Department staff’s own request, Seritage agreed to replace an aging paved 

area outside of the building with new, more attractive pavers.  The proposed change—only 

incorporated at the City’s behest—will not result in any significant changes to drainage patterns 

or hardscape footprint, and will result in only minimal disturbance during construction, all of 

which can be easily and appropriately be managed pursuant to the Property’s existing stormwater 

plan.   

 

E. Finding E: The proposed project does not comply with all applicable design review 

criteria in Section 17.120.070 (Design Review Criteria). 

 

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

ea
l (

06
.1

5.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



 10  

 
 

Contrary to the Planning Commission and staff report findings, the proposed Project is compliant 

with all applicable design review criteria, and the Planning Commission erred in denying the 

Application on this basis. 

Once again, the Planning Commission improperly applied the post-February 25 Zoning Code to 

its review of the Application.  As a result, it considered a number of items that are not required 

elements of review under the pre-February 25 Zoning Code that appropriately governs the 

Application.3  Regardless, we explain below the Application’s consistency with each of the 

elements with which the updated Zoning Code requires a finding of compliance. No matter the 

version of the Code applied to the Application, failure to approve the Application on the basis of 

non-compliance with design review criteria was arbitrary and capricious. 

  1.  Sustainability (Updated CMC 17.120.070.D) 

The Planning Commission erred in finding that the Application does not meet the required 

sustainability criterion under the updated Zoning Code.  Setting aside that this criterion is not 

properly applicable to review of the Application under the pre-February 25 Zoning Code, the 

Application does comport with this element, if and to the extent it applies to the Project. 

With respect to sustainability, the Commission’s objection appears to be that there is an 

outstanding May 17, 2018 notice from the County of Santa Cruz in connection with an alleged 

permitting issue for removal of several hydraulic lifts on the Property, which took place last year.  

The timing of this notice is curious.  This notice appears to have been issued by the County at the 

request of Planning Department staff in advance of the Planning Commission hearing.  However, 

this notice does not represent any inconsistency with the sustainability considerations the 

Planning Commission is required to evaluate under the updated Zoning Code, which simply 

require that the proposed Project support sustainability through energy generation, passive solar 

design, enhanced energy efficiency, water conservation measures, and other green building 

techniques.  Updated CMC 17.120.070.D.  Indeed, the sustainability element the Planning 

Commission is required to evaluate is generally inapplicable to the Application. 

Even were the sustainability criterion to somehow be implicated by the existence of the County’s 

notice, the notice did not in any way impact the Planning Commission’s ability to approve the 

Application.  Seritage is committed to working cooperatively with the County to fully resolve all 

issues articulated in the May 17, 2018 notice, and the Planning Commission had complete 

discretion to approve the Application subject to a condition that Seritage receive the necessary 

environmental approvals and clearances from the County.  The Application should not have been 

denied on this basis. 

                                                 

3 Under the applicable version of the Zoning Code, the Planning Commission must consider, to the extent applicable 

to the application: traffic, circulation, safety and congestion; outdoor advertising; landscaping; site layout, drainage; 

architectural character; fire prevention; excavation and grading; landscape maintenance; protection of historic 

features and vistas; encouraging utilization and protection of solar energy; design guidelines for special commercial 

or residential areas in the General Plan, LCP, area plans, or other approved design policies; review of floodplain 

areas; and garbage areas. CMC 17.63.090.  Elements such as sustainability, pedestrian environment, parking, and 

articulation and visual interest are not required to be considered under the applicable Code.  

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

ea
l (

06
.1

5.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



 11  

 
 

  2. Drainage (Updated CMC 17.120.070.N) 

The Planning Commission improperly found that the Application is inconsistent with the updated 

Zoning Code’s requirement that the site plan be designed “to maximize efficiency of on-site 

drainage with runoff directed towards permeable surface areas and engineered retention.”  The 

existing stormwater plan for the Property is more than adequate to meet the Code’s requirement, 

and is fully compliant with the standards in Municipal Code Chapter 13.16, which covers 

stormwater pollution prevention. 

As an initial matter, the Application does not request any alteration to the building’s footprint or 

the existing site configuration, or to drainage infrastructure or improvements.   Adjustments to 

the building’s façade do not implicate any increased stormwater concerns.  Planning Department 

staff previously took the position that updates to the Property’s stormwater plans are required 

because of modifications to the hardscape area outside of the building; this seems to be the basis 

for the Planning Commission’s finding that the Application does not comport with drainage 

requirements.   

In fact, the modifications to the hardscape area were incorporated to the Application in deference 

to Planning Department staff’s own request.  The proposed change—only incorporated at the 

City’s behest—would not result in any significant changes to drainage patterns or hardscape 

footprint, and would cause in only minimal disturbance during construction, all of which can be 

easily and appropriately be managed pursuant to the Property’s existing stormwater plan and in 

compliance with Municipal Code requirements.  Neither the staff report nor the Planning 

Commission’s findings explain why or how the current stormwater plans for the Property are 

deficient, and simply rely on a conclusory statement that a consultant, HydroScience, found the 

Project to be out of compliance with the Municipal Code requirements, without any further 

elaboration.  Even the cited HydroScience memorandum is only two paragraphs long and itself 

offers no explanation as to why the existing plans are deficient.   It was wholly arbitrary and 

capricious of the Planning Commission to rely on unsupported statements by HydroScience and 

staff to determine inconsistency with drainage requirements.   

Further still, if the Planning Commission had concerns about the Project’s ability to comport 

with drainage requirements, the Commission had full ability to approve the Application subject 

to a condition that the stormwater plan be updated to include certain best management practices 

or other provisions to ensure appropriate stormwater management. There was no basis for 

denying the Application with prejudice when this issue could be resolved through imposition of a 

condition. 

  3. Pedestrian Environment (Updated CMC 17.120.070.E) 

The Planning Commission incorrectly determined that the Application does not comport with the 

updated Zoning Code’s standards for pedestrian environment.  As noted above, however, the 

pedestrian environment standard did not even need to be a consideration in review of the 

Application, as it is not part of the review criteria articulated in the pre-February 25 Zoning 

Code.  Even were the standard to be applied, the updated Zoning Code only requires that 

“primary entrances are oriented towards and visible from the street to support an active public 

realm and an inviting pedestrian environment.”  Updated CMC 17.120.070.E.   

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

ea
l (

06
.1

5.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



 12  

 
 

The Project design shown in the Application meets that standard: primary entrances to all of the 

proposed tenant spaces will be oriented towards and visible from the street.  Beyond that, the 

proposed design also creates numerous pedestrian areas and zones along the entire public-facing 

building frontages.  These zones are enhanced with materials friendly to pedestrians and create a 

scale and sense of space that is pedestrian-friendly. This includes new planting, seating, bike 

racks, enhanced paving, and other upgrades to the existing building. These improvements were 

proposed by Seritage even before the Zoning Code update. 

Neither the pre-February 25 Zoning Code nor the updated Zoning Code contain any requirement 

that the proposed plans look beyond the Property’s boundary to address circulation issues within 

the Mall at large.  The Planning Commission’s findings rely on the staff report’s discussion of 

“internal connectivity” within the Mall, which is not relevant to the pedestrian environment 

design review criterion.  Further, the proposed renovations will have no impact on current 

circulation patterns within the Mall, as the overall building footprint will remain wholly 

unchanged.   

In short, the Planning Commission erred in finding the Application to be non-compliant with the 

pedestrian element on account of circulation patterns within the Mall, which are not a relevant 

factor in reviewing the Application or determining consistency with the pedestrian environment 

criterion, let alone a basis for denial.   

4.  Architectural Style, Articulation And Visual Interest, Materials, And 

Signs (Updated CMC 17.120.070.I, J, K, and P) 

Relying on the findings in the staff report, the Planning Commission improperly determined that 

the Application did not comport with the Architectural Style, Articulation and Visual Interest, 

Materials, and Signs design review criteria with respect to the improvements to the proposed TJ 

Maxx/Homegoods and Petco façades.  In fact, the façades as proposed in the Application do 

satisfy the requirements of both the pre-February 25 Zoning Code and the updated Zoning Code.  

Furthermore, the current design is the result of significant design work in collaboration with 

Planning Department staff, including numerous revisions to elevations and incorporation of staff 

comments throughout the design process. 

Under the pre-February 25 Zoning Code, the Planning Commission is required to consider: the 

suitability of the building for its purpose; the appropriate use of materials to insure compatibility 

with the intent of the title; and the number, location, color, size, height, lighting and landscaping 

of outdoor advertising signs and structures in relation to the creation of traffic hazards and the 

appearance and harmony with adjacent development.  CMC 17.63.090.A, F.  There is no 

question that the building is suitable for its use—the requested tenant uses are permitted by-right 

on the Property and are consistent with past uses—or that the materials proposed are high-quality 

materials consistent with the other proposed improvements to the Property and represent a vast 

improvement over the existing condition of the building.  As discussed in Section F below with 

respect to the Master Sign Program, the proposed signage is consistent with all Zoning Code and 

other planning document requirements and is necessary and appropriate for the type of 

businesses that will be located within the building. 

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

ea
l (

06
.1

5.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



 13  

 
 

Even applying the standards of the updated Zoning Code, the Application satisfies the requisite 

criteria applicable to the improvements’ design.  The updated Zoning Code requires that: 

buildings’ architectural style be compatible with the surrounding built and natural environment, 

be an authentic implementation of appropriate established architectural styles, and reflect 

Capitola’s coastal village character; building façades be well-articulated to add visual interest, 

with architectural details to contribute to the visual interest of the building; building façades 

include a mix of natural, high-quality, and durable materials that are appropriate to the 

architectural style and articulation and are compatible with surrounding development; and the 

number, location, size, and design of signs compliment the Project design and are compatible 

with the surrounding context.  Updated CMC 17.120.070.I, J, K, P.  Once again, the design of 

the improvements proposed by the Application is fully consistent with these standards.  The 

proposed improvements are not only consistent with the surrounding environment, but represent 

a significant upgrade to the current building façade.  The design and finishes of the improved 

façades were selected to be consistent with other buildings that have been recently approved in 

Capitola, and are consistent with Capitola’s coastal village character.  The new entryways for the 

TJ Maxx/Homegoods and Petco tenant spaces utilize a mix of high-quality materials and are 

distinctly articulated to add visual interest to the building.  As discussed above, the signage is 

entirely appropriate and compatible with both the surroundings and the Project design.    

In short, the design proposed in the Application satisfies all of the required elements of both the 

pre-February 25 and updated Zoning Codes, and the Planning Commission’s denial on this basis 

was arbitrary and capricious. 

  5. Parking And Access (Updated CMC 17.120.070.L) 

The Planning Commission relied on staff report conclusions regarding pedestrian and bicycle 

connectivity throughout the Property to incorrectly find that the Application was inconsistent 

with the design review criterion for parking and access.  As discussed above, the Application 

does not propose any changes to the building’s footprint, and accordingly would not disrupt the 

status quo in terms of connectivity; nor are connectivity issues relevant to a review of planned 

improvements that will occur only within the Property’s boundaries.  Additionally, these 

connectivity issues are not required to be analyzed under the pre-February 25 Zoning Code, and 

the status quo at the Property meets the updated Zoning Code’s requirement for provision of safe 

and convenient connections to pedestrians and bicyclists on the Property.  Updated CMC 

17.120.070.L. Indeed, there is no evidence in the record, either provided by Planning Department 

staff or otherwise, to demonstrate that the existing Project plans do not comport with the parking 

and access design review criterion. 

Furthermore, although Seritage believes that the updated Zoning Code should not apply to the 

Application and that the review of the proposed improvements to the Property does not implicate 

the rest of the Mall or a consideration of connectivity issues at the Mall, the Project as proposed 

already incorporates a number of bicycle parking locations, connection paths from the public 

right of way to the Property, and the addition of two bicycle paths connecting the Property to the 

public right of way.  These elements are more than adequate to meet the Code requirements. The 

Planning Commission’s finding that the Application does not comply with the parking and 

access design review criterion was therefore arbitrary and capricious.   

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

ea
l (

06
.1

5.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



 14  

 
 

  6.  Open Space And Public Places (Updated CMC 17.120.070.O) 

The Planning Commission erred in finding that the Application did not comport with the open 

space and public places design review criterion.  Although open space and public places did not 

even need to be considered by the Planning Commission, as this standard is not a part of the pre-

February 25 Zoning Code, the updated Zoning Code only requires that semi-public outdoor 

spaces “help support pedestrian activity with an active and engaging public realm.”  Updated 

CMC 17.120.070.O.  The proposed design meets this standard by including improved 

landscaping and outdoor seating areas to serve pedestrians.   

 

As discussed above, the proposed design has created numerous pedestrian areas and zones along 

the entire public-facing building frontages. All of these zones are designed to engage the public 

and create small gathering spaces. These zones are enhanced with materials friendly to 

pedestrians and create a scale and sense of space that is pedestrian-friendly.  Simply put, the 

Application is not deficient as it supports incremental redevelopment within the public realm.  

Accordingly, the Planning Commission’s finding that the Application does not comply with the 

open space and public places design review criterion is not based upon any evidence in the 

record and is wholly arbitrary. 

 

F. Finding F: The proposed Master Sign Program unreasonably exceeds the sign 

regulations of the zoning code. 

 

The Planning Commission’s adoption of this finding was arbitrary and capricious.  First, as 

discussed above, the Master Sign Program should be reviewed pursuant to the pre-February 25 

Zoning Code.  It is fully compliant with that code, which provides that signs can occupy a 

maximum area of one square foot of sign area per one square foot of linear building frontage.  

CMC 17.57.070.B.   

It is also fully compliant with the updated Zoning Code.  The Planning Department staff report 

recommended that the Master Sign Permit be denied because the post-February 25 Zoning Code 

establishes a maximum cumulative sign area in the Regional Commercial zone of one square 

foot of sign area per one square foot of linear building frontage, up to a maximum of 50 square 

feet.  Updated CMC 17.80.070.  Noting that the Application’s requested Master Sign Program 

would allow signs in excess of this maximum, the report recommended the Planning 

Commission “require approval of future signs consistent with Chapter 17.80.”  But updated 

CMC 17.80.130.F.2 provides: “A Master Sign Program may deviate from standards contained in 

this chapter relating to permitted sign height, number of signs, sign area, and type of sign.”  In 

other words, the Planning Commission had full discretion to approve the Master Sign Permit as 

requested by the Application, and because a Master Sign Program is being requested, the 

conclusion that the requested sign areas are “more than four times the maximum permissible by 

code” is not only arbitrary, but factually incorrect.   

The proposed Master Sign Program is also consistent with all required findings under the 

updated Zoning Code, under which the Planning Commission needed only to find that the 

proposed signs: are consistent with the General Plan, LCP, Zoning Code, and any applicable 

specific or area plan; are compliant with the standards of Chapter 17.80; will not adversely 

impact public health, safety, or general welfare; are compatible with the architectural design of 

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

ea
l (

06
.1

5.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



 15  

 
 

the building; and are not larger than necessary for adequate identification.  Updated CMC 

17.132.070.  These findings are easily supported by the Application.  The requested signage is 

fully compatible with the requirements of any Zoning Code, General Plan, LCP, or specific or 

area plan provision, and the signs pose no threat to public health, safety, or welfare.  The 

proposed signage is not only consistent with the architectural design of the building, but is also 

necessary and appropriate for the building and the types of tenants that will occupy the renovated 

spaces.  Signage of similar area is industry standard for these kinds of tenants, and is no larger 

than needed to make the proposed retail destinations at the Property competitive with business of 

a similar nature. 

Simply put, the Planning Commission’s decision to deny the Master Sign Program on the basis 

of alleged inconsistencies between the sign area permitted by the updated Zoning Code and the 

proposed sign areas was arbitrary, capricious, and disregards the true requirements applicable to 

the Application. 

III.  CONCLUSION 

The City Council has full discretion to review the Application anew—whether properly applying 

the pre-February 25 Zoning Code or applying the updated Zoning Code—and to approve it on 

the basis of its compliance with all Municipal Code, General Plan, and other applicable 

requirements, for all of the reasons discussed herein.  Because the Planning Commission’s 

decision to deny the Application with prejudice was arbitrary, capricious, and unsupported by 

any evidence in the record, and because the City Council is fully able to make all requisite 

findings to approve the Application, Seritage appeals the Planning Commission’s decision and 

respectfully requests that the City Council approve the Application.   

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

p
p

ea
l (

06
.1

5.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



1

Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us)

From: John Gerbrandt <John.Gerbrandt@santacruzcounty.us>
Sent: Wednesday, October 10, 2018 3:45 PM
To: Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us)
Cc: Pat Hoban; Rebecca Supplee
Subject: RE: Any update on Sears?

Hi Katie, 
 
I will give you an update of events since July 31, 2018. 
 
July 31, 2018:  Sears provided electronic correspondence (email) that included the updated UST Closure Permit packet 
for the 10 underground hydraulic hoists removed during February 2017 (without a permit from our agency).  This email 
also included the soil sampling plan Work Plan for Supplemental Soil Investigation (dated June 28, 2018, by TRC) and the 
appropriate Certificate of Liability Insurance form with Sears’ current workers compensation and employers’ liability 
insurance information (which is required by our agency for the required work). 
 
August 2018:  During August 2018, our agency worked with Sears to receive the appropriate fees for the UST Closure 
Permit.  Our agency reviewed the permit packet for all required elements. 
 
September 5, 2018:  Following the confirmation that all appropriate fees for the UST Closure Permit were received, our 
agency approved the UST Closure Permit, including the soil sampling work plan. 
 
September 13, 2018.  TRC emailed our agency with a fieldwork notification and field contact person information.  On 
September 21st, private utility and USA work would be conducted.  The drilling and soil sample collection would be 
conducted on September 27th.   
 
September 27, 2018:  TRC and Cascade Drilling advancement of 10 soil borings and for the collection soil samples from 
beneath each of the hydraulic lifts.  Our agency conducted a fieldwork inspection and witness drilling, soil sampling, and 
sealing of resulting soil borings with grout.  On this date, following the fieldwork, I called TRC’s project manager for this 
investigation, Ms. Kristin Bolen, and discussed with her that it might be warranted to discuss with the Responsible Party 
(Sears) the potential for rushing the laboratory analytical data due to the October 25, 2018, appeals date in front of 
Capitola’s City Council.  I do not know if the soil samples were placed on a rush with the analytical laboratory or if Ms. 
Bolen discussed that option with Sears. 
 
To this date, I have not received any soil analytical data or a report detailing the subsurface investigation work 
conducted on September 27, 2018.  The fact that I have not received any data, or a report, is to be expected because it 
would be an incredibly short time by industry standards.  Typically, I would require the report due date to be 90 days 
following the approval of a work plan, December 4, 2018, in this case.  The biggest obstacle for this project is for our 
agency to receive the subsurface investigation report in enough time for our agency to review and respond to the report 
by the October 25, 2018, appeals date. 
 
If you have any questions, please let me know. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
John Gerbrandt, P.G., R.E.H.S. | Environmental Health Specialist 

Hazardous Materials Program 

Environmental Health Division | Santa Cruz County Health Services Agency 

701 Ocean Street, Room 312, Santa Cruz, CA  95060 

8.A.2

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

an
ta

 C
ru

z 
C

o
u

n
ty

 E
n

v.
 H

ea
lt

h
 D

iv
is

io
n

 E
m

ai
l (

10
.1

0.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



2

 

From: Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us) <kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us>  
Sent: Wednesday, October 10, 2018 10:21 AM 
To: John Gerbrandt <John.Gerbrandt@santacruzcounty.us> 
Cc: Pat Hoban <pat@weber‐hayes.com>; Rebecca Supplee <Rebecca.Supplee@santacruzcounty.us> 
Subject: RE: Any update on Sears? 
 
Hi John, 
 
Hope all is well over at the County.  I believe you know that the Planning Commission denied the 4015 Capitola Road 
(Sears) application on June 7th.  The applicant appealed, requesting a hearing on October 25th.  I believe the requested 
October date was to complete environmental cleanup requirements.   
 
In preparation for the October meeting, could you provide me with a timeline of events that occurred since the June 7th 
denial regarding the environmental cleanup efforts and a summary of any outstanding issues? This would be a great 
help.  I’m starting to draft the staff report now.       
 
The following is from the appeal letter regarding permitting of the lifts:  
  
D. Finding D: The proposed development would be detrimental to the public health, 
safety, or welfare or materially injurious to the properties or improvements in the 
vicinity. 
The Planning Commission’s finding that the proposed development would be detrimental to the 
public health, safety, or welfare or materially injurious to the properties or improvements in the 
vicinity has no basis in fact. The Planning Department staff report and Planning Commission 
pointed to three improper rationales for this finding: (1) an alleged County permitting issue 
associated with the proper removal of several hydraulic lifts at the Property over a year ago and 
(2) a purported need for updates to stormwater management plans for the Property. Neither 
justifies the Planning Commission’s finding. 
 
First, the hydraulic lifts at issue were all properly removed according to standard removal 
procedures, and testing of the area in question did not identify any leaks associated with the lifts 
that were removed in 2017. Nor is there any indication that there was a spill, leak, or other 
release of polychlorinated biphenyls (“PCBs”) associated with any of these lifts or appurtenant 
systems. Indeed, the County issued a closure letter on June 29, 2016 for the removal work 
associated with the only documented leak from the hydraulic lift system, certifying that 
appropriate remediation had occurred. The evidence in the administrative record, which includes 
both a Phase I and Phase II report that do not identify any impacts associated with the lifts 
removed in 2017, clearly shows that the removal of the remaining hydraulic lifts posed no threat 
to public health or to other properties. What remains is an outstanding permitting issue that 
Seritage has committed to promptly resolving with the County of Santa Cruz, the appropriate 
lead agency for such environmental compliance issues. The outstanding permit documentation 
cannot properly serve as a basis for outright denial of the Application, particularly when Seritage 
suggested that the Planning Commission condition approval of the Application on receipt of the 
County’s rubber stamp on the properly‐completed removal activities. 
 
Give me a call if you have any questions.  I appreciate your help. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Katie Herlihy, AICP 
Community Development Director 

8.A.2

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

an
ta

 C
ru

z 
C

o
u

n
ty

 E
n

v.
 H

ea
lt

h
 D

iv
is

io
n

 E
m

ai
l (

10
.1

0.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



3

 
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 
(831) 475‐7300 
 

 
 
Planning Counter Hours: 1 ‐ 4 p.m., Monday ‐ Friday 

 
 
 
 

From: John Gerbrandt <John.Gerbrandt@santacruzcounty.us>  
Sent: Wednesday, August 01, 2018 12:04 PM 
To: Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us) <kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us> 
Cc: Pat Hoban <pat@weber‐hayes.com>; Rebecca Supplee <Rebecca.Supplee@santacruzcounty.us> 
Subject: RE: Any update on Sears? 
 
Hi Katie, 
 
Here is an update on the progress Sears has made.  On July 13, 2018, our agency received Sears’ “Application for Permit 
to Remove/Safeguard Underground Hazardous materials Storage Tank” for the 10 former hoists “deactivated” without 
permit from the facility on February 16, 2017.  The permit application our agency received was incomplete and did not 
include the required funds for the permit.  On July 31, 2018, our agency received additional documentation from Sears 
and Sears’ indicated that the required funds have been mailed to our agency.  Our agency will review the permit 
application once the permit fees have been received. 
 
If you have any questions, please let me know. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
John Gerbrandt, P.G., R.E.H.S. | Environmental Health Specialist 

Hazardous Materials Program 

Environmental Health Division | Santa Cruz County Health Services Agency 

701 Ocean Street, Room 312, Santa Cruz, CA  95060 

 

From: Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us) <kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us>  
Sent: Friday, July 13, 2018 1:16 PM 
To: Rebecca Supplee <Rebecca.Supplee@santacruzcounty.us> 
Cc: John Gerbrandt <John.Gerbrandt@santacruzcounty.us>; Pat Hoban <pat@weber‐hayes.com> 
Subject: RE: Any update on Sears? 
 
Thank you, Rebecca.   
 
John,  
Please keep us me in the loop regarding the permit status and timing.  Their development application is to convert the 
Sears into a Petco and TJ Maxx.  It was denied by the Planning Commission with environmental compliance being one of 
numerous findings for denial.  They appealed and have an October hearing set for City Council review.   

8.A.2

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

an
ta

 C
ru

z 
C

o
u

n
ty

 E
n

v.
 H

ea
lt

h
 D

iv
is

io
n

 E
m

ai
l (

10
.1

0.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



4

 
Thanks, 

Katie Herlihy, AICP 
Community Development Director 
 
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 
(831) 475‐7300 
 

 
 
Planning Counter Hours: 1 ‐ 4 p.m., Monday ‐ Friday 

 
 
 
 

From: Rebecca Supplee [mailto:Rebecca.Supplee@santacruzcounty.us]  
Sent: Friday, July 13, 2018 12:55 PM 
To: Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us) <kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us> 
Cc: John Gerbrandt <John.Gerbrandt@santacruzcounty.us>; Pat Hoban <pat@weber‐hayes.com> 
Subject: RE: Any update on Sears? 
 
Hi Katie, 
We just received the closure permit application for the hoists.  We have not reviewed or approved it.  I will be on 
vacation the next 2 weeks.  The project is assigned to John Gerbrandt.  You can contact him for any follow up 
questions.  Thanks, 
 

Rebecca Supplee, R.E.H.S. 
Hazardous Materials Program Manager 
County of Santa Cruz Health Services Agency - Environmental Health Division 
701 Ocean Street, Suite 312 
Santa Cruz, California  95060 
 
(831) 454-2738 (o) 
(831) 454-3128 (f) 
Rebecca.Supplee@SantaCruzCounty.US 
 
http://www.scceh.com/ 
 
 
 
 

From: Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us) <kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us>  
Sent: Friday, July 13, 2018 12:23 PM 
To: Rebecca Supplee <Rebecca.Supplee@santacruzcounty.us> 
Subject: Any update on Sears?  
 

8.A.2

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

an
ta

 C
ru

z 
C

o
u

n
ty

 E
n

v.
 H

ea
lt

h
 D

iv
is

io
n

 E
m

ai
l (

10
.1

0.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5

Hi Rebecca, 
 
The deadline in your letter has passed.  Did they apply for the correct permits for facility closure?  
 
Thanks, 
 
Katie Herlihy, AICP 
Community Development Director 
 
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 
(831) 475‐7300 
 

 
 
Planning Counter Hours: 1 ‐ 4 p.m., Monday ‐ Friday 

 
 

8.A.2

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

an
ta

 C
ru

z 
C

o
u

n
ty

 E
n

v.
 H

ea
lt

h
 D

iv
is

io
n

 E
m

ai
l (

10
.1

0.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



420 CAPITOLA AVENUE 
CAPITOLA, CALIFORNIA 95010 

TELEPHONE (831) 475-7300 
FAX (831) 479 -8879 

FINAL LOCAL ACTION NOTICE 

June 8, 2018 

Seritage SRC Finance LLC 
489 Fifth Avenue, 18th Floor 
New York, New York 10017 

RE: Notice of Final Action on Application #17 -019 

4015 Capitola Road #17-019 APN: 034-261-40 
Design Permit to renovate the existing SEARS into three tenant spaces (Sears, T J 
Maxx/Homegoods, and PetSmart) with remodeled exterior facades, two 4,000 square 
foot building pads for a future development phase, and a Master Sign Program located 
for the three tenants within the CC (Community Commercial) zoning district. 
This project is not located in the Coastal Zone. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Seritage SRC Finance LLC 
Representative: Mark Rone, Cypress Equities 

The above matter was presented to the Planning Commission on June 7, 2018, and was 
denied with prejudice. This decision may be appealed to the City Council within ten (1 0) 
calendar days following the date of the Commission action. If the tenth day falls on a weekend 
or holiday, the appeal period is extended to the next business day. June 17 fails on a Sunday; 
accordingly, the appeal deadline is Monday, June 18, 5 p.m. Appeals must be in writing, 
setting forth the nature of the action and the basis upon which the action is considered to be in 
error, and addressed to the City Council in care of the City Clerk. An appeal must be 
accompanied by a filing fee of five hundred dollars ($500). 

Also, a $7,000 deposit was collected at the time of project submittal. Deposit accounts require 
an initial payment as stipulated in the City's Fee Schedule. The initial deposit has been 
depleted, and the applicant is responsible for replenishing the account. The outstanding 
balance of the deposit account is negative $7,000.21. The outstanding balance must be paid 
prior to proceeding with an appeal or if not appealed, within 21 days of this notice. 

8.A.3

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

in
al

 L
o

ca
l A

ct
io

n
 N

o
ti

ce
 o

f 
D

en
ia

l (
06

.1
5.

20
18

) 
 (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



4015 Capitola Road, #17-019 
June 8, 2018 
Page 2 

FINDINGS 
A. The proposed project is inconsistent with the General Plan, and any applicable 

specific plan, area plan, or other design policies and regulations adopted by the 
City Council. 

Community Development Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the project 
and found that the project is inconsistent with the General Plan and the 41 51 

Avenue/Capitola Mall re-visioning plan. The project does not support the long-term 
transformation of the Capitola Mall into a more pedestrian-friendly commercial district 
with high quality architecture and outdoor amenities attractive to shoppers and families 
(Land Use Goal 8); the project is in conflict with the ultimate vision for the property, as 
represented in the 41st Avenue/Capitola Mall Re-visioning Plan (Land Use Goal 8.1 ); 
the project does not encourage the establishment of gathering places on the Mall 
property such as outdoor dining and courtyards that provide space for people to 
informally meet and gather (Policy LU 8.4); the project does not support the long term 
vision for the Capitola Mall of a new interior street within the Mall property lined with 
sidewalk-oriented retail, outdoor dining, and pedestrian amenities in which the new 
street is connected with the existing street network surrounding the mall property to 
enhance mall access for all modes of transportation (Policy LU 8.5); the project does 
not encourage high quality development within the 41st Avenue corridor that creates an 
active and inviting public realm (Goal LU-9); The project does not provide amenities that 
enhance the vitality of the corridor, such as outdoor dining and courtyards, pubic art, 
publicly accessible or semi-public gathering places, and bicycle and pedestrian facilities 
(LU 9.1 ); the project does not contribute toward establishing 41st Avenue as an 
attractive destination with activities for families and people of all ages that occur throughout 
the day and night and does not incorporate public art into public spaces (Policy LU 9.3); the 
project does not provide adequate bicycle and pedestrian facilities (Policy LU 9.9); the project 
does not minimize, avoid, or eliminate non-point source pollution by controlling stormwater 
runoff, polluted dry weather runoff, and other pollution, in compliance with Capitola's National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit and Stormwater Management Plan 
(Policy OSC 8.2); the application does not meet or exceed State stormwater requirements and 
incorporate best management practices to treat, infiltrate, or filter stormwater runoff and reduce 
pollutants discharged into the storm drain system and surrounding coastal waters during 
construction and post-construction, to the maximum extent practicable (Policy OSC 8.3); and 
the application does not provide "complete streets" that serve all modes of transportation, 
including vehicles, public transit, bicyclists, and pedestrians (Goal M0-2). 

B. The proposed project does not comply with all applicable provisions of the 
Zoning Code and Municipal Code. 
The project does not comply with environmental health regulations (CMC Chapter 2.20 
and Santa Cruz County Code Chapter 7.1 00); does not comply with stormwater 
regulations (CMC 13.16); and does not comply with the zoning code chapters 17.24 
Regional Commercial Zoning District, 17.76 Parking and Loading, 17.80 Signs, and 
17.120 Design Permits. 

C. The proposed project qualifies for a CEQA exemption 15270. 
Section 15270 of the CEQA guidelines exempts projects which a public agency 
disapproves. 

8.A.3

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

in
al

 L
o

ca
l A

ct
io

n
 N

o
ti

ce
 o

f 
D

en
ia

l (
06

.1
5.

20
18

) 
 (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



4015 Capitola Road, #17-019 
June 8, 2018 
Page 3 

D. The proposed development would be detrimental to the public health, safety, or 
welfare or materially injurious to the properties or improvements in the vicinity. 
The Sears Automotive Center has potential environmental impacts associated with 
underground hydraulic lifts. The Santa Cruz County Environmental Health Division 
(SCCEHD) requires permits to remove underground lifts. The SCCEHD has found 
underground lifts can leak oil and pose potential long term environmental and possible 
human health problems. There is evidence that some of the oil in the lift systems 
contained Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs), which are probable human carcinogens. 
On May 17, 2018, SCCEHD provided the applicant with a Notice of Violation (NOV) for 
the unpermitted deactivation and capping of ten in ground lifts at the project location. 
Without the SCCEHD permit insuring that the hydraulic lift closure has been completed 
in accordance with Santa Cruz County Chapter 7.1 00, summarized earlier, there is 
insufficient evidence in the record to establish that the project will not be 
environmentally detrimental and will not pose the risk of injury to persons or properties 
in the vicinity of the project. 

Also, the stormwater plans have not been found in compliance with Municipal Code 
Chapter 13.16. A third party technical review of the stormwater plans was completed by 
HydroScience. HydroScience made findings that the project is not in compliance with 
the Capitola Municipal Code Section 13.16 Stormwater Pollution Prevention and 
Protection and the Post Construction Requirements (PCRs) as specified in Resolution 
No. R3-2013-0032 issued by the California Regional Water Quality Control Board for 
the Central Coast Region in July 2013. Without compliance to Capitola Municipal Code 
Section 13.16 Stormwater Pollution Prevention and Protection and compliance with the 
PCRs as specified in Resolution No. R3-2013-0032 issued by the California Regional 
Water Quality Control Board for the Central Coast Region in July 2013, there is 
insufficient evidence in the record to establish that the project will not be 
environmentally detrimental and will not pose the risk of injury to persons or properties 
in the vicinity of the project. 

E. The proposed project does not comply with all applicable design review criteria in 
Section 17.120.070 (Design Review Criteria) 
The proposed project does not comply with all applicable design review criteria in 
Section 17.120.070 including D (Sustainability), N (Drainage), E (Pedestrian 
Environment), I (Architectural Style), J (Articulation and Visual Interest), K (Materials), P 
(Signs), L (Parking and Access); and 0 (Open Space and Public Space) as outlined 
within the staff report and incorporated within. 

8.A.3

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

in
al

 L
o

ca
l A

ct
io

n
 N

o
ti

ce
 o

f 
D

en
ia

l (
06

.1
5.

20
18

) 
 (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



4015 Capitola Road, #17-019 
June 8, 2018 
Page 4 

F. The proposed Master Sign Program unreasonably exceeds the sign regulations of 
the zoning code. 
The proposed Master Sign Program includes allowances of up to 251 square feet of 
sign area for an individual tenant sign on one fa9ade, more than four times the 
maximum permissible by code. 

Sincerely, 

K~ii~ 
Katie Herlihy, AICP 
Community Development Director 

cc: Mark Rone 

8.A.3

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

in
al

 L
o

ca
l A

ct
io

n
 N

o
ti

ce
 o

f 
D

en
ia

l (
06

.1
5.

20
18

) 
 (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



S T A F F  R E P O R T  

TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DATE: JUNE 7, 2018 

SUBJECT: 4015 Capitola Road #17-019 APN: 034-261-40 

Design Permit to renovate the existing SEARS into three tenant 
spaces (Sears, TJ Maxx/Homegoods, and PetSmart) with remodeled 
exterior facades, two 4,000 square foot building pads for a future 
development phase, and a Master Sign Program located for the three 
tenants within the CC (Community Commercial) zoning district.  
This project is not located in the Coastal Zone. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption, Section 15270 
of the CEQA guidelines  
Property Owner: Seritage SRC Finance LLC 
Representative: Mark Rone, Cypress Equities  

APPLICANT PROPOSAL 
The applicant submitted a design permit application to remodel the Sears building and convert 
the space into three separate tenant spaces with updated exterior facades.  The west side of 
the existing Sears space would be converted into three tenant spaces to accommodate TJ 
Maxx/Homegoods (40,772 sf), Petco (11,478 sf), and Sears (58,741 sf).  The proposal includes 
two new 4,000 square feet building pads; one on 41st Avenue frontage and one on Capitola 
Road frontage and a Master Sign Program for the three tenants. (Attachment 1: Plans; 
Attachment 2: Master Sign Program) 

The proposed project is not in compliance with Capitola Municipal Code 13.16 Stormwater 
Pollution Prevention and Protection, Resolution No. R3-2013-0032 of the California Regional 
Water Quality Control Board for the Central Coast Region, the Capitola Zoning Code, the 
Capitola General Plan, and Santa Cruz County Code 7.100.060.  Therefore, staff is 
recommending denial of the application.  

BACKGROUND 
On December 1, 2016, the Planning Commission provided direction on a Conceptual Review 
Application for the Sears building.  The Planning Commission advised the applicant to improve 
the Sears façade, provide phased buildout information, and coordinate with the mall owner to 
show how the project fits within the mall redevelopment and future circulation plans.  

On February 10, 2017, the City received an application for Design Permit and Master Sign 
Permit for the property at 4015 Capitola Road.  

5.D

Packet Pg. 136

8.A.4

Packet Pg. 130

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 (

06
.0

7.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



On March 9, 2017, the City provided the applicant with an incomplete letter which outlined 
outstanding items (Attachment 3).  On April 19, 2018, the City provided an updated incomplete 
letter that separated required incomplete items from advisory items, as a follow-up from a 
discussion with the applicant (Attachment 4: KH email). 

On December 14, 2017, the City received copies of a Phase 1 and 2 ESA from the project 
architect for the partial removal of joist.  

On January 9, 2018, the applicant provided an updated application submittal (Attachment 1). 

On February 7, 2018, city staff emailed the applicant explaining that comments were not ready.  
Also, staff informed the applicant that a new zoning code and zoning map had been adopted on 
January 25, 2018.  The property zoning changed from Community Commercial to Regional 
Commercial.  Staff explained that the new zoning and development standards would apply to 
the project on February 25, 2018 (Attachment 5).      

been reviewed by a third party and found that facility closure work was incomplete (Attachment 
6). 

On February 28, 2018, City staff provided the applicant with a second incomplete letter relative 
to the project under the new zoning district and new development standards (Attachment 7).   

On May 9, 2018, the applicant submitted a letter from their attorney, suggesting that application 

be set for public hearing at the earliest opportunity, and within 30 days at the latest.  The PSA 
sets forth a time limit of 30 days after an application is submitted in which to inform the applicant 
of whether the application is complete.  If the agency does not inform the applicant within the 
30-
Upon deeming the application complete, the application must be noticed for public hearing and 
the placed on the Planning Commission agenda (Attachment 8: Letter).  The first attachment to 
letter is included in the Attachment 8.  It is the letter from Merlone Geier providing approval of 
the plans including one 2,656-square-foot pad along Capitola Road.  The entire letter with 
attachments is voluminous with over 600 pages. In an effort to save paper, the full letter with 

e on the 
Community Development webpage at http://www.cityofcapitola.org/communitydevelopment.

On May 17, 2018, Santa Cruz County Environmental Health Division (SCCEHD) provided the 
applicant with a Notice of Violation (NOV) for the unpermitted removal of ten underground 
hydraulic lifts.   The NOV noted that the ten underground lifts that were removed in 2017 were in 
violation of Santa Cruz County Code 7.100.060.  SCCEHD directed the property owner to apply 
for and obtain a permit retroactively for the closure of the underground storage lifts that were 
removed and to do so by June 29, 2018 (Attachment 9). 

On May 18, 2018, the City Attorney confirms completeness determination (Attachment 10). 

On May 23, 2018, the City informed the applicant that the application would be reviewed by the 
Planning Commission on June 7, 2018 (Attachment 11). 

DISCUSSION 
Sears is located on the south-east corner of the Capitola Mall with frontage on Capitola Road 
and 41st Avenue.  The building is setback 280 feet from Capitola Road and 316 feet from 41st

5.D

Packet Pg. 137

8.A.4

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 (

06
.0

7.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



Avenue with surface parking and limited landscaping within the setback area.  The existing 
Takara restaurant building at 3775 Capitola Road is part of the same parcel as the proposed 
development.     

The subject property is 10.5 acres in size, the second largest ownership parcel on the mall site.  
The Sears building was built in 1971 and has had minor renovations in its 47-years of existence.  
Sears was the first structure to be built on the regional shopping mall property, followed by the 
mall and three larger department stores.  The mall site has been identified in the Capitola 
General Plan (2014) and the 41st Avenue/Capitola Mall Re-visioning Plan (2011) as an area 
prime for redevelopment.   

General Plan 
The 2014 Capitola General Plan outlines the vision for future development in Capitola through 
establishing guiding principles, goals, policies and actions. Attachment 12 includes relative 
excerpts from the General Plan related to the propose project and future development of the 
mall. The project has improved since the 2016 conceptual review, with the inclusion of two 
future building pads along the frontage of 41st Avenue and Capitola Road.  However, the project 
application fails to demonstrate how the proposed project coordinates with adjacent property 
owner plans, and implements the General Plan goals for mall redevelopment.  

As the mall evolves it is important to ensure the incremental changes within each parcel 
incorporate site improvements that fit within the greater vision for mall redevelopment, otherwise 
the General Plan goals may be missed entirely.  As proposed, the project has been designed to 
function independently from the mall, with no pedestrian connectivity between the two new 
tenant spaces and the mall.  It is unclear how the proposed project would fit into a larger mall 
redevelopment effort.  The application provides no indication of cooperation between adjacent 
property owners toward the General Plan goal LU-8 and Policies LU-8.1 and LU-8.5, as follows:  

Goal LU-8: Support the long-term transformation of Capitola Mall into a more 
pedestrian-friendly commercial district with high quality architecture and outdoor 
amenities attractive to shoppers and families. 

Policy LU-8.1: Phased Mall Redevelopment. Encourage a phased approach to 
redevelopment of the Mall property. Early phases may include improvements to the Mall 
façade and front entrance, and new retail pads fronting 41st Avenue. These early 
improvements shall not conflict with the ultimate vision for the property, as represented 
in the 41st Avenue/Capitola Mall Vision Plan (see Figure LU-6). 

Policy LU-8.5: New Interior Street. As a long-term vision for Capitola Mall, support the 
addition of a new interior street within the Mall property lined with sidewalk-oriented 
retail, outdoor dining, and pedestrian amenities. This new street should be connected 
with the existing street network surrounding the Mall property to enhance mall access for 
all modes of transportation. 

The current proposal disregards the relationship of the property to the regional mall with a lack 
of internal connectivity.  Furthermore, the only suggestion of cooperation with the mall owner, 
Merlone-Geier, was within a letter of support. The applicant did not submit a schematic build out 
or circulation plans for the mall site to understand how the proposal fits within the larger vision, 
as suggested by the Planning Commission during the conceptual review. 

Master Sign Program 

5.D

Packet Pg. 138

8.A.4

Packet Pg. 132

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 (

06
.0

7.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



The proposed project includes a master sign program (MSP) application. (Attachment 2) A MSP 
establishes unified and coordinated approach to materials, size, type, placement, and general 
design for signs within a multi-tenant project.  The Planning Commission may approve a MSP 
that deviates from the standards of the sign regulations relating to height, number of signs, sign 
area, and type of signs.   

The proposed MSP includes: 

 Maximum letter height - 5 feet.  

 Maximum sign area - 1 square foot per linear foot of building frontage  
o Petco 75.6 square feet,  
o TJ Maxx/Homegoods 200 square feet, and  
o Sears 180 square feet east elevation and 251 square feet south elevation.   

When a MSP is approved by the Planning Commission, all subsequent signs proposed for a 
development must comply with the standards and specification included in the MSP.  Signs 
consistent with an approved MSP are allowed with an administrative sign permit approved by 
staff.  The proposed MSP would administratively allow signs between 75 and 251 square feet.     

The new zoning code establishes a maximum cumulative sign area in the Regional Commercial 
zone of one square foot of sign area per one square foot of linear building frontage, up to a 
maximum of 50 square feet.  An additional 25% increase in sign area can be approved by 
Planning Commission.  This would allow up to 62.5 square feet of sign area per commercial 
establishment.  The proposed MSP includes allowances of up to 251 square feet, more than 
four times the amount allowed by code. Staff recommends the Planning Commission deny the 
MSP and require approval of future signs consistent with Chapter 17.80.   

Design Permit 
When considering Design Permit applications, the Planning Commission is required to evaluate 
applications to ensure they comply with the development standards of the zoning district, 
conform to policies of the General Plan and other design policies and regulations adopted by 
the City Council.  To obtain Design Permit approval, projects must satisfy the criteria of 
§17.120.070(A-S), as listed in Attachment 13. The following list includes the criteria in which the 
project is not in compliance:  

D. Sustainability. The project supports natural resource protection and environmental 

sustainability through features such as on-site renewable energy generation, passive solar 

design, enhanced energy efficiency, water conservation measures, and other green 

building techniques. 

N.   Drainage.  The site plan is designed to maximize efficiency of on-site drainage with runoff 

directed towards permeable surface areas and engineered retention.  

Staff Analysis: Per Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 2.20, the Santa Cruz County Health 

is the designated County Health Officer. To this end, the Health Officer enforces County Health 
Department ordinances within the City including Santa Cruz County Code Chapter 7.100 
governing hazardous materials and underground storage tanks.  

5.D

Packet Pg. 139

8.A.4

Packet Pg. 133

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 (

06
.0

7.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



Per Santa Cruz County Code Section 7.100.060, no person or business may close a hazardous 
material storage facility or underground storage tank without first obtaining a permit from the 
County Health Services Agency. In order to obtain a permit, the applicant must submit a written 
hazardous materials management plan fo   Per Section 7.100.140, the 
Health Officer may request information in addition to the hazardous materials management plan 
deemed necessary to protect human health, safety or the environment. Per Section 7.100.160, 
the Health Officer has the discretion to impose reasonable permit conditions and performance 
standards necessary to protect human health, safety, or the environment. Section 7.100.260 
pertains specifically to out-of-service storage facilities and reiterates the requirement to obtain a 
permit to close a storage facility assuring that the closure minimizes any threat to public safety, 
the possibility of water runoff from the facility and the possibility of water and soil contamination.   

A portion of the Sears facility was utilized as automotive center from 1971 to 2016.  To close the 
automotive facility, the owner is required to obtain a facility closure permit through Santa Cruz 
County Environmental Health Division (SCCEHD) as explained above. 

On December 14, 2017, the City received copies of a Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment 
(ESA) and Phase 2 ESA, for partial removal of joists, dated December 19, 2014 and April 6, 
2016 respectively.  The City contracted Weber-Hayes and Associates to review the submitted 
ESA documents.  Weber-Hayes found that the environmental work was for the partial removal 
of onsite joists, not a full facility closure as required with the proposed change of use.  On 
February 15, 2018, City staff informed the applicant of Weber- cility 
closure work had not been completed.  

On May 17, 2018, Santa Cruz County Environmental Health Division (SCCEHD) provided the 
applicant with a Notice of Violation (NOV) for the unpermitted removal of ten underground 
hydraulic lifts.  (Attachment 9)   The NOV notes that the ten underground lifts that were removed 
in 2017 were in violation of Santa Cruz County Code 7.100.060.  SCCEHD directed the property 
owner to apply for and obtain a permit retroactively for the closure of the underground storage 
lifts that were removed and to do so by June 29, 2018.  As noted in the letter, the SCCEHD has 
found underground lifts can leak oil and pose potential long term environmental and possible 
human health problems.  There is evidence that some of the oil in the lift systems contain 
Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs), which are probable human carcinogens.  
    
Drainage: A third party technical review of the stormwater plans was completed by 
HydroScience. (Attachment 14)  HydroScience made findings that based on the documents 
submitted, the project is not in compliance with the Capitola Municipal Code Section 13.16 
Stormwater Pollution Prevention and Protection and the Post Construction Requirements 
(PCRs) as specified in Resolution No. R3-2013-0032 issued by the California Regional Water 
Quality Control Board for the Central Coast Region in July 2013.   The Post Construction 
regulations emphasize protecting and restoring key watershed processes on site to create and 
sustain linkages between hydrology, channel geomorphology, and biological health necessary 
for healthy watersheds.  The performance requirements for this project require the project to 
minimize impervious surfaces, minimize stormwater runoff, treat all on-site generated runoff by 
constructing biofiltration systems or other similar devices, retain runoff on-site, and manage 
peak stormwater discharges.  The specific requirements of these requirements are contained in 
attachment 1 of the resolution. 

E.   Pedestrian Environment.  The primary entrances are oriented towards and visible from the 
street to support an active public realm and an inviting pedestrian environment. 

5.D

Packet Pg. 140

8.A.4

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 (

06
.0

7.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



Staff Analysis:  The two proposed tenant spaces do not include an internal connection to the 
mall.  The proposed lack of internal connectivity is counter to the established circulation pattern 
of a mall.  The proposed lack of connectivity will negatively impact the synergistic pedestrian 
relationship between the property and the established regional mall.    

I.   Architectural Style.  Buildings feature an architectural style that is compatible with the 
surrounding built and natural environment, is an authentic implementation of appropriate 

J.   Articulation and Visual Interest.  Building facades are well articulated to add visual 
interest, distinctiveness, and human scale.  Building elements such as roofs, doors, 
windows, and porches are part of an integrated design and relate to the human scale. 
Architectural details such as trim, eaves, window boxes, and brackets contribute to the 
visual interest of the building.

K.   Materials. Building facades include a mix of natural, high-quality, and durable materials that 
are appropriate to the architectural style, enhance building articulation, and are compatible 
with surrounding development.

P. Signs.  The number, location, size, and design of signs complement the project design and 
are compatible with the surrounding context. 

Staff Analysis: The proposed façade improvements of Sears create a modern look for the tenant 
that has an authentic design as a stand-alone retail establishment.  The architectural style has a 
California modern look with a mix of high quality finishes including metal panels, metal louvers, 
brick veneer in a charcoal color, horizontal wood siding, stone veneer, and a mix of walkway 
finishes.    

The proposed design for Petco and TJ Maxx/Homegoods is generic in style with large billboard 
like entryway design features added to the existing exterior finishes of the building. Other than 
the new entryways, the wall plane between Petco and TJ Maxx will remain straight, with minor 
articulation through repeated exterior finishes and landscaping.  There is no defined 
architectural style and limited differentiation for the proposed new tenant facades. The 
architectural improvements for Petco and TJ Maxx/Homegoods appear to have been designed 
for the signs, rather than sign fitting within the context of the architecture.   

L.  Parking and Access.  Parking areas are located and designed to minimize visual impacts 
-friendly environment. Safe 

and convenient connections are provided for pedestrians and bicyclists.  

Staff Analysis: There is a lack of pedestrian and bicycle connectivity through the property.  The 
Public Works Director recommends that bike lanes should be added in both directions on 38th

Avenue, 40th Avenue, the entrance off of 41st Avenue, and along the internal drive around the 
structure from Target to northern connecting to 40th Avenue.  The 2040 Regional Transportation 
Plan project list includes separated bicycle facility through Capitola Mall parking lot to connect 
38th Avenue bike lanes and 40th Avenue.   

In terms of pedestrian safety, many pedestrians walk between Target and the Sears building. 
Staff recommends adding a new sidewalk between Target and Sears.   

5.D

Packet Pg. 141

8.A.4

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 (

06
.0

7.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



Also, the project does not comply with the bicycle rack regulations of zoning code §17.76.080(A-
H), for short and long-term bicycle parking.  Bicycle parking standards are included in the zoning 
code to promote sustainable transportation alternative. 

The new building pads along 41st Avenue and Capitola Road will create additional trips and new 
circulation patterns.  Traffic and circulation impacts associated with the future phases have not 
be evaluated and therefore the impacts are unknown.   

O.  Open Space and Public Places. Non-residential development provides semi-public outdoor 
spaces, such as plazas and courtyards, which help support pedestrian activity within an 
active and engaging public realm.  

Staff Analysis: Minimal improvements are incorporated into the semi-public outdoor space 
around the exterior of the building.  Two typical wooden benches with black iron railing are 
proposed along the south elevation between Petco and TJ Maxx.  The design incorporates 
reutilizing existing planters, as well as introducing trellises on the building wall for plant growth.  
The plan lacks efforts toward an engaging public realm.  Opportunities exist to create an 
active/engaging public realm in the corner where the building steps back along the south 
elevation.  During the conceptual review, the Planning Commission had identified this area as 
an area of opportunity to engage the public.   

CEQA
Section 15270 of the CEQA guidelines exempts projects which a public agency disapproves.  
More specifically, (a)CEQA does not apply to projects which a public agency rejects or 
disapproves; (b) This section is intended to allow an initial screening of projects on the merits for 
quick disapprovals prior to the initiation of the CEQA process where the agency can determine 
that the project cannot be approved; and (c) This section shall not relieve an applicant from 
paying the costs for an EIR or negative declaration prepared for his project prior to the lead 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION   
Staff recommends the Planning Commission deny the design permit because the required 
findings of §17.120.070 cannot be made.  Aside from the larger design issues and inconsistency 
with the General Plan, two technical issue prevent approval of the application.  The project does 
not comply with environmental health regulations (CMC Chapter 2.20) and does not comply with 
storm water regulation (CMC 13.16).  Staff also recommends denial of the master sign program.

FINDINGS 

A. The proposed project is inconsistent with the General Plan, and any applicable 
specific plan, area plan, or other design policies and regulations adopted by 
the City Council. 
Community Development Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the 
project and found that the project is inconsistent with the General Plan and the 41st

Avenue/Capitola Mall re-visioning plan.  The project has been designed to function 
independently from the mall, with no pedestrian connectivity between the two new tenant 
spaces and the mall.  It is unclear how the proposed project would fit into a larger mall 
redevelopment effort.  The application is not consistent with General Plan goal LU-8 and 
Policies LU-8.1 and LU-8.5.

B. The proposed project does not comply with all applicable provisions of the 

5.D

Packet Pg. 142

8.A.4

Packet Pg. 136

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 (

06
.0

7.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



Zoning Code and Municipal Code. 
The project does not comply with environmental health regulations (CMC Chapter 
2.20); does not comply with stormwater regulations (CMC 13.16); and does not 
comply with the zoning code (CMC 17). 

C. The proposed project qualifies for a CEQA exemption 15270. 
Section 15270 of the CEQA guidelines exempts projects which a public agency 
disapproves.  

D. The proposed development would be detrimental to the public health, safety, or 
welfare or materially injurious to the properties or improvements in the vicinity.  
The Sears Automotive Center has potential environmental impacts associated with 
underground hydraulic lifts.  The Santa Cruz County Environmental Health Division 
(SCCEHD) requires permits to remove underground lifts.  The SCCEHD has found 
underground lifts can leak oil and pose potential long term environmental and possible 
human health problems.  There is evidence that some of the oil in the lift systems 
contained Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs), which are probable human carcinogens.  
On May 17, 2018, SCCEHD provided the applicant with a Notice of Violation (NOV) for 
the unpermitted deactivation and capping of ten in ground lifts at the project location.  
Without the SCCEHD permit insuring that the hydraulic lift closure has been completed 
in accordance with Santa Cruz County Chapter 7.100, summarized earlier, there is 
insufficient evidence in the record that the project will not be environmentally detrimental 
and will not pose the risk of injury to persons or properties in the vicinity of the project. 

Also, the stormwater plans have not been found in compliance with Municipal Code 
Chapter 13.16.  A third party technical review of the stormwater plans was completed by 
HydroScience.  HydroScience made findings that the project is not in compliance with 
the Capitola Municipal Code Section 13.16 Stormwater Pollution Prevention and 
Protection and the Post Construction Requirements (PCRs) as specified in Resolution 
No. R3-2013-0032 issued by the California Regional Water Quality Control Board for the 
Central Coast Region in July 2013.  Without compliance to Capitola Municipal Code 
Section 13.16 Stormwater Pollution Prevention and Protection and compliance with the 
PCRs as specified in Resolution No. R3-2013-0032 issued by the California Regional 
Water Quality Control Board for the Central Coast Region in July 2013, there is 
insufficient evidence in the record that the project will not be environmentally detrimental 
and will not pose the risk of injury to persons or properties in the vicinity of the project.  

E. The proposed project does not comply with all applicable design review 
criteria in Section 17.120.070 (Design Review Criteria) 
The proposed project does not comply with all applicable design review criteria in 
Section 17.120.070 as outlined within the staff report and incorporated within.   

F. The proposed Master Sign Program unreasonably exceeds the sign 
regulations of the zoning code.  
The proposed Master Sign Program includes allowances of up to 251 square feet of 
sign area for an individual tenant sign on one façade, more than four times the 
maximum permissible by code.  

ATTACHMENTS:  

1. 2018.01.09 4015 Capitola Road Plan Set 

5.D

Packet Pg. 143

8.A.4

Packet Pg. 137

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 (

06
.0

7.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



2. 4015 Capitola Road Master Sign Program 
3. 2017.03.09 Completeness letter 
4. 2017.04.19 Herlihy Email Lists Incomplete and Advisory 
5. 2018.02.07 KH email to Applicant 
6. 2018.02.15 KH email to Applicant 
7. 2018.02.28 4015 Capitola Road Completeness Letter 
8. 2018.05.09 CC&W letter to City 
9. 2018.05.17 SCCEHD Notice of Violation 
10. 2018.05.18 City Attorney Letter to Applicant 
11. 2018.05.23  City Attorney letter to CC&N 
12. Sections of General Plan 
13. Design Permit Criteria of 17.120.010(A-S) 
14. 2018.05.24 HydroSciene Memo 

Prepared By: Katie Herlihy 
  Community Development Director 

5.D

Packet Pg. 144

8.A.4

Packet Pg. 138

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 S
ta

ff
 R

ep
o

rt
 (

06
.0

7.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 139

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 140

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 141

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 142

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 143

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 144

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 145

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 146

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 147

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 148

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 149

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 150

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 151

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 152

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 153

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 154

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 155

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 156

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 157

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 158

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 159

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 160

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 161

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 162

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 163

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 164

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 165

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 166

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 167

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 168

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 169

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 170

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 171

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 172

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 173

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.5

Packet Pg. 174

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 P
la

n
 S

et
 (

01
.0

9.
20

18
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.6

Packet Pg. 175

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.6

Packet Pg. 176

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.6

Packet Pg. 177

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.6

Packet Pg. 178

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.6

Packet Pg. 179

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.6

Packet Pg. 180

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.6

Packet Pg. 181

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.6

Packet Pg. 182

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.6

Packet Pg. 183

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.6

Packet Pg. 184

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.6

Packet Pg. 185

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.6

Packet Pg. 186

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.6

Packet Pg. 187

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.6

Packet Pg. 188

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.6

Packet Pg. 189

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.6

Packet Pg. 190

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.6

Packet Pg. 191

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.6

Packet Pg. 192

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.6

Packet Pg. 193

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.6

Packet Pg. 194

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

 M
as

te
r 

S
ig

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

  (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.7

Packet Pg. 195

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
st

 c
o

m
p

le
te

n
es

s 
le

tt
er

 (
03

.0
9.

20
17

) 
 (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



8.A.7

Packet Pg. 196

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
st

 c
o

m
p

le
te

n
es

s 
le

tt
er

 (
03

.0
9.

20
17

) 
 (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



8.A.7

Packet Pg. 197

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
st

 c
o

m
p

le
te

n
es

s 
le

tt
er

 (
03

.0
9.

20
17

) 
 (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



8.A.7

Packet Pg. 198

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
st

 c
o

m
p

le
te

n
es

s 
le

tt
er

 (
03

.0
9.

20
17

) 
 (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



8.A.7

Packet Pg. 199

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
st

 c
o

m
p

le
te

n
es

s 
le

tt
er

 (
03

.0
9.

20
17

) 
 (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



8.A.7

Packet Pg. 200

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
st

 c
o

m
p

le
te

n
es

s 
le

tt
er

 (
03

.0
9.

20
17

) 
 (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



1

Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us)

From: Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us)
Sent: Wednesday, April 19, 2017 9:51 AM
To: Brian Walsh; Grunow, Rich (rgrunow@ci.capitola.ca.us)
Cc: Goldstein, Jamie (jgoldstein@ci.capitola.ca.us); Chas Fisher Jr.
Subject: RE: Sears Redevelopment

Hi Brian and Chas, 
 
I created two list for you for the pending items to assist in your update of the proposal.  
 
Let me know if you have questions. 
 
Regards, 

 

Katie Herlihy, AICP 
Senior Planner 
 
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 
(831) 475‐7300 
 

 
 
 
 
Incomplete Items 
1) The existing Sears auto repair center is proposed to convert to retail space.  This site has been used for

decades to perform auto repair services which involves the routine use of petroleum products and other
potentially hazardous materials.  Consequently, a Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) must be
prepared to research and document historic uses of the site and to determine if further testing, analysis, or
remediation is necessary prior to construction or use of the area as retail space.  The City of Capitola will 
select a qualified consultant to prepare the ESA.  The applicant shall be responsible for all costs to prepare
the ESA plus a 21% City administration fee.  Please be aware that a Phase II ESA may be subsequently
required based on the findings of the Phase I report.  
 

2) The application includes a request for a master sign program; however, it is unclear if the intent is to receive
sign permits concurrently with the design permit, or if the intent is to provide guidelines for tenants to obtain
their own sign permits in the future.  If it’s the desire to obtain sign permits now, additional details are
necessary to allow staff to evaluate the proposal.  Similarly, more refined design standards would be 
necessary for a master sign program.  Staff has provided guidance below on additional submittal
requirements for both a master sign program and a sign permit: 

 
a) Information needed for a master sign program: Master sign program must be updated to include: 

i) Proposed sign area on pages 4, 5, and 6 
ii) Master sign program should include all businesses onsite.  Include existing restaurant.  
iii) As drafted, clarify that all signs require Planning Commission approval OR modify master sign

program to set more defined standards with predictable outcome. 
iv) Page 17.  Add linear frontage for each tenant and maximum area for wall sign per tenant.   
v) Define incidental wall sign.  

8.A.8

Packet Pg. 201

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
is

ed
 c

o
m

p
le

te
n

es
s 

le
tt

er
 in

co
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d

 a
d

vi
so

ry
 (

04
.1

9.
20

17
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



2

vi) Define ancillary signs.  Note that the addition of allowing ancillary signs (in addition to wall signs) at
a maximum size of one square foot per lineal foot of building (page 17) doubles the current Capitola
maximum.  Staff suggests decreasing this standard.  

 
b) Information needed for a sign permit:  

i) Specifications for the proposed signs for each individual tenant.  There are discrepancies between 
the master sign program, the conceptual images, and the elevations that include signs.  Include 
specific sign sheets for each tenant for all proposed signs specifying sign area, materials, 
illumination, height and width, letter height, and location in color.   

ii) Include incidental wall signs and ancillary signs.  
iii) If signs exceed the limitations of the sign code, a variance may be required.  Due to the incomplete 

nature of the sign submittal staff is unable to determine if a variance is required at this time. 
 

3) Sheet C1.1 notes sidewalk replacement. There are no details of new sidewalk material.  A sidewalk plan 
should be submitted to show the location and width of sidewalk. 
 

4) Stamped survey of existing conditions by licensed surveyor.  Include locations of all existing features, 
buildings, trees and shrubs, and location of structures on adjacent lots.   

 
5) Exterior elevations must include existing and proposed for each elevation.  The proposed Sears elevations 

are not included in the plan set, only existing elevations were included on page A4.2.  Included existing and 
proposed for each elevations on the same sheet for easy comparison.   

 
6) Landscape plan only addresses 38th Avenue entrance.  Plan should include improvements to entire site. 

Landscape plan must show plant type, size, and quantity of plants and trees.  Exact location should be 
shown on the landscape plan.  Include irrigation plan.  Indicate any trees to be removed and the size of 
trunk. A tree removal permit may be required.   

 
7) Third party technical deposit of $5,000 for preparation and review of Phase 1 Environmental Site 

Assessment.  
 
8) Location of existing and proposed on-site lighting, height, and hooding devices. 
 
9) Parking.  Parking Calculation on page T0.0 does not include existing restaurant on site.  Also, the first page 

of the applications states that 10 spaces are removed and the application states 6 spaces are removed.  If 
less than required by code are available, the city can hire a 3rd party to evaluate shared parking funded by 
applicant.  

 
10) Sheet C1.1 notes sidewalk replacement. Sheet 1 suggests new pavers witin the sidewalk but hardscape 

details are not labeled or described. Add hardscape plan that include details of hardscape including 
materials.  Widths of sidewalks should be identified.  

 
11) Circulation plan delineating pedestrian, bicycle, and automobile circulation.   

 
12) Additional information required by Public Works as outlined in the memo from Danielle Uharriet.   

 

13) $3,231.90 fee for storm water development review fee  
 

 
Advisory Items 
1) During the conceptual review of the project, the Planning Commission emphasized that the applicant should 

closely coordinate with Merlone Geier to develop a comprehensive mall redevelopment project which
advances the City’s General Plan goals for the site.  The application did not include any other mall properties
nor any information about how the proposal would complement a future comprehensive mall redevelopment

8.A.8

Packet Pg. 202

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
is

ed
 c

o
m

p
le

te
n

es
s 

le
tt

er
 in

co
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d

 a
d

vi
so

ry
 (

04
.1

9.
20

17
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



3

project.  Please submit additional information demonstrating that the proposal has been coordinated with
other mall property owners and explain how the redeveloped Sears would complement and enhance a 
comprehensive mall redevelopment project.   

 
2) High quality architecture desired rather than minor entryway modifications.  Break up long, uninteresting

facades and utilize high quality materials. Additional in-line tenants would be supported. 
 

3) Include a phasing plan with development pads for future development 
 

4) Circulation improvements for pedestrian, cyclist, and automobiles in following locations:   
a) 40th Avenue  
b) 41st Avenue entrance 
c) Between Sears and Target  

 
5) Improve public realm and pedestrian experience.  Add opportunities for people to gather and interact. Note: 

This is difficult to gauge in the current plan set.  The landscape concept plan includes public realm 

examples but they are not shown on the site plan.  Update site plan to show exact location of public 

improvements.  

6) Improve placemaking and visitor experience.  
1. Building and public realm should relate to Capitola. 
2. Concern for mix-matched design and lack of aesthetic experience,  

 
7) Public Art – Include public art on the premise rather than donation off-site. 

   
8) Shared parking on the site is appropriate.             

 

9) The site is located along 41st Avenue and the design permit is subject to the 41st Avenue design guidelines 

(http://www.cityofcapitola.org/sites/default/files/fileattachments/community_development/page/1458/41st_a

venue_design_guidelines.pdf).  The design as proposed is not aligned with the following underlined 

guidelines as further explained by staff in italics: 

 
o Separate pedestrian and vehicular traffic patterns shall be provided.  Linkages between adjoining

commercial developments shall be provided as well as distinct pedestrian access from parking
areas to activity areas.  The use of specialty paving materials shall be encouraged to dress up
and direct pedestrian movement.  Sheet C1.1 notes sidewalk replacement. There are no details
of new sidewalk material.  A sidewalk plan should be submitted to show the location and width of
sidewalk.  Three areas suggested during the conceptual review for improved pedestrian and
vehicular flow include 40th Avenue, the 41st Avenue entrance, and the connection to Target.
These areas have not been addressed within the plans. 
 

o Easily identifiable bicycle parking shall be incorporated in all developments.  On-site bicycle 
circulation is encouraged for large developments, coordinated with the City’s bicycle plan.  Bicycle 
parking shall be located close to the building entrance, but should not interfere with pedestrian 
traffic.  Bicycle lockers are encouraged due to wet climate and providing adequate shelter for
employee bikes for longer periods of time.  Bicycle parking should be incorporated on both the
east and south elevations close to entrances. Plans should include bicycle circulation plan.  

 
o Develop sites in cooperation with owners of adjoining properties to improve the overall

development patterns of the area by providing coordinated access, shared parking areas and
enhanced traffic flow.  See #2 above regarding cooperation with owners of adjoining properties
to improve overall development patterns. Two areas that could be improved include the

8.A.8

Packet Pg. 203

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
is

ed
 c

o
m

p
le

te
n

es
s 

le
tt

er
 in

co
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d

 a
d

vi
so

ry
 (

04
.1

9.
20

17
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



4

connection between Target and Sears for automobile and pedestrian circulation, as well as the
40th Avenue access.  
 

o Buildings shall use design elements in public areas which provide a sense of human scale (insets,
overhangs).  Elements of pedestrian interest shall be included at ground floor levels (courtyard,
display windows). The PetSmart and TJ Maxx/Homegoods façade changes by the entryways are
large and not human scale.  There is no articulation between the tenant spaces. More
transparency through the introduction of windows and/or additional inline stores would assist in
breaking break up the long façade and create a better pedestrian experience.  The location of 
improvements to the public realm, such a sidewalk, courtyards, stone seat wall, benches, etc.,
should be identified on plans.  They are shown in the landscape conceptual design but not 
identified in a site plan.  Consistency in public realm adds to the customer aesthetic
experience.  Collaborative efforts with owners throughout the mall property to identifying a style
for public realm improvements will assist in placemaking efforts.    
 

o Projects containing many buildings of single large structures shall provide variety in building
shape, height, roof lines and setbacks.  Front of buildings shall provide variety and interest. The 
Sears design does a nice job of creating an authentic style that differentiates the Sears from the
new tenants.  The PetSmart and TJ Maxx façade improvements are dramatic entryways with large
backgrounds for the signs, rather than defining architecture.  Each tenant should have a unique 
architectural style. 

 
o Distinctive “trademark” buildings are discouraged.  The proposed PetCo and TJ Maxx designs 

could be categorized as anywhere USA design.  Incorporate architectural materials or features 
that relate to Capitola through a specific architectural style within the design. 
 

o Note: When updating the landscape plan, incorporate applicable guidelines into design.   

 
 

From: Brian Walsh [mailto:bwalsh@seritage.com]  
Sent: Thursday, April 13, 2017 1:20 PM 
To: Grunow, Rich (rgrunow@ci.capitola.ca.us) <rgrunow@ci.capitola.ca.us> 
Cc: Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us) <kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us>; Goldstein, Jamie 
(jgoldstein@ci.capitola.ca.us) <jgoldstein@ci.capitola.ca.us> 
Subject: Re: Sears Redevelopment 
 
Thank you 

Brian T. Walsh 
VP, Development 
Seritage Growth Properties 
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
On Apr 13, 2017, at 1:10 PM, Grunow, Rich (rgrunow@ci.capitola.ca.us) <rgrunow@ci.capitola.ca.us> wrote: 

Mr. Walsh: 
  
Sure…we’ll segregate the information necessary for a completeness determination from the advisory 
requests and comments.  We’ll provide this info to you next week. 
  
Thanks, Rich 
  

8.A.8

Packet Pg. 204

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
is

ed
 c

o
m

p
le

te
n

es
s 

le
tt

er
 in

co
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d

 a
d

vi
so

ry
 (

04
.1

9.
20

17
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



5

  

Richard Grunow 
Community Development Director 
City of Capitola 
831‐475‐7300 
rgrunow@ci.capitola.ca.us 
  
  

From: Brian Walsh [mailto:bwalsh@seritage.com]  
Sent: Thursday, April 13, 2017 12:02 PM 
To: Grunow, Rich (rgrunow@ci.capitola.ca.us) <rgrunow@ci.capitola.ca.us>; Herlihy, Katie 
(kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us) <kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us> 
Subject: Sears Redevelopment 
  
Rich and Katie‐ During a recent conversation I had with Jamie Goldstein he recommended that I ask you 
the planning staff to separate the technical deficiencies from the advisory deficiencies contained within 
the completeness letter staff issued to Seritage on March 9, 2017. As such, I ask that you please do so 
and send back to me so we can better evaluate where we stand. Thanks   
  
Brian T. Walsh 
VP Development 
Seritage Growth Properties 
10960 Wilshire Blvd‐ Suite 1420 | Los Angeles, California 90024           
Office: (424) 901‐7656 
Cell:     (203) 313‐6990 
  

8.A.8

Packet Pg. 205

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
is

ed
 c

o
m

p
le

te
n

es
s 

le
tt

er
 in

co
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d

 a
d

vi
so

ry
 (

04
.1

9.
20

17
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



1

Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us)

From: Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us)
Sent: Wednesday, February 07, 2018 4:43 PM
To: 'Craig Chinn'
Cc: 'Blake Carroll'; 'Ban Potrus'; 'Steve Carter'; 'Mark Rone'; 'Nikhil Gera'; Uharriet, Danielle 

(duharriet@ci.capitola.ca.us)
Subject: RE: Seritage Capitola-Update

Hi All, 
 
I am going to have to push out my comments one more week.  Not sure if you are aware that we just adopted a new 
zoning code.  It should not have any major impacts on your development proposal but I need to do a second review with 
all the new standards.  They will be applied 30 days from adoption of the new code (January 25th) so I figure I’ll add that 
analysis to the review as well 
 
I met with Public Works.  They are working on the storm water calculations with the new phase II pads.  I will be back in 
the office on Tuesday February 13th.   I plan to have a letter to you that week.   
 
Regards,  
 
Katie Herlihy, AICP 
Senior Planner 
 
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 
(831) 475‐7300 
 

 
 
Planning Counter Hours: 1 ‐ 4 p.m., Monday ‐ Friday 

 
 
 
 
 

From: Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us)  
Sent: Friday, February 02, 2018 3:50 PM 
To: 'Craig Chinn' <cchinn@adcollaborative.com> 
Cc: Blake Carroll <Blake.Carroll@cypressequities.com>; Ban Potrus <Bpotrus@adcollaborative.com>; Steve Carter 
<Steve.Carter@cypressequities.com>; Mark Rone <Mark.Rone@cypressequities.com>; Nikhil Gera <nikhil@gera.in> 
Subject: RE: Seritage Capitola‐Update 
 
Hi All, 
 
Quick update.  Thank you for the updated plans and addressing many of the City’s concerns.  I plan to send out a letter 
next week with all Planning and Public Works comments on the updated set of plans.  Also, we have a third party that 
will do the technical review of the phase I and phase II ESA.   I will forward an electronic copy of the letter once it is 
finalized.  

8.A.9

Packet Pg. 206

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

02
.0

7 
K

H
 e

m
ai

l t
o

 C
ra

ig
 C

h
in

n
  (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



2

 
Regards, 
 
Katie Herlihy, AICP 
Senior Planner 
 
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 
(831) 475‐7300 
 

 
 
Planning Counter Hours: 1 ‐ 4 p.m., Monday ‐ Friday 

 
 
 
 
 
 

From: Craig Chinn [mailto:cchinn@adcollaborative.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, January 24, 2018 3:31 PM 
To: Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us) <kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us> 
Cc: Blake Carroll <Blake.Carroll@cypressequities.com>; Ban Potrus <Bpotrus@adcollaborative.com>; Steve Carter 
<Steve.Carter@cypressequities.com>; Mark Rone <Mark.Rone@cypressequities.com> 
Subject: Seritage Capitola‐Update 
Importance: High 
 
Hi Katie, 
 
I understand that you are out sick. I hope that you feel better soon. When you have a moment can you please provide us 
with an update on where the resubmittal stands as well as the environmental review. Please feel free to respond via 
email or call me on my cell phone to discuss. Take care and talk to you soon. 
 

Craig Chinn, AIA 
Principal 

architecture design collaborative 
www.adcollaborative.com 
23231 South Pointe Drive 
Laguna Hills, CA 92653 
cchinn@adcollaborative.com 
cell  949.677.7165 
ph    949.267.1660 ext 201 
 
“Fastest Growing Private Companies”  
‐Awarded by Orange County Business Journal 
 
CONFIDENTIALITY: The information contained in this e‐mail, including any accompanying documents or attachments, is from architecture design collaborative, Inc. (adc), is intended only for 
the use of the individual or entity named above, and is privileged and confidential.  If you are the intended recipient of this e‐mail, then by utilizing the information contained in this e‐mail, 
you agree that such information may not be compatible with your software and/or may have been modified or damaged during transfer;  further, you agree to use such information only for 
the purpose or project for which it was intended, and, to the full extent provided by California law, agree to release and indemnify adc and its affiliated entities and individuals for all 
damages arising out of any such misuse of the information.  If you are not the intended recipient of this e‐mail, be aware that any disclosure, dissemination, distribution, copying or use of 
the contents of this message is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e‐mail in error, please return the e‐Mail message and destroy (delete) the original. 

8.A.9

Packet Pg. 207

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

02
.0

7 
K

H
 e

m
ai

l t
o

 C
ra

ig
 C

h
in

n
  (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



3

 

8.A.9

Packet Pg. 208

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

01
8.

02
.0

7 
K

H
 e

m
ai

l t
o

 C
ra

ig
 C

h
in

n
  (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



1

Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us)

From: Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us)
Sent: Thursday, February 15, 2018 4:04 PM
To: 'Craig Chinn'
Cc: 'Blake Carroll'; 'Ban Potrus'; 'Steve Carter'; 'Mark Rone'; 'Nikhil Gera'; Uharriet, Danielle 

(duharriet@ci.capitola.ca.us); Grunow, Rich (rgrunow@ci.capitola.ca.us)
Subject: RE: Seritage Capitola-Update

Dear Mr. Chinn,  
 
I have been reviewing your updated plans and have generated comments based on the current code.  On February 28th, 
our new zoning code takes effect.  The application will be subject to the new code.  I am currently drafting a list of 
comments based on the new code.  I recall prior to the holiday your questions regarding timing and my response being 
that I could not provide you with an estimate on a hearing date until I receive the pending documentation.       
 
The City contracted Weber‐Hayes and Associates to review the recently submitted ESA documents (Phase I dated 
December 19, 2014, Phase II dated April 6, 2016).  He informed me this week that based on information from the County 
of Santa Cruz Department of Environmental Health, the facility closure work has not been completed as there are still 
hoists and tanks on site.  Since the new tenants will not be utilizing the infrastructure, the hoists and tanks are required 
to be removed under the oversite of a County Health permit.  The facility closure permit is a requirement for businesses 
managing hazardous materials, prior to shutting the business. According to the County Website, the last action was an 
inspection dated November 2016, when it was still an active service center.   
 
Unfortunately, this is going to set the review back considerably.  Your application cannot be considered by the Planning 
Commission until the Phase I and Phase II and CEQA process are complete.  It is anticipated that a Negative Declaration 
or Mitigated Negative Declaration will be necessary depending on the results of the ESA. 
 
According to the consultant, the next step for you is to hire a qualified HAZMAT contractor to remove the hoists and 
tanks, flush floor drains, and pump out/clean the oil/water separator and to obtain necessary permits from the County 
DEH.  
 
Following completion of the closure process, the City’s ESA consultant will perform soil testing and analysis and prepare 
necessary documentation.  Note – this work must be completed by a City‐commissioned contractor.  The applicant will 
be responsible for the consultants cost.  This work is estimated to cost approximately $2,300 for Phase I ESA 
and  $10,000 to $12,000 for the limited Phase II confirmation soil/vapor sampling to document conditions.  This will take 
an estimated 6‐8 weeks to complete. 
 
I will continue to work on the zoning review under the new code.  Once the adopted version of the code is published, I 
will provide you with a copy.   

Regards, 

Katie Herlihy, AICP 
Senior Planner 
 
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 
(831) 475‐7300 
 

8.A.10

Packet Pg. 209

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

H
 e

m
ai

l t
o

 C
ra

ig
 C

h
in

n
 r

eg
ar

d
in

g
 E

S
A

 in
ad

eq
u

ac
ie

s 
(0

2.
15

.2
01

8)
  (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



2

 
 
Planning Counter Hours: 1 ‐ 4 p.m., Monday ‐ Friday 

 
 
 
 

From: Craig Chinn [mailto:cchinn@adcollaborative.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, February 14, 2018 10:07 PM 
To: Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us) <kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us> 
Cc: Blake Carroll <Blake.Carroll@cypressequities.com>; Ban Potrus <Bpotrus@adcollaborative.com>; Steve Carter 
<Steve.Carter@cypressequities.com>; Mark Rone <Mark.Rone@cypressequities.com>; Nikhil Gera <nikhil@gera.in>; 
Uharriet, Danielle (duharriet@ci.capitola.ca.us) <duharriet@ci.capitola.ca.us> 
Subject: RE: Seritage Capitola‐Update 
 
Hi Katie, 
 
Just following up on your email and checking in on your comments as well as the date for our hearing. We are still 
expecting to be on for early March as previously discussed. Please let us know and thanks for your help. We appreciate 
your help. 
 

Craig Chinn, AIA 
Principal 

architecture design collaborative 
www.adcollaborative.com 
23231 South Pointe Drive 
Laguna Hills, CA 92653 
cchinn@adcollaborative.com 
cell  949.677.7165 
ph    949.267.1660 ext 201 
 
“Fastest Growing Private Companies”  
‐Awarded by Orange County Business Journal 
 
CONFIDENTIALITY: The information contained in this e‐mail, including any accompanying documents or attachments, is from architecture design collaborative, Inc. (adc), is intended only for 
the use of the individual or entity named above, and is privileged and confidential.  If you are the intended recipient of this e‐mail, then by utilizing the information contained in this e‐mail, 
you agree that such information may not be compatible with your software and/or may have been modified or damaged during transfer;  further, you agree to use such information only for 
the purpose or project for which it was intended, and, to the full extent provided by California law, agree to release and indemnify adc and its affiliated entities and individuals for all 
damages arising out of any such misuse of the information.  If you are not the intended recipient of this e‐mail, be aware that any disclosure, dissemination, distribution, copying or use of 
the contents of this message is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e‐mail in error, please return the e‐Mail message and destroy (delete) the original. 

 

From: Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us) [mailto:kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us]  
Sent: Wednesday, February 7, 2018 4:43 PM 
To: Craig Chinn <cchinn@adcollaborative.com> 
Cc: Blake Carroll <Blake.Carroll@cypressequities.com>; Ban Potrus <Bpotrus@adcollaborative.com>; Steve Carter 
<Steve.Carter@cypressequities.com>; Mark Rone <Mark.Rone@cypressequities.com>; Nikhil Gera <nikhil@gera.in>; 
Uharriet, Danielle (duharriet@ci.capitola.ca.us) <duharriet@ci.capitola.ca.us> 
Subject: RE: Seritage Capitola‐Update 
 
Hi All, 
 
I am going to have to push out my comments one more week.  Not sure if you are aware that we just adopted a new 
zoning code.  It should not have any major impacts on your development proposal but I need to do a second review with 

8.A.10

Packet Pg. 210

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

H
 e

m
ai

l t
o

 C
ra

ig
 C

h
in

n
 r

eg
ar

d
in

g
 E

S
A

 in
ad

eq
u

ac
ie

s 
(0

2.
15

.2
01

8)
  (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



3

all the new standards.  They will be applied 30 days from adoption of the new code (January 25th) so I figure I’ll add that 
analysis to the review as well 
 
I met with Public Works.  They are working on the storm water calculations with the new phase II pads.  I will be back in 
the office on Tuesday February 13th.   I plan to have a letter to you that week.   
 
Regards,  
 
Katie Herlihy, AICP 
Senior Planner 
 
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 
(831) 475‐7300 
 

 
 
Planning Counter Hours: 1 ‐ 4 p.m., Monday ‐ Friday 

 
 
 
 
 

From: Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us)  
Sent: Friday, February 02, 2018 3:50 PM 
To: 'Craig Chinn' <cchinn@adcollaborative.com> 
Cc: Blake Carroll <Blake.Carroll@cypressequities.com>; Ban Potrus <Bpotrus@adcollaborative.com>; Steve Carter 
<Steve.Carter@cypressequities.com>; Mark Rone <Mark.Rone@cypressequities.com>; Nikhil Gera <nikhil@gera.in> 
Subject: RE: Seritage Capitola‐Update 
 
Hi All, 
 
Quick update.  Thank you for the updated plans and addressing many of the City’s concerns.  I plan to send out a letter 
next week with all Planning and Public Works comments on the updated set of plans.  Also, we have a third party that 
will do the technical review of the phase I and phase II ESA.   I will forward an electronic copy of the letter once it is 
finalized.  
 
Regards, 
 
Katie Herlihy, AICP 
Senior Planner 
 
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 
(831) 475‐7300 
 

8.A.10

Packet Pg. 211

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

H
 e

m
ai

l t
o

 C
ra

ig
 C

h
in

n
 r

eg
ar

d
in

g
 E

S
A

 in
ad

eq
u

ac
ie

s 
(0

2.
15

.2
01

8)
  (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



4

 
 
Planning Counter Hours: 1 ‐ 4 p.m., Monday ‐ Friday 

 
 
 
 
 
 

From: Craig Chinn [mailto:cchinn@adcollaborative.com]  
Sent: Wednesday, January 24, 2018 3:31 PM 
To: Herlihy, Katie (kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us) <kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us> 
Cc: Blake Carroll <Blake.Carroll@cypressequities.com>; Ban Potrus <Bpotrus@adcollaborative.com>; Steve Carter 
<Steve.Carter@cypressequities.com>; Mark Rone <Mark.Rone@cypressequities.com> 
Subject: Seritage Capitola‐Update 
Importance: High 
 
Hi Katie, 
 
I understand that you are out sick. I hope that you feel better soon. When you have a moment can you please provide us 
with an update on where the resubmittal stands as well as the environmental review. Please feel free to respond via 
email or call me on my cell phone to discuss. Take care and talk to you soon. 
 

Craig Chinn, AIA 
Principal 

architecture design collaborative 
www.adcollaborative.com 
23231 South Pointe Drive 
Laguna Hills, CA 92653 
cchinn@adcollaborative.com 
cell  949.677.7165 
ph    949.267.1660 ext 201 
 
“Fastest Growing Private Companies”  
‐Awarded by Orange County Business Journal 
 
CONFIDENTIALITY: The information contained in this e‐mail, including any accompanying documents or attachments, is from architecture design collaborative, Inc. (adc), is intended only for 
the use of the individual or entity named above, and is privileged and confidential.  If you are the intended recipient of this e‐mail, then by utilizing the information contained in this e‐mail, 
you agree that such information may not be compatible with your software and/or may have been modified or damaged during transfer;  further, you agree to use such information only for 
the purpose or project for which it was intended, and, to the full extent provided by California law, agree to release and indemnify adc and its affiliated entities and individuals for all 
damages arising out of any such misuse of the information.  If you are not the intended recipient of this e‐mail, be aware that any disclosure, dissemination, distribution, copying or use of 
the contents of this message is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e‐mail in error, please return the e‐Mail message and destroy (delete) the original. 

 

8.A.10

Packet Pg. 212

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

H
 e

m
ai

l t
o

 C
ra

ig
 C

h
in

n
 r

eg
ar

d
in

g
 E

S
A

 in
ad

eq
u

ac
ie

s 
(0

2.
15

.2
01

8)
  (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



      420 Capitola Avenue 
      Capitola, California  95010 

      Telephone:  (831) 475-7300 
      FAX: (831) 479-8879 

      Website: www.ci.capitola.ca.us  

 
 
February 28, 2018 
 
Mark Rone, Cypress Equities 
8343 Douglas Avenue 
Suite 200 
Dallas, TX 75225 
 
Subject:  4015 Capitola Road, Design Permit, #17-019 
 
Dear Mark Rone: 
 
The City of Capitola Community Development Department has completed its review of your 
application for a design permit and master sign permit at the existing SEARS retail business location 
at 4015 Capitola Road, and is providing you with the following information as a guide for further 
processing of your application. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Below is the project description that staff has developed based on the information submitted in your 
application package.  Please review this project description carefully.  If the description is inaccurate 
or incomplete, please contact your assigned planner immediately to correct the information. 
 

This is a request for a Design Permit to renovate the existing SEARS into 3 tenant 
spaces with new exterior facades and new signs at 4015 Capitola Road.  The 
applicant is proposing new signs for the three tenants for visibility from Capitola 
Road and 41st Avenue.  The new configurations will convert the site from a single 
Sears retail and automotive shop into three tenant spaces including Sears retail, 
TJ Maxx/Homegoods, and PetSmart.  The property is located at the corner of 
Capitola Road and 41st Avenue, within the CC (Community Commercial) zoning 
district.  Phase 2 of the project is to develop two commercial pads, one 4,000 
square foot pad along the frontage of Capitola Road and a second 4,000 square 
foot pad on the frontage of 41st Avenue.  

 
APPLICATION COMPLETENESS DETERMINATION 
The Community Development Department has completed its review of your application and has 
found it incomplete pursuant to Section 65943 of the California Government Code.  As detailed 
herein, additional information and/or corrections need to be submitted for staff to continue 
processing your application. 
 
PROJECT ISSUES/CORRECTIONS 
The following project issues and/or corrections to submitted plans and documents must be 
completed prior to scheduling your project for public hearings before the Architecture and Site 
Review Committee, and subsequently, the Planning Commission. 
 
Project Issues 
The following project issue(s) were identified during review of your application.  These issue(s) may 
require a substantial redesign of the project or, if not resolved, may result in the Department 
recommending denial of your project.  These issues were identified based upon information presently 
available to the City and are subject to change upon submittal of further information or studies: 
 

8.A.11

Packet Pg. 213

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ec
o

n
d

 C
o

m
p

le
te

n
es

s 
L

et
te

r 
2.

28
.2

01
8 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)

http://www.ci.capitola.ca.us/


1. During the conceptual review of the project, the Planning Commission emphasized that the 
applicant should closely coordinate with Merlone Geier to develop a comprehensive mall 
redevelopment project which advances the City’s General Plan goals for the site.  The 
application did not include any other mall properties nor any information about how the 
proposal would complement a future comprehensive mall redevelopment project.  Please 
submit additional information demonstrating that the proposal has been coordinated with 
other mall property owners and explain how the redeveloped Sears would complement and 
enhance a comprehensive mall redevelopment project.   
 

The submitted plans are missing additional necessary information. The plans must be updated to 
include the necessary information detailed below prior to the application being brought before the 
Architecture and Site Review Committee or the Planning Commission. 

 
Plan Corrections/Additional Information 
The following corrections or additional information is necessary to continue processing your 
application.   
 

1. Parking Plan.  Staff is having difficulty matching the parking in the site plan to the 
parking breakdown on sheet T0.0.  Provide a parking sheet that identifies the available 
parking, City required parking (Table to show: Each retail/restaurant space floor area 
and required parking: retail 1 space per 300 sf, Restaurant dining 1 space per 60 all 
other restaurant 1 space per 300 sf), and REA shared parking agreements. Number 
parking spaces.  Provide parking plan for phase 1 and phase 2.  

2. Location of existing and proposed on-site lighting, height, and hooding devices. 
3. Bicycle Racks shall be identified on the plans.  The new zoning code (17.76.080) 

requires: 
a. Short-term spaces: 10% of required automobile spaces.  Must be within 100 feet 

of primary entrance.   
b. Long term bicycle parking spaces: 1 space per 20 automobile spaces for uses 

10,000 square feet or greater. 
c. See 17.76.080 A – H for specific bicycle rack regulations.  

4. Additional information required by Public Works as outlined in the attached memo from 
Danielle Uharriet.   

a. Submit a revised storm water permit project application form.  Calculations are 
for the entire project (Phase 1 and Phase 2). 

b. Based on a review of the current plans, the project may be a Tier 3 or 4 project 
and will require compliances with the Post-Construction Stormwater 
Management requirements.  Refer to the attached Tier 3 and 4 Storm Water 
Technical Guide and the California Regional Water Quality Control Board 
Central Coast Region Resolution No. R3-2013-0032 pertaining to post-
construction requirements (PCRs). 

5. Phase I/Phase II ESA – to be completed by third party contractor hired by the City.  
 

Please resubmit the above listed information by March 30th, 2018.  Please note that any delays 
in providing revised documents to the City may also result in your tentative public hearing 
date being postponed. 
 
Advisory Items 
The following advisory items, are advisory and are not required prior to processing your application. 

1. Increase architectural differentiation between Petco and TJ Maxx facades.  The Sears façade 
creates the aesthetic of a separate entity through defined contemporary finishes.  The Petco 
and TJ Maxx both utilize the existing exterior brick veneer and stucco and are not of a specific 
architectural style other than defined large entryways.  Suggest clear delineation between 
the two entities with a specific architectural style.   

2. Modernize proposed bench and planters to complement updated design.   

8.A.11

Packet Pg. 214

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ec
o

n
d

 C
o

m
p

le
te

n
es

s 
L

et
te

r 
2.

28
.2

01
8 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



3. The City would condition the project to provide an Irrevocable Offer of Dedication (IOD) to 
provide a through street at 40th Avenue in line with the General Plan as a condition of 
approval.  

4.  Modify bicycle circulation to create internal circulation throughout the property.  Specifically, 
bike lanes should be added in both directions on the 38th Avenue, 40th Avenue, Entrance off 
of 41st Avenue, and within the internal drive connecting around the structure from Target to 
northern connection of 40th Avenue.  Within the updates for 2040 Regional Transportation 
Plan Project List the plan includes Separated bicycle facility through Capitola Mall parking lot 
to connect 38th Avenue bike lanes and 40th Avenue.    

5. Add a crosswalk between Target and Sears. 
6. Internal pedestrian connection between the mall and new tenants at 4015 Capitola Road.  

City suggest checkout near internal mall entrances to maintain established internal 
pedestrian circulation patterns.   
 

 
ESTIMATED PROCESSING COST 
Based upon our preliminary review of your application, we estimate that your initial deposit will not 
be adequate to complete the processing of your application.  Accordingly, please submit an 
additional deposit of $26,844.65 for the third party ESA, technical review of stormwater, and 
additional planner cost recovery funds.  The estimated breakdown of the costs are as follows: (1) 
$18,513 for third party technical deposit of for completion of Phase 1/Phase 2 Environmental Site 
Assessment ($15,300) and 21% director fee ($3,213); and (2) $3331.65 for the storm water 
development review fee ($3,173.00) and 5% tech fee ($158.65); and (3) $5,000 additional planner 
cost recovery deposit to allow continued processing of your application.  Please note that this cost 
estimate is only for your planning applications and does not include building permit costs, outside 
agency fees, or private engineering, architecture, or contractor costs.  
 
ESTIMATED PROCESSING TIMELINE 
As stated in my February 15, 2018 email, the City contracted Weber-Hayes and Associates to 
review the recently submitted ESA documents (Phase I dated December 19, 2014, Phase II dated 
April 6, 2016).  Weber-Hayes and Associates informed the City that the facility closure work has 
not been completed as there are still hoists and tanks on site.  According to the consultant, the 
next step for you is to hire a qualified HAZMAT contractor to remove the hoists and tanks, flush 
floor drains, and pump out/clean the oil/water separator and to obtain necessary permits from the 
County DEH.  
 
Following completion of the closure process, the City’s ESA consultant will perform soil testing and 
analysis and prepare necessary documentation.  Note – this work must be completed by a City-
commissioned contractor.  The applicant will be responsible for the consultants cost.  This work is 
estimated to cost approximately $2,300 for Phase I ESA and  $10,000 to $12,000 for the limited 
Phase II confirmation soil/vapor sampling to document conditions.  This will take an estimated 6-8 
weeks to complete. 
 
Your application cannot be considered by the Planning Commission until the Phase I and Phase II 
and CEQA process are complete.  It is anticipated that a Negative Declaration or Mitigated 
Negative Declaration may be necessary depending on the results of the ESA. 
 
Based upon your application status and remaining application processing steps, we estimate that 
your project will be scheduled for an Architecture and Site Review Committee in the summer of 2018 
followed by Planning Commission hearing.  Please note this estimate assumes a timely and 
complete resubmittal of all information noted in this letter.   

 
Task/Activity Estimated Duration 

(Days) 
Estimated Completion 

Date 

Applicant resubmits 30 March 30, 2018 

Third party review of Phase I/II ESA 60* May 30, 2018 

8.A.11

Packet Pg. 215

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ec
o

n
d

 C
o

m
p

le
te

n
es

s 
L

et
te

r 
2.

28
.2

01
8 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



Release of CEQA document 14 June 14, 2018 

Public review of CEQA document 30 July 16, 2018 

Response to public comments 14 July 31, 2018 

Architecture and Site Review 
Committee meeting 

15 August 22, 2018 

Planning Commission hearing 21 October 4, 2018 

Appeal period 10 working days October 18, 2018 
*Dependent upon consultant availability. Additional time may be necessary if study determines need for Phase II 
report. 

 
If you have any questions or require additional information, please contact me at 831.475.7300 or 
by email at kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us. 
 
OTHER REQUIRED PERMITS 

Please be aware that in addition to a design permit and master sign program, you may also be 
required to obtain other permits/approvals as listed below prior to initiating construction.  These 
permits/approvals typically require additional fees which are not covered by your planning 
applications.   
 

• Building Permit from the City of Capitola (bvanson@ci.capitola.ca.us) 

• Will-serve letter from the Santa Cruz Water Department (831-420-5200) 

• Will-serve letter (or plan approval) from the Central Fire Protection District (831-479-6843) 

• Approval from County of Santa Cruz Sanitation District (831-454-2160) 

• Approval from County of Santa Cruz Department of Environmental Health (831-454-2022) 
 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
Katie Herlihy, AICP 
Senior Planner 
 
Seritage SRC Finance LLC, Blake Carrol, Mark Rone, Nikhil Gera, Steve Carter, Brian Walsh 

 

8.A.11

Packet Pg. 216

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

ec
o

n
d

 C
o

m
p

le
te

n
es

s 
L

et
te

r 
2.

28
.2

01
8 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.12

Packet Pg. 217

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

C
&

N
 L

et
te

r 
to

 C
it

y 
(0

5.
09

.2
01

8)
  (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



8.A.12

Packet Pg. 218

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

C
&

N
 L

et
te

r 
to

 C
it

y 
(0

5.
09

.2
01

8)
  (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



8.A.12

Packet Pg. 219

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

C
&

N
 L

et
te

r 
to

 C
it

y 
(0

5.
09

.2
01

8)
  (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



8.A.12

Packet Pg. 220

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

C
&

N
 L

et
te

r 
to

 C
it

y 
(0

5.
09

.2
01

8)
  (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



8.A.12

Packet Pg. 221

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

C
&

N
 L

et
te

r 
to

 C
it

y 
(0

5.
09

.2
01

8)
  (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



8.A.12

Packet Pg. 222

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

C
&

N
 L

et
te

r 
to

 C
it

y 
(0

5.
09

.2
01

8)
  (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



8.A.12

Packet Pg. 223

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

C
&

N
 L

et
te

r 
to

 C
it

y 
(0

5.
09

.2
01

8)
  (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



8.A.12

Packet Pg. 224

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

C
&

N
 L

et
te

r 
to

 C
it

y 
(0

5.
09

.2
01

8)
  (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



8.A.12

Packet Pg. 225

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

C
&

N
 L

et
te

r 
to

 C
it

y 
(0

5.
09

.2
01

8)
  (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



8.A.12

Packet Pg. 226

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

C
&

N
 L

et
te

r 
to

 C
it

y 
(0

5.
09

.2
01

8)
  (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



8.A.12

Packet Pg. 227

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

C
&

N
 L

et
te

r 
to

 C
it

y 
(0

5.
09

.2
01

8)
  (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



8.A.12

Packet Pg. 228

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

C
&

N
 L

et
te

r 
to

 C
it

y 
(0

5.
09

.2
01

8)
  (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



8.A.12

Packet Pg. 229

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

C
&

N
 L

et
te

r 
to

 C
it

y 
(0

5.
09

.2
01

8)
  (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



8.A.12

Packet Pg. 230

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

C
&

N
 L

et
te

r 
to

 C
it

y 
(0

5.
09

.2
01

8)
  (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



8.A.12

Packet Pg. 231

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

C
&

N
 L

et
te

r 
to

 C
it

y 
(0

5.
09

.2
01

8)
  (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



8.A.12

Packet Pg. 232

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

C
&

N
 L

et
te

r 
to

 C
it

y 
(0

5.
09

.2
01

8)
  (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



8.A.12

Packet Pg. 233

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

C
&

N
 L

et
te

r 
to

 C
it

y 
(0

5.
09

.2
01

8)
  (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



Please note.  The entire letter with all attachments is 646 pages.  The 

full document including attachments B through F are available at 

Capitola City Hall’s  Community Development Department at 420 

Capitola Avenue and available at the Community Development 

Webpage at  http://www.cityofcapitola.org/communitydevelopment. 

 

8.A.12

Packet Pg. 234

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

C
&

N
 L

et
te

r 
to

 C
it

y 
(0

5.
09

.2
01

8)
  (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



�� 8.A.13

Packet Pg. 235

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

er
lo

n
e 

G
ei

er
 L

et
te

r 
02

.1
0.

20
17

  (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.13

Packet Pg. 236

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

er
lo

n
e 

G
ei

er
 L

et
te

r 
02

.1
0.

20
17

  (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.13

Packet Pg. 237

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

er
lo

n
e 

G
ei

er
 L

et
te

r 
02

.1
0.

20
17

  (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.13

Packet Pg. 238

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

er
lo

n
e 

G
ei

er
 L

et
te

r 
02

.1
0.

20
17

  (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 

County of Santa Cruz 
 

HEALTH SERVICES AGENCY 

701 OCEAN STREET, ROOM 312, SANTA CRUZ, CA  95060-4073 

(831) 454-2022     FAX: (831) 454-3128   

http://www.co.santa-cruz.ca.us/ 
 
May 17, 2018 
 
Seritage SRC Finance, LLC 
489 Fifth Avenue, 18th Floor 
New York, NY 10017 
 
Re: Notice of Violation for Former Sears Auto Service Center # 6461 Located at 4015 Capitola Rd, 
       Capitola, California.  
 
Dear Sir or Madam, 
 
It has been brought to my attention that on February 16th, 2017, ServAll “deactivated” 10 underground 
hydraulic lifts at the Former Sears Service Station #6461, located at 4015 Capitola Road in Capitola, California.  
Under Santa Cruz County Ordinance, Santa Cruz County Environmental Health Division (SCCEHD) requires 
permits to remove underground lifts.   The SCCEHD has found underground lifts can leak oil and pose potential 
long term environmental and possible human health problems.  There is now evidence that some of the oil in 
these lift systems contain Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs), which are probable human carcinogens.  Sears 
was aware of our agency’s permit requirement because a permit was obtained from our agency to remove a 
leaking underground lift from this site in 2015.   
 
The 10 underground lifts that were removed in 2017 were done in violation of Santa Cruz County Code 
7.100.060, and without the required sampling under SCCEHD oversight, to determine if the systems leaked. 
Therefore, by June 29, 2018, you are hereby directed to apply for and obtain a permit retroactively for the 
closure of the underground storage lifts that were removed.   
 
Here is a link to our website for the permit that is required:  
http://scceh.com/Portals/6/Env_Health/hazardous_materials/UST_Closure_Packet.pdf. 
 
Failure to obtain the necessary closure permit for this site and conduct the required testing may result in 
further enforcement action, including forwarding this issue to the District Attorney’s Office.  
  
Please contact the inspector for the area, Mr. John Gerbrandt, at (831) 454-2731, or at his email address of: 
john.gerbrandt@santacruzcounty.us, if you have any questions.  
 
Sincerely, 

 
Rebecca Supplee, R.E.H.S.  
Hazardous Materials Program Manager 
 
Cc: Katie Herlihy, City of Capitola Kherlihy@ci.capitola.ca.us 
 Mark Rone, mark.rone@cypressequities.com 

John Gerbrandt, john.gerbrandt@santacruzcounty.us 

8.A.14

Packet Pg. 239

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ty

 o
f 

S
an

ta
 C

ru
z 

N
o

ti
ce

 o
f 

V
io

la
ti

o
n

 0
5.

17
.2

01
8 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



 

 

 

 

 

May 18, 2018 

 

Via Electronic Mail (dwaite@coxcastle.com) 

And United States Mail 

 

David P. Waite 

Cox, Castle & Nicholson, LLP 

2029 Century Park East, Suite 2100 

Los Angeles, CA  90067-3284 

 

Re:  4015 Capitola Road Design and Master Sign Permit Application #17-019 

 

Dear Mr. Waite: 

 

I am in the process of reviewing the issues raised in your correspondence to Katie Herlihy, 

Capitola Community Development Director, and separate letter to myself dated May 9, 2018, 

and materials submitted therewith.  Unfortunately, however, I’ve not had an opportunity to 

complete my review and confer with my client prior to my departure tomorrow for a family 

vacation, from which I will be returning the week of May 28th.  I anticipate that I or the City will 

provide a formal response shortly thereafter. 

 

In the meantime, thank you for your patience. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Tony Condotti 

Capitola City Attorney 

8.A.15

Packet Pg. 240

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

A
tt

o
rn

ey
 L

et
te

r 
to

 A
p

p
lic

an
t 

(0
5.

18
.2

01
8)

  (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)

mailto:dwaite@coxcastle.com


 

 

 

 

 

May 23, 2018 

 

Via Electronic Mail (dwaite@coxcastle.com) 

And United States Mail 

 

David P. Waite 

Cox, Castle & Nicholson, LLP 

2029 Century Park East, Suite 2100 

Los Angeles, CA  90067-3284 

 

Re:  4015 Capitola Road Design and Master Sign Permit Application #17-019 

 

Dear Mr. Waite: 

 

After further review Planning Department staff have determined that the above-referenced 

application can proceed to hearing at the June 7th meeting of the Planning Commission as has 

been requested.  Formal public notice will be completed by the City. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Tony Condotti 

Capitola City Attorney 

8.A.16

Packet Pg. 241

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

it
y 

A
tt

o
rn

ey
 le

tt
er

 t
o

 C
C

&
N

 (
05

.2
3.

20
18

) 
 (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)

mailto:dwaite@coxcastle.com


17.120.010(A-S) 

To obtain Design Permit approval, projects must satisfy the criteria of §17.120.010(A-S), to the 
extent they apply. 

A. Community Character.  The overall project design including site plan, height, massing, 
architectural style, materials, and landscaping contribute to Capitola’s unique coastal village 
character and distinctive sense of place. 

 
B. Neighborhood Compatibility.  The project is designed to respect and complement 

adjacent properties.  The project height, massing, and intensity is compatible with the scale 
of nearby buildings. The project design incorporates measures to minimize traffic, parking, 
noise, and odor impacts on nearby residential properties. 

 
C. Historic Character. Renovations and additions respect and preserve existing historic 

structure.  New structures and additions to non-historic structures reflect and complement 
the historic character of nearby properties and the community at large.   

 
D. Sustainability. The project supports natural resource protection and environmental 

sustainability through features such as on-site renewable energy generation, passive solar 
design, enhanced energy efficiency, water conservation measures, and other green 
building techniques. 
 

E. Pedestrian Environment.  The primary entrances are oriented towards and visible from the 
street to support an active public realm and an inviting pedestrian environment. 

 
F. Privacy. The orientation and location of buildings, entrances, windows, doors, decks, and 

other building features minimizes privacy impacts on adjacent properties and provides 
adequate privacy for project occupants. 

 
G. Safety.  The project promotes public safety and minimizes opportunities for crime through 

design features such as property access controls (e.g., placement of entrances, fences), 
increased visibility and features that promote a sense of ownership of outdoor space.   
 

H. Massing and Scale.  The massing and scale of buildings complement and respect 
neighboring structures and correspond to the scale of the human form.  Large volumes are 
divided into small components through varying wall planes, heights, and setbacks. Building 
placement and massing avoids impacts to public views and solar access. 

 
I. Architectural Style.  Buildings feature an architectural style that is compatible with the 

surrounding built and natural environment, is an authentic implementation of appropriate 
established architectural styles, and reflects Capitola’s unique coastal village character.  

 
J. Articulation and Visual Interest.  Building facades are well articulated to add visual 

interest, distinctiveness, and human scale.  Building elements such as roofs, doors, 
windows, and porches are part of an integrated design and relate to the human scale. 
Architectural details such as trim, eaves, window boxes, and brackets contribute to the 
visual interest of the building. 
 

8.A.17

Packet Pg. 242

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

es
ig

n
 P

er
m

it
 C

ri
te

ri
a 

o
f 

17
.1

20
.0

10
(A

-S
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



K. Materials. Building facades include a mix of natural, high-quality, and durable materials that 
are appropriate to the architectural style, enhance building articulation, and are compatible 
with surrounding development. 

 
L. Parking and Access.  Parking areas are located and designed to minimize visual impacts 

and maintain Capitola’s distinctive neighborhoods and pedestrian-friendly environment. 
Safe and convenient connections are provided for pedestrians and bicyclists.  

 
M. Landscaping. Landscaping is an integral part of the overall project design, is appropriate to 

the site and structures, and enhances the surrounding area.  
 
N. Drainage.  The site plan is designed to maximize efficiency of on-site drainage with runoff 

directed towards permeable surface areas and engineered retention.  
 
O. Open Space and Public Places. Single-family dwellings feature inviting front yards that 

enhance Capitola’s distinctive neighborhoods.  Multi-family residential projects include 
public and private open space that is attractive, accessible, and functional.  Non-residential 
development provides semi-public outdoor spaces, such as plazas and courtyards, which 
help support pedestrian activity within an active and engaging public realm.  

 
P. Signs.  The number, location, size, and design of signs complement the project design and 

are compatible with the surrounding context. 
 
Q. Lighting.  Exterior lighting is an integral part of the project design with light fixtures 

designed, located, and positioned to minimize illumination of the sky and adjacent 
properties. 

 
R. Accessory Structures.  The design of detached garages, sheds, fences, walls, and other 

accessory structures relate to the primary structure and are compatible with adjacent 
properties. 

 
S. Mechanical Equipment, Trash Receptacles, and Utilities. Mechanical equipment, trash 

receptacles, and utilities are contained within architectural enclosures or fencing, sited in 
unobtrusive locations, and/or screened by landscaping. 

 

8.A.17

Packet Pg. 243

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

es
ig

n
 P

er
m

it
 C

ri
te

ri
a 

o
f 

17
.1

20
.0

10
(A

-S
) 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



Memo 

Sacramento • Berkeley • Concord • San Jose 

Concord • 1800 Sutter Street, Suite 590 •Concord, CA  94520 • Tel: 925-332-5221 • Fax: 925-349-4329 

To: Danielle Uharriet, Environmental Projects Manager, and Steve Jesberg, PE, 
Public Works Director, City of Capitola  

From: Leonard Osborne, PE, HydroScience 

Subject: Subject: Seritage - Capitola Project 
4015 Capitola Road 
Planning Permit No.17-019 

Date: May 24, 2018 

HydroScience has reviewed the plans submitted by the Seritage Growth Properties design 
team for the subject project. Based on the documents submitted, the project is not in 
compliance with the Capitola Municipal Code Section 13.16 Stormwater Pollution 
Prevention and Protection and the Post Construction Requirements (PCRs) as specified in 
Resolution No. R3- 2013-0032 issued by the California Regional Water Quality Control 
Board for the Central Coast Region in July 2013. 

Based on our review, the project does not address the performance standards for site 
design and runoff reduction, water quality treatment, runoff retention, peak runoff 
management as specified in Appendix 1 of the above Regional Water Quality Control 
Board resolution. 

Please call me or Alexandra Watson at 925-332-5221 if you have any questions. 

 
 

  

 

8.A.18

Packet Pg. 244

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 H

yd
ro

S
ci

en
ce

 M
em

o
 r

e 
S

to
rm

w
at

er
 0

5.
24

.2
01

8 
 (

A
p

p
ea

l o
f 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 1

7-
01

9,
 4

01
5 

C
ap

it
o

la
 R

o
ad

)



8.A.19

Packet Pg. 245

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eq
u

es
t 

fo
r 

C
o

n
ti

n
u

an
ce

 1
0.

18
.2

01
8 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



8.A.19

Packet Pg. 246

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

eq
u

es
t 

fo
r 

C
o

n
ti

n
u

an
ce

 1
0.

18
.2

01
8 

 (
A

p
p

ea
l o

f 
A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

 1
7-

01
9,

 4
01

5 
C

ap
it

o
la

 R
o

ad
)



 
 
 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF OCTOBER 25, 2018 

 
FROM:  Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Consider a Resolution in Support of the Citizens' Climate Lobby Carbon Fee and 

Dividend Policy Proposal  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Council discretion. 
 
BACKGROUND:  The Citizens’ Climate Lobby (CCL) is a non-profit, non-partisan organization 
focused on federal passage of a carbon “fee and dividend program.”  Local members made a 
presentation to the Commission on the Environment at the August 22, 2018, Commission 
meeting.  The Commission received the report but took no action.  At the September 13, 2018, 
City Council meeting, Council Member Petersen requested a resolution of support be placed on 
a future agenda.  
 
DISCUSSION The proposed fee and dividend program would put a federal tax on carbon-based 
fuels so the consumer cost reflects the true costs to society.  Currently, the price of fossil fuels 
does not reflect their impact on the global climate resulting in climate change, sea level rise, and 
other impacts. A carbon fee and dividend program would place a steadily rising fee on coal, oil, 
and gas production and give 100 percent of the net fees back to American households.  The 
program would include a border adjustment on resources imported into the country.   
 
Information on the CCL’s program is included as Attachment 1. 
 
The attached resolution in support of the Citizens’ Climate Lobby Carbon Free and Dividend 
federal policy calls for the implementation of a carbon fee on all fossil fuels and other 
greenhouse gases at the point they first enter the economy, with collected fees placed in a 
Carbon Fee Trust Fund and rebated to American households. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None, although adoption of such a program could increase the City’s fuel and 
utility costs. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. CCL Information Packet (PDF) 
 

Report Prepared By:   Steve Jesberg 
 Public Works Director 
 

8.B

Packet Pg. 247



Citizens Climate Lobby Carbon Fee and Dividend Policy  
October 25, 2018 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

8.B

Packet Pg. 248



Citizens Climate Lobby Carbon Fee and Dividend Policy  
October 25, 2018 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _______ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA 
IN SUPPORT OF CITIZENS’ CLIMATE LOBBY CARBON FEE  

AND DIVIDEND POLICY PROGRAM  
  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Capitola’s Climate Action Plan recognizes the city’s responsibility 
to reduce greenhouse gas emissions from residents, businesses, and government agencies; 
and 

WHEREAS, research on global warming indicates that coastal regions are highly 
vulnerable to climate change and that local plans are being developed to prepare for impacts 
such as increased coastal erosion, sea level rise, droughts, severe storms, and salt water 
intrusion into drinking water aquifers; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Capitola and other municipalities throughout the state are 
implementing climate action plans to reduce the emission of greenhouse gases to 1990 levels 
by 2030; and 

WHEREAS, the carbon fee and dividend program principles proposed by the Citizens’ 
Climate Lobby would provide an efficient approach for developing incentives to reduce the 
dependence on fossil fuels and contribute to the development of cleaner energy alternatives; 
and 

WHEREAS, the carbon fee and dividend approach would be fair to everyone and would 
protect middle- and low-income households because the revenue neutral dividend would, on 
average, exceed the increased energy costs for two-thirds of all households during the 
transition to cleaner energy; and  

WHEREAS, it is estimated that the adoption of the Citizens’ Climate Action policy 
program would grow the economy by adding more than 2 million new jobs. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Capitola that: 

1. The United State Federal Government should immediately enact legislation for a 
fee on carbon-based fuels at the point of entry into our economy; and 
2. That the fee should be, as proposed by the Citizens’ Climate Lobby, $15 per ton 
of carbon dioxide emitted when burned, and rise by $10 per ton annually to achieve 
the goal of reducing carbon dioxide emissions to 10 percent of 1990 levels by 2050; 
and  
3. All fee revenue should be returned to households as a dividend to protect low- 
and middle-income households from the impact of rising prices due to the fee; and 
4. The international competitiveness of the United States businesses should be 
protected by using carbon content-based border tariffs and refunds; and 
5. The response in combating climate change to mitigate its worst effects should be 
implemented with the speed appropriate to the urgency of the situation. 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing resolution was passed and adopted 
by the City Council of the City of Capitola at its regular meeting held on the 25th day of October, 
2018, by the following vote: 

8.B

Packet Pg. 249



Citizens’ Climate Lobby 
Santa Cruz California Chapter 

Michael Termini 
Mayor, City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 

February 14, 2018 
Dear Mayor Termini, 
  
As members of the Citizens’ Climate Lobby Santa Cruz, we very much appreciate the opportunity to 
share with you our local efforts to address the impacts of climate change. 
  
Our national organization presses for federal legislation that establishes a price on carbon dioxide 
emissions which result from the burning of fossil fuels.  These emissions are the dominant cause of 
global warming.  A price on carbon will encourage the use of CO2-free energy sources, discourage the 
continued burning of fossil fuels, and help mitigate global warming. 
  
Carbon based energy is a crucial component in our economy and in our standard of living.  It has given 
us many beneficial developments and eased the burden of daily living.  But now, at the beginning of the 
twenty first century, we are faced with the downside of all those benefits.  The rapid heating of the 
planet is increasingly a threat to our very existence. Because of entrenched political and business 
interests, communities and citizens should lead in creating a new path forward. 
  
Putting a price on carbon with a revenue neutral dividend is the single most effective solution for 
addressing climate change: 
-          It is market based and stimulates alternative, sustainable energy development 
-          It is socially equitable and protects low and moderate income families 
-          It attracts buy-in from Americans because they receive a dividend every month  
-          It has bipartisan support 
  
As part of our advocacy, we seek resolutions from municipalities supporting a movement away from 
fossil fuels and toward renewable energy.  These resolutions are vital in supporting our congress 
members in pursuing legislation that places a price on carbon. We look forward to hearing your 
thoughts. 
  
Thank you, 
Lynda Marin, Chapter Leader 
Nancy Drinkard 
Robert Kibrick 
Christine Barrington 
Mary Nelson 
Donna Ramos 
Alex Yasbek 

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 250

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

C
L

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 P
ac

ke
t 

 (
C

it
iz

en
s 

C
lim

at
e 

L
o

b
b

y 
C

ar
b

o
n

 F
ee

 a
n

d
 D

iv
id

en
d

 P
o

lic
y)



 

 

 

 
 

Table of Contents 
 

 
1. Cover Letter and Contact Information  

2. CCL Description 

3. Carbon Fee and Dividend Description 

● Text of Carbon Fee and Dividend Proposal  

4. Financial Impact - National 

5. Financial Impact - California District 20 

6. Municipal Resolutions Supporting Carbon Fee and Dividend 

7. Staff Report from Tiffany Wise-West to Santa Cruz City Council 

8. Resolutions Approved by Santa Cruz City Council and Santa Cruz 
County Board of Supervisors 

● Sample Resolution for City of Capitola 
  

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 251

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

C
L

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 P
ac

ke
t 

 (
C

it
iz

en
s 

C
lim

at
e 

L
o

b
b

y 
C

ar
b

o
n

 F
ee

 a
n

d
 D

iv
id

en
d

 P
o

lic
y)



 

Citizens’ Climate Lobby is a non-profit, non-partisan, grassroots 
organization focused on federal passage of Carbon Fee and Dividend. 

In order to generate the political will necessary for passage of our Carbon Fee and Dividend 
proposal we train and support volunteers to engage elected officials, the media and the public.  
 

What we do  
● We lobby in support of our Carbon Fee and Dividend proposal by building helpful,                       

friendly relationships with our federally elected representatives, with respect,               
appreciation and gratitude for their service. 

● We write letters to the editor and op-eds, and meet with editorial boards to gain their                               
editorial endorsement. Additionally, we work with digital media, radio, TV and all                       
forms of social media.  

● We give presentations and do outreach at events to promote CCL and introduce others                         
to our Carbon Fee and Dividend proposal. 

● We support our volunteer chapters with monthly conference calls, and we support the                         
leaders of those chapters with weekly conference calls.  

 

What we believe 
● Politicians don’t create political will, they respond to it.  
● We believe citizens, organized by Congressional district, who are well-trained and                     

have a good system of support, can more than influence the political process.  
● In respect for all viewpoints, even for those who would oppose us.   
● Based on what both climate scientists and economist tell us, we believe that Carbon                           

Fee and Dividend is the best first step to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and to                             
mitigate the impacts of a changing climate. 

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 252

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

C
L

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 P
ac

ke
t 

 (
C

it
iz

en
s 

C
lim

at
e 

L
o

b
b

y 
C

ar
b

o
n

 F
ee

 a
n

d
 D

iv
id

en
d

 P
o

lic
y)

http://citizensclimatelobby.org/carbon-fee-and-dividend/
http://citizensclimatelobby.org/carbon-fee-and-dividend/
http://citizensclimatelobby.org/carbon-fee-and-dividend/


 

What is Carbon Fee and Dividend?  
Carbon Fee and Dividend is the policy proposal created by Citizens’ Climate Lobby (CCL) to 
put a federal price on carbon-based fuels so that their consumer cost reflects their true costs 
to society.  

It’s the policy that both climate scientists and economists say is the best first-step to reduce 
the likelihood of catastrophic climate change from global warming.  

Why Carbon Fee and Dividend?  
Currently, the price of fossil fuels does not reflect their true costs—including their impact on 
global climate. Correcting this market failure will require that their price account for the true 
social costs.  
 

As long as fossil fuels remain artificially inexpensive, their use will rise. Correcting this 
market failure requires a federal price on carbon that accounts for their true costs. 

What Will Carbon Fee and Dividend Do?  
Carbon Fee and Dividend will do four things:  
 

1. Account for the cost of burning fossil fuels in the price consumers pay.  
2. Cut emissions enough to stay below the 2C threshold for “dangerous” warming. 
3. Grow jobs and GDP without growing government one bit. 
4. Recruit global participation.   
 

 

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 253

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

C
L

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 P
ac

ke
t 

 (
C

it
iz

en
s 

C
lim

at
e 

L
o

b
b

y 
C

ar
b

o
n

 F
ee

 a
n

d
 D

iv
id

en
d

 P
o

lic
y)



       
 

 

Legislative proposal: Carbon Fee and Dividend 
 

 
Findings:  

1. Causation : Whereas the weight of scientific evidence indicates that greenhouse gas emissions from 
human activities including the burning of fossil fuels and other sources are causing rising global 
temperatures, 

   
2. Mitigation:  (Return to 350 ppm or below): Whereas the weight of scientific evidence also indicates 

that a return from the current concentration of more than 400 parts per million (“ppm”) of carbon 
dioxide (“CO 2”) in the atmosphere to 350 ppm CO 2 or less is necessary to slow or stop the rise in 
global temperatures, 

   
3. Endangerment:  Whereas further increases in global temperatures pose imminent and substantial 

dangers to human health, the natural environment, the economy, national security, and an 
unacceptable risk of catastrophic impacts to human civilization, 

   
4. Co-Benefits:  Whereas the measures proposed in this legislation will benefit the economy, human 

health, the environment, and national security, even without consideration of global temperatures, 
as a result of correcting market distortions, reductions in non-greenhouse-gas pollutants, reducing 
the outflow of dollars to oil-producing countries and improvements in the energy security of the 
United States, 

   
5. Benefits of Carbon Fees: Whereas phased-in carbon fees on greenhouse gas emissions (1) are the 

most efficient, transparent, and enforceable mechanism to drive an effective and fair transition to a 
domestic-energy economy, (2) will stimulate investment in alternative-energy technologies, and (3) 
give all businesses powerful incentives to increase their energy-efficiency and reduce their carbon 
footprints in order to remain competitive, 

   
6. Equal Monthly Per-Person Dividends: Whereas equal monthly dividends (or “rebates”) from carbon 

fees paid to every American household can help ensure that families and individuals can afford the 
energy they need during the transition to a greenhouse gas-free economy and the dividends will 
stimulate the economy, 

 
Therefore the following legislation is hereby enacted: 

1. Collection of Carbon Fees/Carbon Fee Trust Fund: Upon enactment, impose a carbon fee on all fossil 
fuels and other greenhouse gases at the point where they first enter the economy. The fee shall be 
collected by the Treasury Department. The fee on that date shall be $15 per ton of CO2 equivalent 

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 254

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

C
L

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 P
ac

ke
t 

 (
C

it
iz

en
s 

C
lim

at
e 

L
o

b
b

y 
C

ar
b

o
n

 F
ee

 a
n

d
 D

iv
id

en
d

 P
o

lic
y)



emissions and result in equal charges for each ton of CO 2 equivalent emissions potential in each type 
of fuel or greenhouse gas. The Department of Energy shall propose and promulgate regulations 
setting forth CO 2 equivalent fees for other greenhouse gases including at a minimum methane, 
nitrous oxide, sulfur hexafluoride, hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs), perfluorocarbons, and nitrogen 
trifluoride. The Treasury shall also collect the fees imposed upon the other greenhouse gases. All 
fees are to be placed in the Carbon Fees Trust Fund and rebated to American households as outlined 
in #3 below. 

   
1. Emissions Reduction Targets: To align US emissions with the physical constraints identified by the 

Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) to avoid irreversible climate change, the yearly 
increase in carbon fees including other greenhouse gases, shall be at least $10 per ton of CO2 

equivalent each year. Annually, the Department of Energy shall determine whether an increase 
larger than $10 per ton per year is needed to achieve program goals. Yearly price increases of at least 
$10 per year shall continue until total U.S. CO2-equivalent emissions have been reduced to 10% of 
U.S. CO 2-equivalent emissions in 1990. 

   
2. Equal Per-Person Monthly Dividend Payments: Equal monthly per-person dividend payments shall 

be made to all American households (1⁄2 payment per child under 18 years old, with a limit of 2 
children per family) each month. The total value of all monthly dividend payments shall represent 
100% of the net carbon fees collected per month. 

   
3. Border Adjustments : In order to ensure there is no domestic or international incentive to relocate 

production of goods or services to regimes more permissive of greenhouse gas emissions, and thus 
encourage lower global emissions, Carbon-Fee-Equivalent Tariffs shall be charged for goods 
entering the U.S. from countries without comparable Carbon Fees/Carbon Pricing. Carbon-Fee- 
Equivalent Rebates shall be used to reduce the price of exports to such countries. The State 
Department will determine rebate amounts and exemptions if any.  

   

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 255

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

C
L

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 P
ac

ke
t 

 (
C

it
iz

en
s 

C
lim

at
e 

L
o

b
b

y 
C

ar
b

o
n

 F
ee

 a
n

d
 D

iv
id

en
d

 P
o

lic
y)



 
citizensclimatelobby.org 

More at citizensclimatelobby.org and citizensclimatelobby.org/remi-report

 

 

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 256

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

C
L

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 P
ac

ke
t 

 (
C

it
iz

en
s 

C
lim

at
e 

L
o

b
b

y 
C

ar
b

o
n

 F
ee

 a
n

d
 D

iv
id

en
d

 P
o

lic
y)



 

 

 

 

  

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 257

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

C
L

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 P
ac

ke
t 

 (
C

it
iz

en
s 

C
lim

at
e 

L
o

b
b

y 
C

ar
b

o
n

 F
ee

 a
n

d
 D

iv
id

en
d

 P
o

lic
y)



 

 

 

 

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 258

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

C
L

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 P
ac

ke
t 

 (
C

it
iz

en
s 

C
lim

at
e 

L
o

b
b

y 
C

ar
b

o
n

 F
ee

 a
n

d
 D

iv
id

en
d

 P
o

lic
y)



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF OCTOBER 25, 2018 

 
FROM:  Public Works Department 
 
SUBJECT: Report on the Wharf Project Structural Options  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept the Capitola Wharf Project Alternative Report and direct 
Public Works to develop plans to implement a phased approach to Wharf improvements. 
 
BACKGROUND: On June 14, 2018 Capitola City Council received a progress report on the 

status of the three Measure F projects located on Capitola beach. That report addressed the 

ongoing permitting process for the flume and jetty rehabilitation work as well as an update on 

the design and engineering for the wharf/building project.  

To prioritize expenditures on the wharf improvements, Council directed Public Works to place 

the wharf building designs on hold and develop a more in-depth cost evaluation for wharf 

improvement alternatives. Council asked that the alternatives look at the longevity of the wharf 

and buildings at the current height as well as a raised height allowing for greater protection 

against potential increased storm surge and sea level rise. Alternative construction materials 

(wood vs. concrete) were also evaluated.  Based on this direction the Capitola Wharf Project 

Alternative Report was developed (Attachment 1). 

  

DISCUSSION: The report evaluates alternatives and provides the costs of four designs to 

achieve increased wharf resiliency. It should be noted the costs in the report only include 

reconstruction efforts for the wharf structure and new replacement buildings and do not include 

costs for new restrooms, replacement of the steel piles, utility upgrades, or redecking. The full 

project cost estimates are summarized below, and include the figures called out in the report in 

the “wharf report” line.  A summary description of the four alternatives analyzed in the report are 

as follows:  

Option 1: Original design presented to Council on June 14. Design involves widening of 

the narrow trestle section of the wharf with timber construction at the current elevation. 

This alternative includes replacement of the existing buildings at their current elevation.   

Option 2: The same widening of the trestle section of the wharf with timber construction 

at the current elevation. Under alternative 2 the buildings would be raised approximately 

5 feet by creating a raised concrete pad for the buildings that would be supported by 

wood or concrete piles underneath.  

Option 3: Widening and raising the wharf by building a new raised concrete head to the 

wharf and rebuilding the deck of the trestle to be wider and slowly ramp up in elevation. 

8.C

Packet Pg. 259



Wharf Project Option Report  
October 25, 2018 
 

The buildings would be replaced and built at the higher elevation at the head of the 

concrete wharf.   

Option 4: Full replacement of both the wharf structure and buildings with new concrete 

piles and deck at a raised elevation for the entire structure. 

 

 Option 1 Option 2 Option 3 Option 4 

Wharf report $2,750,000  $5,250,000  $11,900,000  $19,045,000  

Utilities, steel 

piles, and decking 

$2,200,000  $2,200,000  $1,150,000  $400,000  

Restrooms $650,000  $650,000  $650,000  $650,000  

New Buildings $2,200,000  $2,200,000  $2,200,000  $2,200,000  

Total $7,800,000  $10,300,000  $15,900,000  $22,295,000  

  

  

The above estimates are based on current construction costs and preliminary designs.  As the 
project details are advanced further through the design process these estimates will also be 
revised. The maximum current level of funding for the Measure F flume, jetty, and wharf projects 
is $8,000,000, pending future funding decisions regarding other Measure F priorities.  Staff 
continues to research grant opportunities to augment the wharf project. 
 
Based on the cost estimates and funding levels staff recommends a two-phased approach to 
the wharf improvements be taken. Phase 1 of improvements would include Option 1 wharf 
improvements, which includes widening of the narrow trestle section of the wharf with timber 
construction at the current elevation, replacement of the steel piles, utility upgrades, 
replacement decking, and construction of new public restrooms. Upon completion of the first 
phase of the wharf improvements the City will then evaluate Phase 2 for rehabilitating the 
buildings based upon actual project costs and available Measure F funds. The implementation 
of Option 1 does not preclude the ability to implement components of Option 2 at a later date.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   Measure F funds: 

 

Estimated life revenue:   $11 million 

  

Flume & Jetty improvements  $1.2 million 

Wharf improvements (Phase 1)  $5.6 million 

Wharf building improvements (Phase 2) $2.2 million  

Total expenditures  $9.0 million 

 

 

Remaining Measure F funds  $2.0 million 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Wharf Alternatives Report 

8.C

Packet Pg. 260



Wharf Project Option Report  
October 25, 2018 
 

 
Report Prepared By:   Kailash Mozumder 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

8.C

Packet Pg. 261



 

Capitola Wharf 

Project Alternatives 

Report 
 

October 15, 2018 

 

 

Image by Google 

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 262

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
es

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
W

h
ar

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 O

p
ti

o
n

 R
ep

o
rt

)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 263

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
es

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
W

h
ar

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 O

p
ti

o
n

 R
ep

o
rt

)



REPORT  City of Capitola 
October 15, 2018  Wharf Alternatives 

_   

CONTENTS 
1. Executive Summary .............................................................................................................................................. 6 
2. Introduction ........................................................................................................................................................... 8 
3. Flood Hazard & Sea Level Rise ............................................................................................................................ 9 

A. Water Levels at Capitola ................................................................................................................................... 9 
B. Maximum Wave Crest Elevation...................................................................................................................... 11 
C. Recommended Design Elevation .................................................................................................................... 12 

4. Wharf Project Alternatives ................................................................................................................................... 13 
Alternative 1: Current Design ................................................................................................................................... 13 
Alternative 2: Building Foundation Separation/Replacement ................................................................................... 13 
Alternative 3: Wharf Trestle and Head Partial Replacement .................................................................................... 14 
Alternative 4: Full Replacement ................................................................................................................................ 15 

5. Wharf Project Alternative Costs .......................................................................................................................... 17 
 

 

APPENDIX 
A. Wharf Alternatives Illustrative Figures  

B. Wharf Alternatives Cost Estimates 

FIGURES 
Figure 1.  Wharf Damage Summary .............................................................................................................................. 8 

Figure 2. Recommended Wharf Head Elevation .......................................................................................................... 12 

Figure 3. Alternative 1: Current Design ........................................................................................................................ 13 

Figure 4. Alternative 2: Building Foundation Separation/Replacement ........................................................................ 14 

Figure 5. Alternative 3: Wharf Trestle and Head Partial Replacement ......................................................................... 15 

Figure 6. Alternative 4: Full Replacement .................................................................................................................... 15 

 
 

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 264

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
es

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
W

h
ar

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 O

p
ti

o
n

 R
ep

o
rt

)



REPORT  City of Capitola 
October 15, 2018  Wharf Alternatives 

_ 6  

1.  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The purpose of this report is to provide alternatives for the Capitola Wharf Project to address the following objectives: 

• Timber Wharf Structure 
a. Repairs 

▪ To current damage/deterioration. 
b. Trestle Resiliency 

▪ Existing timber trestle susceptible to ongoing wave damage. 
▪ Susceptible to closure due to narrow trestle (only 3 piles). 

c. Wharf Head Resiliency 
▪ Existing timber structure susceptible to ongoing wave damage. 
▪ Susceptible to overtopping with projected future sea-level-rise. 

 

• Buildings (Bait Shop and Restaurant) 
a. Useful Life 

▪ Nearing the end of useful life 
▪ Does not meet current ADA codes 

b. Flood Hazard + Sea Level Rise 
▪ Existing timber piles susceptible to ongoing wave damage 
▪ Susceptible to flooding with projected future sea-level-rise. 

 
All project alternatives include required restoration (or replacement) of existing damage to the wharf structure and the 
existing buildings to extend their useful life. 
 
Increased trestle resiliency can be achieved by either 1) adding additional timber pile elements and widening the 
existing trestle or 2) providing a more robust concrete trestle. Future wave damage to the Wharf head can similarly 
be addressed by providing a more robust concrete structure. Hazard of flood damage due to wave overtopping can 
be addressed by raising the finished floor elevation of the buildings (or entire wharf head); the design elevation of the 
wharf can provide for projected sea level rise (SLR). 
 
The following project alternatives are identified to address these objectives with varying levels of investment: 
 
Table 1. Wharf Alternative Projects   

 
  

Alternative Description

Construction 

Material

Trestle 

Resiliency

Wharf Head 

Resiliency

Building  

Flood Hazard 

and SLR

Project Area 

(sq.ft.)

Project Cost 

( ±10%)

1. Current Design Widen Trestle and Replace Buildings Timber x 7,300                4,420,000$      

2.a Building Foundation Separation Timber x x 10,800             6,530,000$      

2.b Building Foundation Separation Concrete x partial x 10,800             7,510,000$      

3. Trestle and Head Partial Replacement Concrete x x x 19,000             13,590,000$    

4. Full Wharf Replacement Concrete x x x 29,500             20,800,000$    

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 265

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
es

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
W

h
ar

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 O

p
ti

o
n

 R
ep

o
rt

)



REPORT  City of Capitola 
October 15, 2018  Wharf Alternatives 

_ 8  

2.  INTRODUCTION 
The Wharf is an existing timber pier structure used primarily for recreation activities and contains a bait shop, boat 

rentals, boat launch, restaurant, restroom facilities, and fish cleaning stations. Limited motor vehicle access is 

permitted and a floating dock with access onto the Wharf is available in the summer. 

The Wharf has been inspected and repaired over its life. Available records go back to the early 1980s that include 

major repairs to the south end of the Wharf from storm damage in 1983. More recently, condition assessments have 

been performed by Moffatt & Nichol: 1996 Inspection and Renovation Report, 2008 Inspection Report after damage 

from a large wave event as well as other small investigations during this period. 

The Capitola Wharf experiences damage to the supporting foundation piles in winter storms when floating logs batter 

the piles. The narrow trestle with only 3 supporting piles per row is the most susceptible to damage that requires 

Wharf closure. Deterioration of the buildings and decking has also resulted from exposure over time. A summary of 

the recent damage to the existing wharf is provided below. 

 
Figure 1.  Wharf Damage Summary 

  

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 266

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
es

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
W

h
ar

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 O

p
ti

o
n

 R
ep

o
rt

)



REPORT  City of Capitola 
October 15, 2018  Wharf Alternatives 

_ 9  

3.  FLOOD HAZARD & SEA LEVEL RISE 
Currently, the Wharf experiences infrequent wave overtopping during large storm events. Damage from storms, 

including damage from flooding/wave impact/overtopping and debris carried by waves, is mitigated on an as-needed 

seasonal basis. 

A. Water Levels at Capitola 

Currently, the existing deck elevation of the wharf is +19.3-ft (NAVD 88). The tidal levels in Capitola are listed in 

Table 2. 

Table 2. Capitola Tidal Water Levels (NOAA) 

Tide Level 
Elevation 

(ft. NAVD 88) 

Highest Astronomical Tide (HAT) 7.2 

Mean Higher High Water (MHHW) 5.5 

Mean Sea Level (MSL) 3.0 

Mean Lower Low Water (MLLW) 0.1 

 

Waves incident at Capitola undergo several processes of wave transformation.  Currently large storm waves and 

swell from the Pacific Basin can periodically spill and break out at the wharf head. The maximum crest elevation of 

incident waves are limited by the local water depth. In turn, effects that increase the water level will enable larger 

waves. Such effects include high tides, storm surge, the El Niño, and Sea Level Rise (SLR). 

High Tides – tides at Capitola are mixed semi-diurnal and the tidal cycle goes through two high and two low tides of 

different size every lunar day. The magnitude of tides follows the lunar cycle and the highest (spring) tides occur just 

after a new or full moon. The scientific term for the largest tides that occur three to four times a year when the moon 

is the closest to the earth is perigean tides, commonly termed king tides. 

  

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 267

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
es

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
W

h
ar

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 O

p
ti

o
n

 R
ep

o
rt

)



REPORT  City of Capitola 
October 15, 2018  Wharf Alternatives 

_ 10  

Storm Surge – occurs when strong winds and low pressure storm systems raise the water level on the coast. Table 

3 summarizes storm surge, measured as the water level above Mean Higher High Water (MHHW) tides. The 

increase in water level associated with a typical winter storm can be on the order of about 1 foot, and around 2 feet 

during storms that occur every 5 to 10 years on average.  

Table 3. Monterey Bay Storm Surge (NOAA) 
Recurrence Interval 

(Years) 
Water Level 

Above MHHW (Feet) 

1 1.1 

2 1.6 

5 1.9 

10 2.1 

25 2.3 

50 2.4 

100 2.6 

 

El Niño – El Nino is a warming of Pacific Ocean temperatures, which due to heat expansion produces an increase in 

ocean levels. The increase in ocean levels due to El Niño can be up to one foot. El Niño cycles typically last 9 to 12 

months. They often begin in June or August and reach their peak during December through April, and subsequently, 

decay over May through July of the following year. Their periodicity is irregular, occurring every 3 to 5 years on 

average. 

Sea Level Rise – Sea level rise projections in California have been developed by the California Ocean Protection 

Council (OPC), in coordination with the California Natural Resources Agency, the Governor’s Office of Planning and 

Research, and the California Energy Commission (State of California Sea Level Rise Guidance, 2018 Update1). This 

document provides a science-based methodology for state and local governments to analyze and assess the risks 

associated with sea-level rise. 

Sea level rise projections for Monterey Bay are summarized in Table 4. Assuming a project design life until 2080, 

there is a significant chance that up to 3 ft. of sea level rise will be experienced; there is less than 1% chance that 

greater than 4 ft. of sea level rise will occur. 

Table 4. State of California Sea-Level Rise Guidance for Monterey (2018) 

 Probability that sea-level rise in Monterey will meet or exceed  
1 ft. 2 ft. 3 ft. 4 ft. 5 ft. 

2030 0 - 0.1%     

2040 0 - 2.5%     

2050 0 - 24% 0 - 0.3%    

2060 34 - 55% 1.2 - 2% 0.1 - 0.2% 0 - 0.1%  

2070 52 - 77% 4 - 11% 0.5 - 1.1% 0.1 - 0.2% 0 – 0.1% 
2080 64 - 88% 9 - 29% 1 - 4% 0.4 - 0.8% 0.2 – 0.3% 
2090 72 - 93% 16 - 48% 3 - 12% 0.9 - 3% 0.3 – 0.8% 
2100 77 - 94% 25 - 63% 6 - 25% 2 - 7% 0.7 - 2% 
2150 84 - 100% 55 - 93% 26 - 73% 12 - 46% 6 - 25% 

 

                                                           
1 http://www.opc.ca.gov/webmaster/ftp/pdf/agenda_items/20180314/Item3_Exhibit-A_OPC_SLR_Guidance-rd3.pdf 

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 268

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
es

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
W

h
ar

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 O

p
ti

o
n

 R
ep

o
rt

)



REPORT  City of Capitola 
October 15, 2018  Wharf Alternatives 

_ 11  

B. Maximum Wave Crest Elevation 

Typical Year 

Maximum wave crest elevations, considering the typical year storm surge and MHHW tide levels, at the wharf head 

for are summarized in Table 5, and shown in Figure 2. The table shows that the present-day wave crest elevations 

are around El. +16.5 feet NAVD88, below the existing deck soffit El. +17.1 NAVD88. 

Table 5. Wave Crest Elevation at Wharf Head (Typical Year) 

Scenario 

Sea Level 
Rise by 2080 

(feet) 

Water 
Depth 
(feet) 

Maximum 
Wave Height 

(feet) 

Maximum Wave 
Crest Elevation 
(feet NAVD88) 

Present-Day - 19.6 18.1 +16.5 
Median (50%) 1.6 21.2 19.1 +18.7 

1-in-20 Chance (5%) 2.9 22.5 20.0 +20.5 
1-in-200 Chance (0.5%) 4.4 24.0 20.9 +22.5 

 

 
Figure 2. Wave Crest Elevation along Wharf (Typical Year) 

Higher Risk Year 

The maximum wave crest elevation is also evaluated considering less frequent (more extreme) conditions. The 

Maximum wave crest elevations, considering the 10-year storm surge and highest predicted tide levels, at the wharf 

head are summarized in Table 6. The table shows that the present-day wave crest elevations are around El. +20.2 

feet NAVD88, which is above the existing deck soffit El. +17.1 NAVD88. This is consistent with known damage, as 

the wharf is known to experience overtopping during larger storm events, approximately every 20 years. 

Table 6. Wave Crest Elevation at Wharf Head (Higher Risk Year) 

Scenario 

Sea Level 
Rise 
(feet) 

Water 
Depth 
(feet) 

Maximum 
Wave Height 

(feet) 

Maximum Wave 
Crest Elevation 
(feet NAVD88) 

Present-Day - 22.3 19.9 +20.2 
1-in-2 Median (50%) 1.6 23.9 20.9 +22.4 
1-in-20 Chance (5%) 2.9 25.2 21.7 +24.2 

1-in-200 Chance (0.5%) 4.4 26.7 22.7 +26.2 

Present Day Median 1-in-20 chance 1-in-200 chance

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 269

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
es

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
W

h
ar

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 O

p
ti

o
n

 R
ep

o
rt

)



REPORT  City of Capitola 
October 15, 2018  Wharf Alternatives 

_ 12  

C. Recommended Design Elevation 

The recommended deck elevation, to mitigate most flooding risk including potential sea level rise, is at least El. +24.5 

NAVD88 (approximately 5 ft. higher than existing, as shown in Figure 3). Elevation +24.5 is above predicted water 

levels including up to 2.9 ft. of Sea Level Rise for both typical year conditions and infrequent storm events. Currently, 

the Wharf Deck elevation is below the maximum wave crest elevation during infrequent wave events and has been 

overtopped as noted on Figure 1. 

Figure 3. Recommended Wharf Head Elevation 

 

For the scenario including 4.4 ft. of Sea Level Rise (0.5% chance of occurring by 2080) the proposed wharf elevation 

is above the expected maximum water level during typical years, but below the maximum wave crest elevation during 

infrequent wave events (similar to the present-day hazard at the existing deck elevation). This condition can be 

mitigated as-needed in the future with additional adaptation measures. 

 

0

0

1.6

1.6

2.9

2.9

4.4

4.4

16.6

20.2
18.7

22.4

20.5

24.2

22.5

26.2 24.5

19.3

17.1

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

Typical
Year

Higher
Risk Year

Typical
Year

Higher
Risk Year

Typical
Year

Higher
Risk Year

Typical
Year

Higher
Risk Year

El
ev

at
io

n
 (

ft
. N

A
V

D
8

8
)

Recommended Wharf Head Elevation
(Typical Year and Higher Risk Year Water Levels by 2080)

MHHW = 5.5 HAT = 7.2

Storm Surge (1-Yr = 1.1, 10-Yr = 2.1) SLR

Max Wave Proposed Wharf Elevation

(E) Wharf Head Deck Elevation (E) Bottom of Pile Cap

1:200 (0.5%) Sea 
Level Rise Projection 

1:20 (5%) Sea Level 

Rise Projection 

1:2 (50%) Sea Level 

Rise Projection 
Present Day 

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 270

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
es

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
W

h
ar

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 O

p
ti

o
n

 R
ep

o
rt

)



REPORT  City of Capitola 
October 15, 2018  Wharf Alternatives 

_ 13  

4.  WHARF PROJECT ALTERNATIVES 
To address the project goals, four project alternatives are proposed. Illustrative figures for each alternative are 

included in Appendix A. 

Alternative 1: Current Design 

The Current Design elements are shown in Figure 4 and include: 

• Trestle Widening (with additional Timber Structure) at Current Elevation 

• Existing Timber Structure Repairs 

• Building Replacement at Current Elevation. 

Figure 4. Alternative 1: Current Design 

 

This design includes added resiliency by adding timber foundation elements along the trestle. As damage occurs, the 

wharf can remain open by spreading the load between the existing and new foundation elements. Since the new 

piles at the widened trestle are timber, they are susceptible to the same kinds of damage (floating logs/debris carried 

by waves). Damaged foundation elements will be repaired/replaced in ongoing maintenance cycles. Currently, a 

major maintenance cycle is required approximately every 10-20 years. New timber foundations can be installed with 

conventional equipment working from the existing wharf deck.  

This design does not include measures to mitigate future sea level rise. As sea levels rise, the height, strength, and 

frequency of storm events will have increased impacts on the wharf structure. This may still be mitigated with ongoing 

maintenance. However, the buildings at the current elevation may become subject to more frequent wave damage. 

Alternative 2: Building Foundation Separation/Replacement 

The elements of Alternative 2 are shown in and include: 

• Trestle Widening (with additional Timber Structure) at Current Elevation 

• Existing Timber Structure Repairs 

• Building Foundation Separation and Replacement with: 

a. New Timber Pile Foundation or 

b. New Concrete Foundation 

• Building Replacement at Raised Elevation. 

19.5 ft. 19.5 ft. 
21 ft. 

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 271

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
es

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
W

h
ar

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 O

p
ti

o
n

 R
ep

o
rt

)



REPORT  City of Capitola 
October 15, 2018  Wharf Alternatives 

_ 14  

Figure 5. Alternative 2: Building Foundation Separation/Replacement 

 

 

Similar to Alternative 1, this alternative includes added resiliency by adding timber foundation elements along the 

trestle. 

This design addressed potential flooding risks (including potential sea level rise) by increasing the floor elevation of 

the new buildings. This alternative does not address flooding hazards to the existing trestle or wharf head structure 

outside the building limits. 

2.a 

The building foundations could be constructed of Timber of Concrete. New Timber foundations would be less costly 

than concrete but are susceptible to the same kinds of damage (floating logs/debris carried by waves) and would 

require ongoing maintenance. New timber foundations can be installed with conventional equipment working from the 

existing wharf deck. 

2.b 

New concrete pads/foundations could be constructed to raise the building elevation including new pre-cast pre-

stressed concrete pile foundations with a concrete deck. Concrete piles installed directly below the new buildings 

would be much more resilient than the existing timber structure and could be designed to accommodate impacts from 

floating logs/debris. Limited concrete construction for replacement building foundations is complicated, as the new 

concrete piles would likely be too heavy to be installed with equipment working from the existing deck. Therefore, it is 

assumed that new concrete foundations would be installed from marine based equipment (crane equipped barge). 

Alternative 3: Wharf Trestle and Head Partial Replacement 

The elements of Alternative 3 are shown in Figure 6 and include: 

• Trestle Widening with Concrete Structure to Raised Elevation 

• Limited Existing Timber Structure Repairs 

• Wharf Head Partial Removal and Replacement (including Building Foundations) with Concrete Structure 

• Building Replacement at Raised Elevation. 

21 ft. 24.5 ft. 
19.5 ft. 

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 272

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
es

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
W

h
ar

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 O

p
ti

o
n

 R
ep

o
rt

)



REPORT  City of Capitola 
October 15, 2018  Wharf Alternatives 

_ 15  

Figure 6. Alternative 3: Wharf Trestle and Head Partial Replacement 

 

 

Additionally, a new trestle would be built to connect the existing wharf abutment (at the existing parking lot) with a 

new raised head structure. A portion of the existing Wharf Head will be replaced with a new concrete structure. The 

new structure will be raised to account for flooding risk including potential sea level rise. Also, the concrete structure 

would be more resilient to damage (compared to the existing timber structure) and require much less ongoing 

maintenance over its useful life. The replacement wharf head could be configured to suit current needs. New 

concrete construction could be completed from wharf deck with conventional heavy equipment starting at the 

landside connection and advancing seaward on the new structure.  

The existing timber trestle and wharf head structure can remain publicly accessible until damage from future potential 

sea level rise can no longer be maintained. 

Alternative 4: Full Replacement 

Alternative 4 is shown in Figure 7 and includes: 

• Full Replacement with New Concrete Wharf Structure 

• New Buildings. 

Figure 7. Alternative 4: Full Replacement 

 

 

This alternative would be designed to full accommodate flooding hazards including potential future sea level rise. 

The new concrete structure would be designed to accommodate all marine loads and would not be likely to sustain 

damage. 

21 ft. 24.5 ft. 
24.5 ft. 

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 273

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
es

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
W

h
ar

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 O

p
ti

o
n

 R
ep

o
rt

)



REPORT  City of Capitola 
October 15, 2018  Wharf Alternatives 

_ 16  

This alternative could be reconfigured to suit current needs and does not necessarily need to be constructed within 

the existing footprint. This alternative would be complete with conventional heavy equipment starting at the landside 

connection and advancing seaward on the new structure. 

The new wharf could be constructed while the existing wharf remains in service. Once complete, the existing wharf 

could be removed. 

 

 

 

  

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 274

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
es

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
W

h
ar

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 O

p
ti

o
n

 R
ep

o
rt

)



REPORT  City of Capitola 
October 15, 2018  Wharf Alternatives 

_ 17  

5.  WHARF PROJECT ALTERNATIVE COSTS 
The proposed project alternative costs range from $4.4 to 21 million (±10%) and are summarized in Table 7. The 

range of costs are based on recent bid prices for similar projects, and cost estimate information is included in 

Appendix B. 

Table 7. Wharf Alternative Costs 

 

 

  

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 275

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
es

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
W

h
ar

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 O

p
ti

o
n

 R
ep

o
rt

)



REPORT  City of Capitola 
October 15, 2018  Wharf Alternatives 

_   

Appendix A 
Wharf Alternatives Illustrative Figures  

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 276

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
es

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
W

h
ar

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 O

p
ti

o
n

 R
ep

o
rt

)



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 277

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
es

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
W

h
ar

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 O

p
ti

o
n

 R
ep

o
rt

)

stooley
Text Box
24.5 ft.



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 278

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
es

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
W

h
ar

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 O

p
ti

o
n

 R
ep

o
rt

)

stooley
Text Box
24.5 ft.

stooley
Text Box
24.5 ft.

stooley
Text Box
24.5 ft.



8.C.1

Packet Pg. 279

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
es

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
W

h
ar

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 O

p
ti

o
n

 R
ep

o
rt

)

stooley
Text Box
24.5 ft.

stooley
Text Box

stooley
Text Box

stooley
Text Box
24.5 ft.

stooley
Text Box

stooley
Text Box
24.5 ft.



REPORT  City of Capitola 
October 15, 2018  Wharf Alternatives 

_   

Appendix B 
Wharf Alternatives Cost Estimates 

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 280

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
es

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
W

h
ar

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 O

p
ti

o
n

 R
ep

o
rt

)



CAPITOLA WHARF PROJECT ALTERNATIVES
9154-01

Upper Estimate Contingency Factor
1.2

Alternative No. 1 - Timber Trestle Widening and Building Replacement
Quantity Unit Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total High Order Total

Mob/Demob 1 LS $500,000 $500,000 $600,000 Existing Wharf is approx. 29,507 sf Pile Size Length Length Size
Trestle Widening Width of Extension 16 ft Bents 9-20 35 ft piles 36 ea 40 1440 12" dia.

Furnish 12" dia. Timber Piles 4,965 LF $75 $372,375 $446,850 Length of Extension 456 ft Bents 21-40 40 ft piles 18 ea 45 810 12" dia.
Install Timber Piles 111 EA $4,500 $499,500 $599,400 # Bents 37 ea Bents 21-40 40 ft piles 42 ea 45 1890 14" dia.
Furnish 10"x12" Timber Caps 685 LF 7,079 BF $2 $14,158 $16,990 # Piles @ 3/bent 111 ea Bents 41-50 50 ft piles 15 ea 55 825 14" dia.
Install Timber Caps 37 EA $2,500 $92,500 $111,000 Bent Spacing (avg) 12.32 ft Bents 51-60 55 ft piles 111 ea 4965 lf 
Furnish 6x12 Timber Stringers 2,621 LF 15,726 BF $2 $31,452 $37,742 Handrail Spacing 8 ft Bents 61-74 60 ft piles
Install Timber Stringers 185 EA $2,000 $370,000 $444,000 Bait Shop 1626.00 sf include wrap in pile furnish cost at $25/lf
Furnish 3x12 Timber Decking 7,296 LF 21,888 BF $2 $43,776 $52,531 Restaurant 1832.00 sf
Install Timber Decking 456 EA $450 $205,200 $246,240
Demo Handrail 456 LF $30 $13,680 $16,416
Furnish 4x4 Handrail Posts 228 LF 304 BF $2 $608 $730 Assumes timber handrail replacement in kind
Furnish 2x4 Kicker 741 LF 494 BF $2 $988 $1,186
Furnish 2x4 Toe Rail 456 LF 304 BF $2 $608 $730
Furnish 2x4 Mid & Bottom Rail 912 LF 608 BF $2 $1,216 $1,459
Install Handrail 456 LF $120 $54,720 $65,664 includes hardware

Connection Hardware
Steel Plate, 1/2"x12"x4'-10" 74 EA 7,296 LB $2.0 $14,593 $17,511 pile cap to pile cap
T-Strap, 3/4"x5"x3'-4" 111 EA 4,736 LB $2.5 $11,840 $14,208 cap to pile
1" dia. x 18" bolts; mi washers 296 EA 1,780 LB $7.5 $13,352 $16,022 pile cap to pile cap
1" dia. x 20" bolts; mi washers 444 EA 2,668 LB $7.5 $20,012 $24,015 cap to pile
5/8" dia. x 20" Dowel 185 EA 322 LB $6.0 $1,930 $2,315 stringer to cap

Buildings
Demo Buildings 3,458 SF $40 $138,320 $165,984
Construct New Bait Shop 1,626 SF $350 $569,100 $682,920 Means - $250/sf (retail/mixed use); Bump 40% for constructing on wharf
Construct New Restaurant 1,832 SF $560 $1,025,920 $1,231,104 Means - $400/sf; Bump 40% for constructing on wharf

$3,996,000 $4,796,000
SF 7,296 $547.70 $657.35 Assumes over-the-top construction (e.g. small crawler crane on mats building out over constructed trestle)

Timber pile cost assumes piles are wrapped or coated prior to driving
Does not include any utility removals, relocations, or new construction

Alternative No. 2 - Timber Trestle Widening and Building Foundation Replacement/Separation
Quantity Unit Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total High Order Total

Mob/Demob 1 LS $1,500,000 $1,500,000 $1,800,000 Pile Size Length Length Size
Trestle Widening Width of Extension 16 ft Bents 9-20 35 ft piles 36 ea 40 1440 12" dia.

Furnish 12" dia. Timber Piles 4,965 LF $75 $372,375 $446,850 Length of Extension 456 ft Bents 21-40 40 ft piles 18 ea 45 810 12" dia.
Install Timber Piles 111 EA $4,500 $499,500 $599,400 # Bents 37 ea Bents 21-40 40 ft piles 42 ea 45 1890 14" dia.
Furnish 10"x12" Timber Caps 685 LF 7,079 BF $2 $14,158 $16,990 # Piles @ 3/bent 111 ea Bents 41-50 50 ft piles 15 ea 55 825 14" dia.
Install Timber Caps 37 EA $2,500 $92,500 $111,000 Bent Spacing (avg) 12.32 ft Bents 51-60 55 ft piles 111 ea 4965 lf 
Furnish 6x12 Timber Stringers 2,621 LF 15,726 BF $2 $31,452 $37,742 Handrail Spacing 8 ft Bents 61-74 60 ft piles
Install Timber Stringers 185 EA $2,000 $370,000 $444,000 Bait Shop 1626.00 sf include wrap in pile furnish cost at $25/lf
Furnish 3x12 Timber Decking 7,296 LF 21,888 BF $2 $43,776 $52,531 Restaurant 1832.00 sf
Install Timber Decking 456 EA $450 $205,200 $246,240 Boat & Bait S 60 ft piles 21 ea 65 1365 12" Sq. PC/PS
Demo Handrail 456 LF $30 $13,680 $16,416 Restaurant 60 ft piles 32 ea 65 2080 12" Sq. PC/PS
Furnish 4x4 Handrail Posts 228 LF 304 BF $2 $608 $730 Assumes timber handrail replacement in kind 53 ea 3445 lf 
Furnish 2x4 Kicker 741 LF 494 BF $2 $988 $1,186
Furnish 2x4 Toe Rail 456 LF 304 BF $2 $608 $730
Furnish 2x4 Mid & Bottom Rail 912 LF 608 BF $2 $1,216 $1,459
Install Handrail 456 LF $120 $54,720 $65,664 includes hardware

Connection Hardware
Steel Plate, 1/2"x12"x4'-10" 74 EA 7,296 LB $2.0 $14,593 $17,511 pile cap to pile cap
T-Strap, 3/4"x5"x3'-4" 111 EA 4,736 LB $2.5 $11,840 $14,208 cap to pile
1" dia. x 18" bolts; mi washers 296 EA 1,780 LB $7.5 $13,352 $16,022 pile cap to pile cap
1" dia. x 20" bolts; mi washers 444 EA 2,668 LB $7.5 $20,012 $24,015 cap to pile
5/8" dia. x 20" Dowel 185 EA 322 LB $6.0 $1,930 $2,315 stringer to cap

Buildings
Demo Buildings 3,458 SF $40 $138,320 $165,984
Demo Deck, Stringers & Cap 3,458 SF $45 $155,610 $186,732 Assumes removal & replacement of existing dock infrastructure
Remove Timber Piles 53 EA $2,250 $119,250 $143,100
Furnish 12" sq. PC/PS Piles 3,445 LF $50 $172,250 $206,700 includes delivery
Install 12" PC/PS Piles 53 EA $12,500 $662,500 $795,000
F&I Timber Pile Caps 14 EA $2,883 $40,357 $48,428 Assumed as timber
F&I Timber Stringers 70 EA $2,170 $151,901 $182,281
F&I Timber Decking 127 EA $546 $69,342 $83,210
Concrete Foundation 449 CY $800 $359,200 $431,040 pumping concrete to end of pier; includes plastic barrier
Construct New Bait Shop 1,626 SF $350 $569,100 $682,920 Means - $250/sf (retail/mixed use); Bump 40% for constructing on wharf
Construct New Restaurant 1,832 SF $560 $1,025,920 $1,231,104 Means - $400/sf; Bump 40% for constructing on wharf

$6,727,000 $8,072,000
SF 10,754 $625.53 $750.60 Assumes over-the-top construction (e.g. small crawler crane on mats building out over constructed trestle) except for building foundation piles which assume marine-based equipment

This cost includes no downtime for marine-based equipment
Does not include removal and replacement of sewage ejector platform
Does not include any utility removals, relocations, or new construction

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 281

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
es

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
W

h
ar

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 O

p
ti

o
n

 R
ep

o
rt

)



CAPITOLA WHARF PROJECT ALTERNATIVES
9154-01

Upper Estimate Contingency Factor
1.2

Alternative No. 3 - Rebuild Partial Trestle and Pier Head
Quantity Unit Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total High Order Total

Mob/Demob 1 LS $750,000 $750,000 $900,000 Total Area of Rebuild 19020 sf Pile Size Length Length Size
Demo Ex. Pier Head $0 Width of Extension 16 ft Bents 9-20 35 ft piles 36 ea 40 1440 12" Sq. PC/PS

Demo Deck, Stringers & Cap 11724 SF $45 $527,580 $633,096 Length of Extension 456 ft Bents 21-40 40 ft piles 18 ea 45 810 12" Sq. PC/PS
Remove Timber Piles 117 EA $2,250 $263,250 $315,900 # Bents 37 ea Bents 21-40 40 ft piles 42 ea 45 1890 12" Sq. PC/PS
Demo Handrail 882 LF $30 $26,460 $31,752 # Piles @ 3/bent 111 ea Bents 41-46 50 ft piles 15 ea 55 825 12" Sq. PC/PS

New Concrete Trestle Bent Spacing (avg) 12.32 ft 111 ea 4965 lf 
Furnish 12" PC/PS Piles 12,300 LF $50 $615,000 $738,000 Area of Ex. Pier Head 11724 sf
Install 12" PC/PS Piles 228 EA $10,000 $2,280,000 $2,736,000 Length of Rebuild 323 ft Bents 41-50 50 ft piles 12 ea 55 660 12" Sq. PC/PS
Concrete Caps (4'x3') 1702 LF 757 CY $1,500 $1,135,500 $1,362,600 Avg. Width of Rebuild 37.00 ft Bents 51-60 55 ft piles 30 ea 60 1800 12" Sq. PC/PS
PC Deck Planks 19020 SF $250 $4,755,000 $5,706,000 # Bents 30 ea Bents 61-74 60 ft piles 75 ea 65 4875 12" Sq. PC/PS
Closure Pours 1,702 LF 64 CY $800 $51,200 $61,440 Handrail Spacing 8 ft Boat & Bait S 60 ft piles ea 65 0 12" Sq. PC/PS
Demo Handrail 882 LF $30 $26,460 $31,752 Bait Shop 1626.00 sf Restaurant 60 ft piles ea 65 0 12" Sq. PC/PS
F&I Galv. Steel Handrail 882 LF $250 $220,500 $264,600 Restaurant 1832.00 sf 117 ea 7335 lf 

Buildings
Demo Buildings 3,458 SF $40 $138,320 $165,984 Totals 228 ea 12300 lf
Concrete Foundation 65 CY $800 $52,000 $62,400 Assumes 6" foundation poured on top of deck plank; pumping concrete to end of pier
Construct New Bait Shop 1,626 SF $350 $569,100 $682,920 Means - $250/sf (retail/mixed use); Bump 40% for constructing on wharf
Construct New Restaurant 1,832 SF $560 $1,025,920 $1,231,104 Means - $400/sf; Bump 40% for constructing on wharf

$12,437,000 $14,924,000
SF 19,020 $653.89 $784.65 Assumes over-the-top construction (e.g. deck planks can support weight of matted crane)

Does not include removal and replacement of sewage ejector platform
Does not include any utility removals, relocations, or new construction

Alternative No. 4 - Full Replacement
Quantity Unit Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total High Order Total

Mob/Demob 1 LS $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,200,000 Ex. Wharf is approx. 29507 sf Pile Size Length Length Size
Demo Ex. Pier # Bents 76 ea Bents 0-9 25 ft piles 50 ea 30 1500 12" Sq. PC/PS

Demo Deck, Stringers & Cap 29507 SF $45 $1,327,815 $1,593,378 Overall Length 866 LF Bents 10-20 30 ft piles 35 ea 35 1225 12" Sq. PC/PS
Remove Timber Piles 348 EA $2,250 $783,000 $939,600 Avg. Width of Rebuild 34.07 ft Bents 21-30 35 ft piles 32 ea 40 1280 12" Sq. PC/PS
Demo Handrail 1831 LF $30 $54,930 $65,916 Avg. # Piles/bent 4.6 ea Bents 31-40 40 ft piles 30 ea 45 1350 12" Sq. PC/PS

New Concrete Trestle Bent Spacing (avg) 11.39 ft Bents 41-50 50 ft piles 42 ea 55 2310 12" Sq. PC/PS
Furnish 12" PC/PS Piles 17,700 LF $50 $885,000 $1,062,000 Handrail Spacing 8 ft Bents 51-60 55 ft piles 60 ea 60 3600 12" Sq. PC/PS
Install 12" PC/PS Piles 348 EA $10,000 $3,480,000 $4,176,000 Bait Shop 1626.00 sf Bents 61-74 60 ft piles 99 ea 65 6435 12" Sq. PC/PS
Concrete Caps (4'x3') 2590 LF 1,152 CY $1,500 $1,728,000 $2,073,600 Restaurant 1832.00 sf Totals 348 ea 17700 lf 
PC Deck Planks 29507 SF $250 $7,376,750 $8,852,100
Closure Pours 2,590 LF 96 CY $800 $76,800 $92,160
Demo Handrail 882 LF $30 $26,460 $31,752
F&I Galv. Steel Handrail 1831 LF $250 $457,750 $549,300

Buildings
Demo Buildings 3,458 SF $40 $138,320 $165,984
Concrete Foundation 65 CY $800 $52,000 $62,400 Assumes 6" foundation poured on top of deck plank; pumping concrete to end of pier
Construct New Bait Shop 1,626 SF $350 $569,100 $682,920 Means - $250/sf (retail/mixed use); Bump 40% for constructing on wharf
Construct New Restaurant 1,832 SF $560 $1,025,920 $1,231,104 Means - $400/sf; Bump 40% for constructing on wharf

$18,982,000 $22,779,000
SF 29,507 $643.30 $771.99 Assumes over-the-top construction (e.g. deck planks can support weight of matted crane)

Does not include removal and replacement of sewage ejector platform
Does not include any utility removals, relocations, or new construction

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 282

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 W

h
ar

f 
A

lt
er

n
at

iv
es

 R
ep

o
rt

  (
W

h
ar

f 
P

ro
je

ct
 O

p
ti

o
n

 R
ep

o
rt

)



 

 
 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

 
MEETING OF OCTOBER 25, 2018 

 
FROM:  City Manager Department 
 
SUBJECT: Consider Sister City Options with Bahia de Banderas, Nayarit, Mexico  
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Provide direction. 
 
BACKGROUND: Mayor Michael Termini received communications from individuals representing 

Bahia de Banderas, a municipality in the Mexican state of Nayarit, expressing interest in 

establishing a sister-city relationship. He recently received an emailed letter from Municipal 

President Jaime Alonso-Cuevas Tello (Attachment 1) sharing information about the area. 

A Mexican municipality is roughly equivalent to a U.S. county and is the smallest autonomous 

political entity. The municipality of Bahia de Banderas, north of Puerto Vallarta on the Pacific 

Ocean, is about 300 square miles and has several small towns. Attachment 2 is information 

from Bahia de Banderas. 

Capitola has never had a sister city, although it did explore the possibility with a city in Japan in 

the late 1980s. Many if not most formal sister-city relationships are assisted by Sister Cities 

International (SCI) and a local nonprofit chapter. Capitola is not currently a member of SCI and 

is unaware of a local chapter. 

 

DISCUSSION: Communications to date have been general introductory emails and City staff 

has not received any information about the specifics of what Bahia de Banderas considers a 

sister city and what its representatives expect from the relationship. 

According to SCI, a formal sister-city arrangement is a long-term commitment that involves both 

cities signing agreements. It usually includes exchanges and visits by representatives from 

various areas of interest, such as the arts, business, and/or tourism. 

Another option is often called a “friendship city,” which is a less formal agreement and can be 

the first stage toward becoming sister cities. While some friendship city relationships are 

coordinated through SCI, other cities have established their own versions to initiate information 

exchanges and generate community interest and support. 

The Council may wish to authorize the mayor to respond to the recent letter with information 

about Capitola and potentially suggest a friendship city relationship. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: Unknown, but a formal sister-city exchange would potentially involve travel 

costs, minor gifts, and some level of staff support. No funds have been budgeted for either a 

8.D

Packet Pg. 283



Consider Sister City Options  
October 25, 2018 
 
sister city or friendship city program in Fiscal Year 2018-19. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Sister city introduction letter Bahia de Banderas 
2. Municipal profile Bahia de Banderas 

 
Report Prepared By:   Linda Fridy 
 City Clerk 
 

 

 

Reviewed and Forwarded by: 

 

8.D

Packet Pg. 284



8.D.1

Packet Pg. 285

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

is
te

r 
ci

ty
 in

tr
o

d
u

ct
io

n
 le

tt
er

 B
ah

ia
 d

e 
B

an
d

er
as

  (
C

o
n

si
d

er
 S

is
te

r 
C

it
y 

O
p

ti
o

n
s)



 

Dom. Morelos # 12, Valle de Banderas, Nayarit.  Web Page. www. bahiadebanderas.gob.mx  e-mail 
turismobadeba21@gmail.com   Tel.  +52 3222972748 

 
BAHÍA DE BANDERAS, NAYARIT, PROFILE 

 
 
NAME OF THE LOCALITY AND PHYSICAL PROFILE. 
 
MUNICIPALITY OF BAHÍA DE BANDERAS, NAYARIT. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THE MUNICIPALITY OF BAHÍA DE BANDERAS WAS FOUNDED ON DECEMBER 11, 1989, THE 
ESTIMATED POPULATION IN THE MUNICIPAL TERRITORY IS 150,250 INHABITANTS, HAS 48 
LOCALITIES, HAS A TERRITORIAL EXTENSION OF 773.3 KM2, IS LOCATED IN THE COORDINATES 20 ° 
38'58 "N 105 ° 22'56"W AT THE SOUTH OF THE STATE OF NAYARIT, MEXICO. 
 
THE MUNICIPALITY OF BAHÍA DE BANDERAS HAS A WARM TYPE SUBHUMID CLIMATE WITH RAINS 
IN SUMMER AND THE VARIATIONS ARE PRESENTED IN THE FOLLOWING WAY: 
 
WARM SUBHUMID WITH RAINS IN SUMMER OF HIGHER MOISTURE 49.95%, WARM SUBHUMID 
WITH RAINS IN SUMMER WITH AVERAGE HUMIDITY 47.78% AND SEMI-WARM SUB-HUMID WITH 
RAINS IN SUMMER OF HIGHER MOISTURE 2.27%. 
 
THE AVERAGE TEMPERATURE IS LOCATED BETWEEN THE 23 AND 30 DEGREES CELICIUS. 
 
TO THE SOUTH OF THE MUNICIPALITY IN THE LIMIT OF THE STATE, AMECA RIVER IS LOCATED, 
RIVER THAT SEPARATES US GEOGRAPHICALLY FROM THE MUNICIPALITY OF PUERTO VALLARTA. 
AND THE STATE OF JALISCO 
 
THE WEST LIMITS OF THE MUNICIPALITY ARE MARKED BY THE PACIFIC OCEAN. 
 

8.D.2

Packet Pg. 286

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

u
n

ic
ip

al
 p

ro
fi

le
 B

ah
ia

 d
e 

B
an

d
er

as
  (

C
o

n
si

d
er

 S
is

te
r 

C
it

y 
O

p
ti

o
n

s)

mailto:turismobadeba21@gmail.com


 

Dom. Morelos # 12, Valle de Banderas, Nayarit.  Web Page. www. bahiadebanderas.gob.mx  e-mail 
turismobadeba21@gmail.com   Tel.  +52 3222972748 

 
LOCAL GOVERNANCE AND ECONOMIC OVERVIEW 
 
GDP PER CAPITA OF THE STATE OR MUNICIPALITY. 
THE ECONOMY IN THE STATE OF NAYARIT CONTRIBUTES WITH 0.7% TO THE GDP AT NATIONAL 
LEVEL. THE STATE HAS 27,857 KM2 WHICH REPRESENT 1.4% OF THE NATIONAL TERRITORY AND 
HOLDS 1%  OF MEXICO’S TOTAL POPULATION. GDP IN 2012 WAS $ 70,173 PESOS PER YEAR. IN 
2015 IT WAS $ 75,297 PESOS WHICH REPRESENTS A GROWTH OF 7.3 % IN 3 YEARS. 
 
ON THE OTHER HAND, THE MUNICIPALITY OF BAHIA DE BANDERAS THAT BELONGS TO THE STATE 
OF NAYARIT BEING THE YOUNGEST MUNICIPALITY OF THE STATE, HAS A TOTAL POPULATION OF 
124,209 INHABITANTS AND WITH A DENSITY OF 167.08 HAB / KM2. THE MUNICIPAL HEADBOARD 
IS LOCATED IN THE LOCALITY OF VALLE DE BANDERAS. 
 
ECONOMICALLY ACTIVE POPULATION (EAP) 
THE ECONOMICALLY ACTIVE POPULATION IS 549,712 PEOPLE, WHICH REPRESENT A 63.6% OF THE 
POPULATION WITH AGE TO WORK. OF THE TOTAL EAP, 96 % IS OCCUPIED AND 4 % IS 
UNEMPLOYED. 
 
ECONOMIC SECTORS 
THE KEY STRATEGIC SECTORS ARE AGRICULTURE AND TOURISM SERVICES. AND THE STRATEGIC 
SECTORS FOR THE FUTURE WILL BE METALMECHANICAL, LOGISTIC SERVICES AND MEDICAL 
SERVICES. 
 
AMONG THE MAIN ACTIVITIES ARE FOUND: COMMERCE (16.9%), REAL ESTATE AND RENTAL 
SERVICES (15.5%); CONSTRUCTION (13.0%); AND, TEMPORARY ACCOMMODATION SERVICES AND 
PREPARATION OF FOOD AND BEVERAGES (9.1%). TOGETHER THEY REPRESENT 54.5% OF STATE 
GDP. (SECRETARY OF ECONOMY, 2015). 
 
WITH REGARD TO THE MUNICIPALITY OF BAHÍA DE BANDERAS, THE MAIN ECONOMY IS CENTERED 
IN TOURISM AND ALSO HAS A PRESENCE IN AGRICULTURE, LIVESTOCK AND FISHING. 
 
 
MAIN COMPANIES AND FOREIGN INVESTMENTS 
IN 2017 THE STATE OF NAYARIT ATTRACTED A DIRECT FOREIGN INVESTMENT (DFI) OF 105.1 
MILLION DOLARS (MD) WHICH PRESENTED 0.5% OF THE NATIONAL TOTAL, THE REMITTANCES, 
REACHED A TOTAL OF 471.3 MD DURING THE PERIOD JANUARY- DECEMBER 2017. IT MEANT A 
GROWTH OF 7.8% COMPARED TO THE SAME PERIOD OF THE PREVIOUS YEAR. IT OCCUPIED THE 
23rd PLACE IN THE COUNTRY, SINCE IT CONCENTRATED THE 1.6% OF THE NATIONAL TOTAL. 
BAHIA DE BANDERAS FOREIGN INVESTMENT HAVE MAJOR LUXURY RESORTS WORLDWIDE 
KNOWN, SUCH AS FOUR SEASON, GRUPO VIDANTA AND HOTEL GRAND VELAS, AS WELL AS 
WORLDWIDE COMPANIES IN AGRO-INDUSTRIAL AS MONSANTO, PIONNER AMONG OTHERS, THE 
MUNICIPALITY ACCOUNT WITH INTERNATIONAL AND NATIONAL COMPANIES TO SATISFY THE 
NEEDS OF THE INHABITANTS OF THE MUNICIPALITY. 
 
SERVICES 

8.D.2

Packet Pg. 287

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

u
n

ic
ip

al
 p

ro
fi

le
 B

ah
ia

 d
e 

B
an

d
er

as
  (

C
o

n
si

d
er

 S
is

te
r 

C
it

y 
O

p
ti

o
n

s)

mailto:turismobadeba21@gmail.com


 

Dom. Morelos # 12, Valle de Banderas, Nayarit.  Web Page. www. bahiadebanderas.gob.mx  e-mail 
turismobadeba21@gmail.com   Tel.  +52 3222972748 

THE MUNICIPALITY HAS THE BASIC SERVICES (DRINKING WATER, SEWERAGE, ELECTRICITY, 
TELEPHONE, MOBILE TELEPHONY, STREET LIGHTS, ROADS, HEALTH SERVICES, EDUCATION AMONG 
OTHERS) FOR THE USE AND ENJOYMENT OF THE PEOPLE AS WELL AS VISITORS. 
 
BAHIA DE BANDERAS IS FORMED BY VARIOUS BRIDGES AND ROADS, BUT THE MAIN ROAD IS THE 
FEDERAL 200 ROAD THAT COMMUNICATES THE MEXICAN CITIES OF TAPACHULA CHIAPAS AND 
NOGALES ALONG THE PACIFIC MEXICAN COAST, IT IS AN IMPORTANT COMMUNICATIONS AXIS IN 
THE AREA AS IT CROSSES BY 8 STATES OF THE COAST, HAS A LENGTH OF NEAR 2,000 KM. AND THIS 
HAS MANY EXITS TO IMPORTANT POPULATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CENTERS. THIS ROAD 
CROSSES ALL THE COASTAL STRIP OF THE MUNICIPALITY FROM THE NORTH WITH LO DE MARCOS 
TOWN, DOWN TO THE LIMITS WITH PUERTO VALLARTA, JALISCO TO THE SOUTH. 
 
BAHÍA DE BANDERAS HAS THE FOLLOWING MARITIME AND MARINE PORTS: 
• MARINA RIVIERA NAYARIT 
• MARINA PARADISE VILLAGE 
• MARINA NUEVO VALLARTA 
THE BAHIA DE BANDERAS MARINAS ARE EQUIPPED TO RECEIVE VESSELS THAT GO FROM 26 TO 
400 FEET 
 
BAHÍA DE BANDERAS DOES NOT HAVE AN INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT WITHIN ITS MUNICIPAL 
LIMITS, BUT THE CLOSEST AIRPORT IS AIRPORT LICENCIADO GUSTAVO DÍAZ ORDAZ, IT LOCATED IN 
PUERTO VALLARTA, JALISCO (MEXICO). SITUATED ON THE COAST OF THE PACIFIC OCEAN, IT 
RECEIVES MANY TOURISTS EVERY YEAR, THAT VISIT EITHER PUERTO VALLARTA OR BAHIA DE 
BANDERAS, BETTER KNOWN AS RIVIERA NAYARIT.  
 
THE INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT OF PUERTO VALLARTA IS THE 7TH MOST IMPORTANT AIRPORT IN 
MEXICO. 
 
THE INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT OF PUERTO VALLARTA, IS LOCATED AT 7.5 KILOMETERS FROM THE 
CITY OF PUERTO VALLARTA, JALISCO AND 10 KILOMETERS OF NUEVO VALLARTA, IN BAHIA DE 
BANDERAS, NAYARIT.    
 
TOURISM 
THE MUNICIPALITY HAS A LARGE AMOUNT OF ATTRACTIONS, THEREFORE THE REGION IS ONE OF 
THE MOST DEMANDED IN MEXICO. AMONG THE ATTRACTIONS IN THE MUNICIPALITY ARE: 
 
THE MAGIC TOWN OF SAYULITA, THE HOTEL AREA OF NUEVO VALLARTA, HOTEL AREA OF PUNTA 
DE MITA, DIVERSE BEACHES, AQUATIC SPORTS PRACTICE, SUCH AS SURF, WINDSURF, KITE SURF, 
AREAS FOR DIVING AND SNORKEL PRACTICE, NATURAL ATTRACTIONS, CERRO DEL MONO, 
MARIETAS ISLANDS, CERRO DE VALLEJO , LO DE PERLA ORCHID PLACE, LAGUNA DEL QUELELE AND 
COCODRILARIO EL CORA. PERFECT WATERS FOR SPORT FISHING, BIRD WATCHING, WHALE 
WATCHING, ADVENTURE TOURS AND AQUATIC TOURS 
 
DURING THE WINTER SEASON FROM NOVEMBER TO MAY, SEASONAL MARKETS ARE INSTALLED IN 
DIFFERENT LOCATIONS OF THE MUNICIPALITY. MARKETS THAT OFFER A GREAT VARIETY OF LOCAL 
PRODUCTS, CRAFTS, FOOD AMONG OTHER THINGS. 
 
WE ADD THE LIST OF EVENTS IN THE MUNICIPALITY (ANNEX 1 AND ANNEX 2) 

8.D.2

Packet Pg. 288

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

u
n

ic
ip

al
 p

ro
fi

le
 B

ah
ia

 d
e 

B
an

d
er

as
  (

C
o

n
si

d
er

 S
is

te
r 

C
it

y 
O

p
ti

o
n

s)

mailto:turismobadeba21@gmail.com


 

Dom. Morelos # 12, Valle de Banderas, Nayarit.  Web Page. www. bahiadebanderas.gob.mx  e-mail 
turismobadeba21@gmail.com   Tel.  +52 3222972748 

 
 
 
 
GOVERNMENT AND PUBLIC AFFAIRS. 
 
THE MUNICIPAL PUBLIC ADMINISTRATION IS CONFORMED BY AN ORGAN OF GOVERNMENT 
DENOMINED CITY COUNCIL, WHICH IS CONFORMED BY A MUNICIPAL PRESIDENT, A MUNICIPAL 
TRUSTEE KNOWN AS SINDICO AND 9 CITY COUNCIL MEMBERS ELECTED BY POPULAR ELECTION 
AND 4 BY PROPORTIONAL REPRESENTATION. 
 
THE ORGANIC STRUCTURE WHICH THE CITY COUNCIL OF BAHÍA DE BANDERAS OPERATES IS THE 
FOLLOWING: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
THE MAIN AUTHORITY IN THE MUNICIPALITY IS THE CITY HALL THAT LEADS AS PRESIDENT 
(MUNICIPAL EXECUTIVE POWER) DR. JAIME ALONSO CUEVAS TELLO. 
 
THE CURRENT ADMINISTRATION HAS A MUNICIPAL INSTITUTE OF PLANNING AND THE AREA 
RESPONSIBLE FOR FOLLOWING INTERNATIONAL AFFAIRS IS THE SUBDIRECTION OF MUNICIPAL 
TOURISM, THROUGH THE DEPUTY DIRECTOR MTRO. FÉLIX AUGUSTO VERA MEJÍA. 
 
 
IDENTIFICATION OF THE THREE MAIN PROJECTS OR ISSUES OF INTEREST OF THE LOCALITY. 
 
LOCAL INTEREST ISSUES FOR LINKAGE WITH CAPITOLA CA. ARE TOURISM, CULTURE AND 
EDUCATION. 
 
THE SUBJECTS THAT WE DO REFERENCE IN THE PREVIOUS PARAGRAPH HAVE PLACE IN OUR 
MUNICIPAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN, IN THE AXIS THREE “JUNTOS POR LA COMPETITIVIDAD 
INTEGRAL ("TOGETHER FOR THE COMPETITIVENESS"), IN THE OBJECTIVE "CI 3.1: CONSOLIDATE 

8.D.2

Packet Pg. 289

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

u
n

ic
ip

al
 p

ro
fi

le
 B

ah
ia

 d
e 

B
an

d
er

as
  (

C
o

n
si

d
er

 S
is

te
r 

C
it

y 
O

p
ti

o
n

s)

mailto:turismobadeba21@gmail.com


 

Dom. Morelos # 12, Valle de Banderas, Nayarit.  Web Page. www. bahiadebanderas.gob.mx  e-mail 
turismobadeba21@gmail.com   Tel.  +52 3222972748 

THE MUNICIPALITY OF BAHIA DE BANDERAS, AS A COMPETITIVE AND INNOVATIVE TERRITORY , 
WHERE INFRASTRUCTURE, MOBILITY, GOVERNANCE, REGULATORY IMPROVEMENT, 
SUSTAINABILITY,  
 
 
SECURITY, SOCIAL PARTICIPATION AND PRODUCTIVE DIVERSIFICATION, ARE UNDERSTANDED AND 
ASSISTED AS FUNDAMENTAL FACTORS SO THAT THE TERRITORY BY ITSELF IS A PROFITABLE 
TERRITORY FOR INVESTMENT AND WITH DIVERSITY OF POSITIONED PRODUCTS AND SERVICES IN 
THE NATIONAL AND INTERNATIONAL MARKET, GENERATING BETTER PAID JOBS AND AS A 
CONSEQUENCE, RAISING THE QUALITY OF LIFE OF THE WHOLE POPULATION ", IN THE STRATEGY  
CI3.1.2: PROFITABLE TERRITORY FOR THE INVESTMENT, PROMOTING AND STRENGTHENING THE 
IMAGE OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF BAHÍA DE BANDERAS AS A PROFITABLE AND SAFE PLACE FOR 
THE INVESTMENT, NATIONAL AND INTERNATIONAL, TO ACHIEVE INTEGRAL AND SUSTAINABLE 
DEVELOPMENT, STRATEGY CI 3.1.4: PRODUCTIVE CHAINAGE FOR COMPETITIVENESS, LINK THE 
PRODUCTIVE, COMMERCIAL AND ENTERPRISE AREAS THROUGH NETWORKS AND PRODUCTION 
CHAINS, THE STRATEGY CI 3.1.8: SECURE TOURIST DESTINATION, ATTRACTIVE, RELIABLE AND 
SUSTAINABLE, TO CONSOLIDATE BAHIA DE BANDERAS, AS A DESTINY OF PREFERENCE AT THE 
NATIONAL AND INTERNATIONAL LEVEL. 
 
(THE FINANCIAL, MATERIAL AND HUMAN RESOURCES THAT WILL BE NECESSARY FOR THE 
FORMULATION OF THE PROJECTS FOR TWIN CITIES COLABORATION ARE NOT DEFINED). 
 
(WE DO NOT HAVE REGISTERED AGREEMENTS BY THE SECRETARY OF FOREIGN AFFAIRS WITH 
FOREIGN CITIES). 
 
 
 

8.D.2

Packet Pg. 290

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

u
n

ic
ip

al
 p

ro
fi

le
 B

ah
ia

 d
e 

B
an

d
er

as
  (

C
o

n
si

d
er

 S
is

te
r 

C
it

y 
O

p
ti

o
n

s)

mailto:turismobadeba21@gmail.com

	Agenda Packet
	CLOSED SESSION
	1. LABOR NEGOTIATOR
	2. EXISTING LITIGATION
	3. LIABILITY CLAIMS

	REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
	1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	A. Roll Call

	2. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION
	3. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
	4. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA
	5. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	6. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS
	7. CONSENT CALENDAR
	A. Approval of City Council Minutes
	Printout: Approval of City Council Minutes
	1. 10-11 draft minutes

	B. Approval of City Check Registers
	Printout: Approval of City Check Registers
	1. City Check Register 9/7/18
	2. City Check Register 9/14/18
	3. City Check Register 9/21/18
	4. City Check Register 9/28/18

	C. Liability Claim
	Printout: Liability Claim

	D. Transfer of MBCP Restricted Funds
	Printout: Transfer of MBCP Restricted Funds
	1. MBCP Budget Amendment

	E. Transfer Public Works Fund
	Printout: Transfer Public Works Fund
	1. Public Works Budget Amendment

	F. Approve  POA MOU
	Printout: Approve  POA MOU
	1. POA MOU 2018-2021


	8. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
	A. Appeal of Application 17-019, 4015 Capitola Road
	Printout: Appeal of Application 17-019, 4015 Capitola Road
	1. Appeal (06.15.2018)
	2. Santa Cruz County Env. Health Division Email (10.10.2018)
	3. Final Local Action Notice of Denial (06.15.2018)
	4. 4015 Capitola Road Planning Commission Staff Report (06.07.2018)
	5. 4015 Capitola Road Plan Set (01.09.2018)
	6. 4015 Capitola Road Master Sign Program
	7. First completeness letter (03.09.2017)
	8. Revised completeness letter incomplete and advisory (04.19.2017)
	9. 2018.02.07 KH email to Craig Chinn
	10. KH email to Craig Chinn regarding ESA inadequacies (02.15.2018)
	11. Second Completeness Letter 2.28.2018
	12. CC&N Letter to City (05.09.2018)
	13. Merlone Geier Letter 02.10.2017
	14. County of Santa Cruz Notice of Violation 05.17.2018
	15. City Attorney Letter to Applicant (05.18.2018)
	16. City Attorney letter to CC&N (05.23.2018)
	17. Design Permit Criteria of 17.120.010(A-S)
	18. HydroScience Memo re Stormwater 05.24.2018
	19. Request for Continuance 10.18.2018

	B. Citizens Climate Lobby Carbon Fee and Dividend Policy
	Printout: Citizens Climate Lobby Carbon Fee and Dividend Policy
	1. CCL Information Packet

	C. Wharf Project Option Report
	Printout: Wharf Project Option Report
	1. Wharf Alternatives Report

	D. Consider Sister City Options
	Printout: Consider Sister City Options
	1. Sister city introduction letter Bahia de Banderas
	2. Municipal profile Bahia de Banderas


	9. ADJOURNMENT

	Appendix
	7.A · Approval of City Council Minutes
	7.A.1 · 10-11 draft minutes

	7.B · Approval of City Check Registers
	7.B.1 · City Check Register 9/7/18
	7.B.2 · City Check Register 9/14/18
	7.B.3 · City Check Register 9/21/18
	7.B.4 · City Check Register 9/28/18

	7.C · Liability Claim
	7.D · Transfer of MBCP Restricted Funds
	7.D.1 · MBCP Budget Amendment

	7.E · Transfer Public Works Fund
	7.E.1 · Public Works Budget Amendment

	7.F · Approve  POA MOU
	7.F.1 · POA MOU 2018-2021

	8.A · Appeal of Application 17-019, 4015 Capitola Road
	8.A.1 · Appeal (06.15.2018)
	8.A.2 · Santa Cruz County Env. Health Division Email (10.10.2018)
	8.A.3 · Final Local Action Notice of Denial (06.15.2018)
	8.A.4 · 4015 Capitola Road Planning Commission Staff Report (06.07.2018)
	8.A.5 · 4015 Capitola Road Plan Set (01.09.2018)
	8.A.6 · 4015 Capitola Road Master Sign Program
	8.A.7 · First completeness letter (03.09.2017)
	8.A.8 · Revised completeness letter incomplete and advisory (04.19.2017)
	8.A.9 · 2018.02.07 KH email to Craig Chinn
	8.A.10 · KH email to Craig Chinn regarding ESA inadequacies (02.15.2018)
	8.A.11 · Second Completeness Letter 2.28.2018
	8.A.12 · CC&N Letter to City (05.09.2018)
	8.A.13 · Merlone Geier Letter 02.10.2017
	8.A.14 · County of Santa Cruz Notice of Violation 05.17.2018
	8.A.15 · City Attorney Letter to Applicant (05.18.2018)
	8.A.16 · City Attorney letter to CC&N (05.23.2018)
	8.A.17 · Design Permit Criteria of 17.120.010(A-S)
	8.A.18 · HydroScience Memo re Stormwater 05.24.2018
	8.A.19 · Request for Continuance 10.18.2018

	8.B · Citizens Climate Lobby Carbon Fee and Dividend Policy
	8.B.1 · CCL Information Packet

	8.C · Wharf Project Option Report
	8.C.1 · Wharf Alternatives Report

	8.D · Consider Sister City Options
	8.D.1 · Sister city introduction letter Bahia de Banderas
	8.D.2 · Municipal profile Bahia de Banderas



